
 

 

 

 
City of Woodstock 

Office of the City Manager 
Phone (815) 338-4301   Fax (815) 334-2269 

citymgroff@woodstockil.gov 
www.woodstockil.gov 

121 W. Calhoun Street          Roscoe C. Stelford III  
Woodstock, Illinois 60098         City Manager 
 

                       WOODSTOCK CITY COUNCIL 

City Council Chambers 

January 21, 2014 

7:00 p.m. 

                                 

Any Person Wishing to Address the City Council 

Must Approach the Podium, be Recognized by the 

   Mayor, and Provide Their Name and Address for the Record 

   

The proceedings of the City Council meeting are being audio-recorded only 

to aid in the preparations of the Minutes and are not retained as part of the 

permanent records of the City. 

 

CALL TO ORDER 

 

 

ROLL CALL: 

          

 

A. FLOOR DISCUSSION:  1.) Proclamation Honoring Officer Ray Lanz and 

        Brinx  

    2.) Proclamation Honoring Joann and Jason  

         Randall DVM      

    3.) Groundhog Day Proclamation 

 

Anyone wishing to address the Council on an item not already on the agenda may do 

so at this time. 

1. Public Comments 

2. Council Comments    

                   

CONSENT AGENDA: 
(NOTE: Items under the consent calendar are acted upon in a single motion.  There is 

no separate discussion of these items prior to the Council vote unless: 1) a Council 

Member requests that an item be removed from the calendar for separate action, or 2) 

a citizen requests an item be removed and this request is, in turn, proposed by a 

member of the City Council for separate action.) 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 





Woodstock City Council  

January 21, 2014 

Page Three 

 

 

 

2.   Zoning Variation - 1701 Sebastian Drive – Adoption of an Ordinance 

      varying the Unified Development Ordinance to allow the construction of  

      an addition to extend two feet into the required rear yard setback. 

 

3.   Parking  – Alleys- Adoption of an Ordinance amending the Woodstock 

      City Code pertaining to Alleys 1, 2, 3 and 4 as identified. 

 

 

4.   Northwest Area Arts Council Agreement – Adoption of an Ordinance 

      authorizing an agreement between the City of Woodstock and the 

      Northwest Area Arts Council.   
 

 

 5.    Walmart Vehicular Contract – Adoption of an Ordinance authorizing 

                    a Vehicular Control Contract between the City of Woodstock and the 

                  Woodstock Walmart. 

 
  

 

DISCUSSION ITEMS: 

 

                                    6.   Community Event Discussion 

 

 7.   Five-Year Capital Improvement Plan – Transmittal of the five-year 

CIP for FY2014/2015 through FY2018/2019. 

 

 

EXECUTIVE SESSION: 

 

         Personnel (Open Meeting Act:5ILCS 120/2 (c)(1) 
         The appointment, employment, compensation, discipline, performance or dismissal of         

           specific employees of the public body, including hearing testimony on a complaint lodged  

           against an employee to determine its validity.  

 

 

 

 

RETURN TO OPEN SESSION: 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

(16b)(Doc.10) 

 

 

 

(16c)(Doc.11) 

 

 

 

(16d)(Doc.12) 

 

 

 

 

(16e)(Doc.13) 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

(16f) 

                      

                       (16g) 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

                

                      

 

 

 

                      

 



 

                      Woodstock City Council  

January 21, 2014 

Page Four 

 

 

 

FUTURE AGENDA ITEMS 

 

ADJOURN  

 

 

NOTICE: In compliance with the Americans With Disabilities Act (ADA), this 

and all other City Council meetings are located in facilities that are physically 

accessible to those who have disabilities.  If additional reasonable 

accommodations are needed, please call the City Manager’s Office at 815/338-

4301  at least 72 hours prior to any meeting so that accommodations can be made. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 



Proclamation  

Honoring  

Police Canine Unit - Officer Ray Lanz and “BRINX” 
 

WHEREAS, Officer Lanz and “Brinx” are retiring from their positions as the Police Canine 

Unit of the Woodstock Police Department after serving the citizens of Woodstock in a public 

service capacity for more than seven years and the City, in appreciation of these many years of 

service, wishes to recognize the contributions of Officer Lanz and “Brinx;” and 

WHEREAS, Officer Lanz and “Brinx” have successfully located twenty-four persons via 

tracking, area searches or building searches, including suicidal subjects, missing persons and 

persons wanted for arrest in criminal-related matters; and 

WHEREAS, Officer Lanz and “Brinx” participated in thirteen school searches and in twenty-

five public demonstrations including the McHenry County Fair, Shop with a Cop Events, 

National Night Out Against Crime and Park District Summer School Programs; and 

WHEREAS, Officer Lanz and “Brinx” have assisted various law enforcement agencies in the 

area more than one hundred times including Algonquin, Cary, Crystal Lake, Harvard, Lake in the 

Hills, Marengo, McHenry, Richmond, McHenry County Sheriff’s Office, U.S. Marshals Service, 

Drug Enforcement Agency, Illinois State Police and the F.B.I.; and 

WHEREAS, Officer Lanz and “Brinx” have been utilized to locate integral pieces of evidence 

to major investigations including Homicides, Robberies, Burglaries and Sexual Assaults and 

have aided in the arrest of three hundred and eight persons; and 

WHEREAS, Officer Lanz and “Brinx” have been responsible for seizure holds on $57,885 of 

United States Currency; have located  305 items of drug paraphernalia, over 8.5  pounds of 

cannabis, over 1.75  pounds of cocaine, 3.21 ounces of heroin, 1 gram of crystal 

methamphetamine; and have uncovered a mobile crystal methamphetamine laboratory from a 

vehicle stop, 

NOW, THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED that the City of Woodstock is deeply appreciative of 

the time, talent and efforts provided by Officer Ray Lanz and “Brinx” and thanks them for their 

more than seven years of service to the citizens of the City of Woodstock. 

APPROVED and ADOPTED by the City Council of the City of Woodstock, McHenry County, 

Illinois on this 21
st
 day of January, 2014. 

      _________________________________________ 

               Brian Sager, Ph.D. 

             Mayor 

Attest: 

_______________________________ 

Dianne Mitchell, City Clerk  



Proclamation 

Honoring 

Doctors Joann & Jason Randall DVM 
 

WHEREAS, Doctors Joann and Jason Randall have participated in the Woodstock Police 

Department Canine Program for more than seven years; and in appreciation of these many years of 

service, the City wishes to recognize the contributions of the Animal Hospital of Woodstock, Drs. 

Joann and Jason Randall, and the entire veterinary staff of the Animal Hospital of Woodstock; and 
 

WHEREAS, the Animal Hospital of Woodstock treated “Brinx” for a serious injury in the 

summer of 2010 which required progressively more serious hospital visits and care including an 

ultrasound, anesthesia, and surgery resulting in the speedy rehabilitation of “Brinx” and his return to 

duty in less than two weeks; and 
 

WHEREAS, the Animal Hospital of Woodstock has provided annual wellness exams to “Brinx” 

for the past seven years and has been responsible for his excellent health and readiness for duty as a 

Police Canine; and 
 

WHEREAS, the Animal Hospital of Woodstock has provided “Brinx” with annual rabies 

vaccinations over the past seven years; and 
 

WHEREAS,  the Animal Hospital of Woodstock has provided “Brinx” with heartworm tests and 

medications, flea and tick treatment and repellant medications, Bordetella nasal inoculations, and 

necessary veterinary visits over the past seven years; and 
 

WHEREAS, the Animal Hospital of Woodstock has provided these excellent veterinary services 

over the past seven plus years for “Brinx” at no cost to the City of Woodstock or its citizens and has 

expressed the commitment to continue these services with Canine “Jax” who is the successor to 

“Brinx,” 

 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED that the City of Woodstock is deeply appreciative of 

the time, talents, and services provided by Doctors Joann and Jason Randall and the veterinary 

staff of the Animal Hospital of Woodstock and thanks them for their more than seven years of 

donated services and supplies to the City of Woodstock and to the Police Canine Program. 
 

APPROVED and ADOPTED by the City Council of the City of Woodstock, McHenry County, 

Illinois, on this 21st day of January, 2014. 

 

       ____________________________________ 

                 Brian Sager, Ph.D. 

               Mayor 

Attest: 

 

______________________ 

City Clerk Dianne Mitchell 



 

Proclamation Declaring February 2, 2014 

Groundhog Day 

in the City of Woodstock 
 

Whereas, the Columbia Pictures motion picture Groundhog Day was filmed 

almost entirely in the  City of Woodstock in 1992; and 

Whereas, the annual commemoration celebrating the event known as Woodstock 

Groundhog Days began in 1995 with a Prognostication and Breakfast; and 

Whereas, the celebration has expanded to free screenings of the movie, a Chili 

Cook-off, Movie Site Walking Tours, Groundhog Storytelling, a Dinner Dance at the 

Moose filming location, the Lions Pancake Breakfast, a Bags Tournament and bowling, 

and an explosive Awakening of the Groundhog with Trivia; and 

Whereas, events this year will take place from Sunday, January 26
th

 through 

Sunday, February 2
nd

, 2014; and 

Whereas, people come from as far away as South Carolina or Australia to 

participate in the festivities and radio and television stations will be covering the 

Prognostication live from the historic Woodstock Square; and 

Whereas, the City of Woodstock is dedicated to doing things over and over until 

they are done right; and 

Whereas, there is not much else going on outside at this time of year anyway, 

Now, Therefore, the Mayor and City Council Proclaim February 2, 2014 as 

official Groundhog Day for the City of Woodstock, Illinois. 

            
     ____________________________ 

     Brian Sager, PhD 

     Mayor 

_________________________ 
Attest 

Dianne Mitchell, City Clerk 



MINUTES 

WOODSTOCK CITY COUNCIL 

December 17, 2013 

City Council Chambers 

 
The regular meeting of the Woodstock City Council was called to order at 7:00 PM by Mayor Brian Sager 

on Tuesday, December 17, 2013 in Council Chambers at City Hall.  He explained the consent calendar 

process and invited public participation.  

 

A roll call was taken.   

  

COUNCIL MEMBERS PRESENT: RB Thompson, Maureen Larson, Julie Dillon, Mark Saladin, 

Michael Turner, Mayor Brian Sager, Joseph Starzynski 

 

COUNCIL MEMBERS ABSENT: None 

 

STAFF PRESENT: City Manager Roscoe Stelford, City Attorney Richard Flood, Deputy City Clerk Cindy 

Smiley, IT Dan McElmeel, Opera House Director John Scharres, Economic Development Cort Carlson, HR 

Director Deb Schober, Director of Public Works Paul Ruscko, Finance Director Paul Christensen, Chief of 

Police Robert Lowen, Deputy Chief John Lieb, Planning and Zoning Administrator Jim Kastner 

 

OTHERS PRESENT:  City Clerk Dianne Mitchell 

 

Mayor Sager asked Council to consider a motion to amend the identified agenda to include an Executive 

Session for the purposes of the appointment, employment, compensation, discipline, performance or 

dismissal of specific employees of the public body or legal counsel for the public body including hearing 

testimony on a complaint lodged against an employee of the public body or against legal counsel for the 

public body to determine its validity, an appropriate exemption under the Illinois Open Meetings Act: 

5ILCS 120/2 (c)(1). 

 

Motion by M. Turner, second by J. Dillon to amend the agenda to include the Executive Session following 

Discussion Item E7 and prior to Future Agenda Items.   

 

Gus Philpott asked if Council had to add an item to the agenda to take action on and R. Flood advised that it 

is against State law to do so.    

 

A roll call vote was taken. Ayes: RB Thompson, M. Larson, J. Dillon, M. Saladin, Mayor Sager, M. 

Turner, J. Starzynski. Nays: None. Absentees: None. Abstentions: None. Motion carried. 

 

A. FLOOR DISCUSSION:  Proclamation Honoring Phoenix Woodworking 

Mayor Sager invited company president Sandra Pierce to the podium where he read a proclamation 

honoring the achievements of Phoenix Woodworking.  He congratulated S. Pierce and expressed his 

thanks for their investment in the community.  S. Pierce stated that the proclamation is something that is 

very significant to them and noted that they take a great deal of pride in the fact that Woodstock has been 

kind to them.  She stated that they are pleased to bring jobs and bring quality to the community. She 

expressed thanks on behalf of all of her employees.  Mayor Sager stated that Phoenix Woodworking is a 

people business and he acknowledged S. Pierce’s exceptional leadership in emphasizing the import of 

meeting the needs of people. 

 

Public Comments 

Tara Jenkins, 216 W. South Street, Woodstock stated that she came to discuss the recent allegations and 

punishment regarding Sergeant Charles Amati.  She understands that the final decision as to his 

employment and prosecution is out of Council’s hands and noted that she isn’t there to insist they do 

something they cannot, but advised that she is in attendance as a citizen to discuss her disapproval of the 

situation and ask for their assistance and support and for clarification on Council’s position on the matter.   



Woodstock City Council 

12/17/13 

Page 2 of 17 

 

 

T. Jenkins stated that when Woodstock Police discovered that a distinguished officer of their own was 

suspected of sexual harassment, they turned the investigation over to the IL State police.  She stated that it 

should be noted that whether or not the text messages in question were intended for the child or for the 

mother, they were intended for somebody who clearly did not want them which is sexual harassment.  

She reported that during the investigation it was learned that Sgt. Amati, whose job at the Woodstock 

Police Department had him in charge of overseeing and preventing the misuse of the taxpayer funded 

Law Enforcement Agency Data system (LEADS), used the system to conduct a background search on his 

then girlfriend.  She stated that this action is classified an official misconduct, a violation of the IL 

Criminal Identification Act, a Class 3 felony punishable by 2-5 years in prison. 

 

T. Jenkins reported that the State police turned their findings over to the Woodstock Police Department 

noting the Sergeant’s cooperation and adding that a mental health assessment should be performed on Mr. 

Amati and suggested that he undergo a period of therapy.  She stated that if the IL State police had 

discovered any indication that the text messages in question were intended for the ex-girlfriend in any 

way, it surely would have been included in their investigation notes. She stated that one would expect that 

Board of Fire and Police Commissioners and the State’s Attorney would decide to terminate and 

prosecute him noting that providing any less punishment would be unacceptable for the public especially 

in  a time when concerns over encroachments in one’s privacy are so exceedingly common.   

 

T. Jenkins referenced an incident in Elgin regarding former Deputy Police Chief Robert Beeter had 

accessed the LEADS system in order to gain information on a specific individual for his personal use.  

She stated that a warrant for his arrest was issued immediately and he was indicted on four counts of 

official misconduct.  She stated that an under reaction to such misuse and misplacement of power in our 

own community would permanently tarnish the reputations of not only the men involved but the likely the 

entities they serve.  She stated that the State’s Attorney’s investigation confirmed that the sergeant’s 

actions were criminal.  She stated that their decision not to charge him with official misconduct was 

admittedly based on the consideration that he would be punished by the police department.   

 

T. Jenkins stated that she is sure that if the Office of the State’s Attorney assumed that Sgt. Amati would 

not be fired they would have pressed charges for the admitted felony.  She stated that in no other 

profession could one count on a workplace suspension to take the place of a felony criminal charge.  She 

advised that the citizens that stand with her are asking Council to stand with them and ask the State’s 

Attorney to reconsider his decision.  She reported that Board of Fire and Police Commissioners, which 

consists of two men Ron Giordano and Lawrence Howell, behind closed doors and acting on a 

recommendation from Police Chief Robert Lowen, issued a 30 day suspension to be taken in increments 

at the discretion or convenience of the Police Department.  She asked Council to stand with them in 

asking the Board to reconsider its decision and to seek a thorough review of the Board’s past decisions 

with the possibility of exploring new litigation which would place the authority of punishment for 

appointed police officials in the hands of an impartial third body.   

 

T. Jenkins questioned why Robert Lowen, a man concerned with the safety of the citizens in his town, 

would make the questionable decision that Amati isn’t required to undergo a mental health assessment or 

counseling like the State police recommended.  She stated that he said Amati is a good officer and that he 

isn’t concerned with him being on the force.  She stated that the fact that Chief Lowen would put police 

camaraderie above the safety of his own town’s citizens is beyond concerning and makes her curious as to 

what other decisions have been made with police convenience in mind before public safety.   

 

T. Jenkins stated that City Manager R. Stelford and Mayor Sager both stated that they stood by the 

process that led to the suspension and noted Amati’s 24 years of service and otherwise clean disciplinary 

record.  She reported that the citizens’ taxes pay Sgt. Amati’s $90,000 a year salary.  She stated that if 

Council is not concerned with their citizens paying $90,000 a year for a man to be uniformed who will 



Woodstock City Council 

12/17/13 

Page 3 of 17 

 

abuse his power whenever he sees fit, then they are not concerned enough.  She stated that she is asking 

Council if they personally feel that Sgt. Amati should be kept on the police force.  She advised that she 

wants to know why her city’s elected officials seem to have no say in it and what if anything they can do. 

If it is completely out of their hands, she is asking them to at least to stand with a group of concerned 

citizens who came seeking only justice so together they can hold responsible those entities in our 

government which have in these instances acted seemingly in spite of the law.  She believes that the tax 

payers of Woodstock deserve an explanation. 

 

Gus Philpott, 500 Lake Ave, Woodstock stated that commission of felonies is a serious business.  He 

reported that on August 22, 2013 a complaint was received by the Woodstock Police Department which 

resulted in identification of two serious charges against Sgt. Amati; e conduct unbecoming of an officer 

and violation of the LEADS system.  He stated that the McHenry County Sheriff’s Department ducked its 

responsibility when it refused to accept the complaint.  He stated that the Ogle County and McHenry 

County State’s Attorney offices ducked their responsibilities when they failed to accept the filing of 

felony charges.   

 

G. Philpott stated that the Chief of the Criminal Division of the McHenry County State’s Attorney office 

told the Northwest Herald that Sgt. Amati made serious mistakes but he has to consider his background 

too.  He stated that using the LEADS system the way Sgt. Amati did is a felony.  He believes that the City 

should be all over the Sheriff’s Department and the State’s Attorney for their failures in this matter.  He 

reported that the three-man Woodstock Board of Fire and Police Commissioners, all residents of 

Woodstock and one being the Police Chief of Lakewood, imposed the longest suspension allowed under 

IL State statutes short of termination.   

 

G. Philpott stated that the City of Woodstock failed its responsibility to the residents by withholding news 

of the serious breach in ethics and conduct.  He advised that they are elected by the people to represent 

the people not hide information from them until it is discovered by the media.  He stated that they are the 

city’s caretakers and they can direct City Administration to act properly.  He stated that they could impose 

termination but noted that the City Attorney has probably apprised them of the high legal costs if Amati is 

sued.    

 

G. Philpott reported that on October 15, 2013 a Chicago Tribune reporter contacted Chief Lowen then 

two weeks later on October 28, 2013 the Board of Fire and Police Commissioners made a decision to 

discipline Sgt. Amati, which became public record.  He stated that there must not have been a reporter at 

the meeting although notices of the special meeting should have been distributed to the media.  He 

reported that the next day the City should have released information to the public about Amati’s 

discipline.  He stated that on November 13, 2013, the Chicago Tribune reporter contacted Chief Lowen 

and then two weeks later reported on the matter.  He reported that on November 27, 2013, Chief Lowen 

informed the employees of his department through an email with a soft explanation that diminished the 

importance of the Chicago Tribune article and concluded by encouraging them to do their part to lift the 

employee up.  He doesn’t think it should take a public outcry for Council to step up and do what’s right. 

 

David Sarkis, 4216 East Dr, Crystal Lake, read from a letter addressed to the Mayor and Council 

members regarding the complaint against Sgt. Amati. He referenced the line regarding the turning over of 

Sgt. Amati’s electronic devices to the IL State Police noting that it was done without the need to require a 

search warrant.  He stated that he is holding three electronic devices and has more at home.  He stated that 

it is well known that people who intend to commit crimes that involve electronic devices will often 

acquire more than one and specifically use forms of communication only for illegal activities.  He stated 

that the idea that this individual was allowed to submit voluntarily whatever number of electronic devices 

he saw fit is extremely troubling.   

 



Woodstock City Council 

12/17/13 

Page 4 of 17 

 

D. Sarkis referenced the letter again and stated if the only devices that were voluntarily submitted to law 

enforcement didn’t contain any specific information he would hope that there was some sort of 

investigation into all of the electronic transmissions originating from Sgt. Amati on any and all devices 

that he may have used.  He referenced the information in the letter regarding the IL State Police’s 

determination that the text message to be a single isolated incident and then stated that he hopes that the 

IL State Police actually reviewed any and all electronic transmissions originating from Sgt. Amati to 

make that statement.   

 

D. Sarkis continued reading the letter and stated that it seems so troubling that there was no search of his 

residence, his person or his vehicles for the presence of any other electronic devices other than anything 

he voluntarily submitted.  He read, per the letter, that the City can recommend termination to the Board of 

Police and Fire Commission, but it is only a recommendation.  He stated that it is the issue of an 

individual submitting the electronic devices voluntarily and at his own discretion that brought him to the 

meeting.  He stated that he finds it extremely distributing and he would appreciate it if it could be looked 

into or reported on more accurately to the public. 

 

Joseph Monack, 343 S. Jefferson St., Woodstock questioned how much Council’s hands are tied with the 

item.  He stated that the decision was made by Board of Fire and Police Commissioners which is a small 

board and has a police officer on it which seems like a conflict of interest to him.  He stated that he 

doesn’t understand a lot of the jargon about the home rule community, but noted that going forward he 

would like to see the Council consider making Woodstock a home rule community or have some kind of 

system where the people who are in charge of disciplining  people are not working for the same 

organization.  

 

Steven Larick, 326 Railroad St, Woodstock stated that Sgt. Amati was charged with the oversight of the 

LEADS system and must have known that what he was doing was a felony. He stated that if the person 

overseeing the abuse of the system himself abuses it knowing he committed a felony then what incentive 

would he have to turn in other officers who might have abused the police database in order to collect 

information on other citizens of Woodstock.  He thinks that an investigation into the LEADS database, 

because of Sgt. Amati’s abuse and illegal action, should take place to see if other people in the department 

also committed the same act. 

 

T. Jenkins stated that she normally isn’t involved with her local government but she has a daughter and 

questioned if when her daughter gets her license and is pulled over by Sgt. Amati.  She stated that he 

admittedly texted a 12-year old girl and he admittedly finds young girls attractive.  She stated that a police 

officer in her town finds young girls attractive and still has the authority to pull over anybody he wants.  

She stated that police have more authority and people are afraid to question police or stick up for 

themselves when it comes to the police.   

 

T. Jenkins said she wants Mr. Amati to not be a pedophile and she wants those text messages to be 

intended for the mother and not the daughter. She wants him to not be a bad man because she loves her 

community and she doesn’t want a pervert on her police force.  She believes what the citizens are asking 

the Council is reasonable.  She asked that he not be referred to by the term of endearment and nickname 

that his buddies have come up with and stated that his name is not Chip Amati it is Charles Amati and he 

should be charged with a Class 3 felony and he should not be on the community’s police department.  

 

Poncho Villa, Woodstock, stated that it is a complete joke and believes we should not have to be here 

arguing about it.  He believes that Sgt. Amati should not be able to keep his job and he should be in 

prison. 

 



Woodstock City Council 

12/17/13 

Page 5 of 17 

 

Eric Adamshick, 626 Clay St, Woodstock stated that he knows abused people and he knows people that 

have abused people and they often don’t get caught or punished.  He stated that there is no proof that Sgt. 

Amati turned all of his equipment and he is sure there are other instances where he did the same thing. 

 

J. Monack stated that at the beginning of the meeting there was a presentation to someone coming here to 

invest in our community and he would like to be able to attract people to come here.  He stated that this 

situation doesn’t seem ideal to attracting people. 

 

T. Jenkins stated that from the projected budget, Charles Amati will be making over $93,000 in the 13/14 

fiscal year.  She reported that his crime is to lose him a projected $10,000 which leaves him making over 

$80,000 not included projected overtime payments.  She advised that the average household in 

Woodstock makes around $40,000 which means the residents are paying a man nearly double what most 

households make to abuse his power.   

 

Daniel Franklin, 500 N. Catalpa, Wooddale stated that he has a 12 year old sister and stated that if your 

child was being abused like that, being told to send sexy pictures to this older guy, she probably didn’t 

know what to do or how to tell her mom.  He stated that the father and mother of the girl are controlling 

themselves and he asked Council do something for them.  He stated that the family probably needs 

someone to talk to.  He believes it is wrong for this officer to be doing this to an underage girl and noted 

that police officers have more power than a regular citizen.  He stated that the officer should be charged 

for what he has done as well as the Class 3 felony. 

 

Poncho Villa, Woodstock stated that we have heard from the people of Woodstock and now he would like 

to hear from Council on their thoughts. 

 

Joe Cicero, resident of Woodstock, stated that he likes Woodstock and noted that he moved to the area 

four years ago.  He stated that there are so many good things going on in Woodstock and he is concerned 

with the hit that it is taking.  He stated that it is hard to have outsiders look in on you and noted that it 

feels like an attack on Woodstock.  He stated that if one of his kids heard about the situation he 

questioned how he would respond to it.  He knows that Woodstock has a lot of good here and noted that it 

is difficult to hear people talking about Woodstock in regards to what is happening with the police officer. 

He stated that it is difficult to stomach the PR hit that Woodstock is taking because of the situation. 

 

Morgan Bikowski, 124 N. Madison, Woodstock stated that this last Halloween during trick-or-treating 

she told her daughter that if she gets separated to find a police officer.  She stated that she is glad they 

weren’t separated and she is glad that her daughter didn’t find Mr. Amati. 

 

D. Sarkis referenced a quote from Police Chief Lowen regarding “grooming” and stated that there are six 

stages of grooming.  He read the definition of grooming and stated that the child’s mother was in a 

relationship with Sgt. Amati and there was an incident that led her to breaking it off.  He stated that Sgt. 

Amati presented the older daughter with a gold necklace engraved “princess” on the back and the mother 

was so incensed by it that she stormed over to his residence demanded her keys and broke off the 

relationship.  She then instructed her children to remove his phone number from their cell phones.  He 

stated that is when the older daughter told her mother of the text messages.  He believes the gift to the 

older daughter could be perceived as the opening volleys of grooming and noted that giving the gift to one 

child and not to both of them is not typical behavior. 

 

T. Jenkins stated that Chief Lowen has worked on the police force for seven years alongside Amati and 

she questioned why Chief Lowen didn’t recommend a mental health assessment, why he isn’t concerned 

with Sgt. Amati’s position on the force and why someone that has been working next to someone for the 

past seven years has the right to make a recommendation as to his punishment.  She stated that it seems 

that camaraderie would get in the way of punishment. 



Woodstock City Council 

12/17/13 

Page 6 of 17 

 

 

D. Franklin stated that he is with the people handing out flyers supporting having the officer fired.  He 

stated that he is with Anonymous and noted that they are trying to help get justice served for the public.  

He stated that people have been questioning what they have been saying and he advised that they are not 

supporting the officer and are against him.  He advised that they are always here if anyone needs them 

noting that they are always listening and helping anyone. 

 

Mayor Sager expressed sincere thanks to everyone that came forward to address the Council on an issue 

which is very important to the citizens, Council and the community and its image.  He expressed 

appreciation for their forthrightness and the professional job they did providing their thoughts, fears, 

concerns and anger to Council.  He stated that a community works best when people communicate and 

when people feel like they have an opportunity to speak and be heard. 

 

Mayor Sager stated that it may be difficult to understand but no one feels any greater sense of disgust, 

outrage, betrayal and anger than the members of City Council.  He advised that as citizens and as caring, 

nurturing human beings, they have a right to be disgusted, outraged and angry.  He noted that Council 

shares those thoughts and emotions with them.  He stated that the situation has risen to this level of 

reaction not only because of the individual words of the text message but because the words were directed 

to a child; our most precious resource and a child who has a right to innocence and the right to feel secure 

and protected. He stated that they are also outraged and betrayed because the individual that sent the 

disgusting, loathsome text to a child was a previously trusted employee of the City and a sergeant in 

Woodstock’s professional police department who is charged with the noble mission of defending and 

protecting all of us but especially the innocent and our youth.  

 

Mayor Sager stated that there is nothing that can possibly be done to bring a satisfactory conclusion to the 

situation short of reversing time.  We will never be satisfied because the action has taken place.  He 

advised that residents have a right to come forward demanding and expressing the right to look at their 

elected officials to do the best they can to bring a sense of rightness to a terrible situation.  He stated that 

there is nothing more that the Council wants than to do just that.  They want to do what is right and they 

want to ensure to their best of their ability that something like this won’t happen again.  He noted that 

they will never be able to provide to absolutes assurances; it’s just not a part of the human condition or 

their ability. 

 

Mayor Sager stated that they will however on their individual and collective behalf do the best they can to 

bring the maximum level of disciplinary action up to and including termination if appropriate and feasible 

within Council’s legal authority and procedure.  He advised that Council will do their best to protect the 

community and children from this ever happening again by an employee of this municipality or by 

anyone in the community.  He stated that aside from the sadness that he holds for the child, he and 

Council are saddened by the fact that so many honorable, hardworking, dedicated and trustworthy public 

servants have and will continue to be viewed as less honorable and trustworthy today all due to the 

despicable actions of one.  He requested to humbly ask the public not to cast guilt on all.  He stated that 

the conduct is not only unbecoming of an officer but it is loathsome and it is unacceptable.   

 

Mayor Sager stated that he does not want to diminish the impact on the child, but stated that another 

incredibly disturbing situation is using the LEADS system in this most disturbing manner and 

circumstance.  He stated that the public’s input tonight has been important in this ongoing process which 

is a process for Council that will continue as they individually and collectively work to do their very best 

in the situation. 

 

M. Turner stated he thinks that the intensity and emotion expressed by Mayor Sager is shared by everyone 

on Council.  He stated that they understand the seriousness and how reprehensible the action is.  He stated 

that the public’s comments are taken incredibly seriously.  He advised that Council members take their 



Woodstock City Council 

12/17/13 

Page 7 of 17 

 

role seriously.  He stated that as Council goes through the process of what has happened and what may 

happen, he wants the public to know that they are following the feedback from residents, their own 

conscience and the law and due process which at times slows things up and perhaps doesn’t deliver the 

justice with the swiftness that he or the public might like.  He stated that it is Council’s goal within the 

authority they have to make sure they are making the right decisions on this and every other issue.   

 

M. Turner pointed out that he thought T. Jenkins’s opening statement and letter was exceptionally well 

written.  He addressed J. Cicero’s statement regarding the issue of image and advised that image is 

secondary to the act that took place, but noted that image is nonetheless what we also pay attention to; not 

to keep ourselves squeaky clean but to not see the cops uniformly painted with a broad brush.  He 

believes in our police force.  He believes what Sgt. Amati did was wrong and reprehensible and he 

believes in our police force; he can believe both things at the same time.  He stated that what it does to the 

image of the city, Staff and Council is troubling and noted that they work very hard to try to do the right 

things and uplift Woodstock.  He advised that Council will continue to deal with the issues that are 

brought before them that are very serious and noted that this is the most serious issue that has been 

brought to him in the 2 ½ terms that he has been on Council.  He advised that part of the reason they 

added an Executive Session tonight is because they need to continue to have the discussion. He stated that 

it is appropriately being discussed behind closed doors because it is an HR matter.  He stated that the 

public’s outrage is well placed and he shares the outrage and the frustration.   

 

G. Philpott addressed Council, advising them that people were standing at the door with masks on and 

stated that it is not lawful in this state to wear masks in public particularly in a sensitive meeting of this 

type and he asked the police to address it with him.  Mayor Sager asked Chief Lowen to contact 

appropriate law enforcement.  He stated that the individuals are welcome to attend the meeting but he 

needs proper law enforcement to investigate and invite them in if the would like to participate. 

 

M. Saladin stated that Council doesn’t make decisions in a vacuum and noted that there are facts they 

hear, information that they glean and citizen input that they listen to in order to make decisions.  He 

believes everyone is here for the benefit for the entire community of Woodstock.  He stated that he is very 

concerned about the victim and he is very concerned about the perceived image of the police department.  

He advised that Council is tied to certain provision of State law whether it is home rule or the City 

Manager form of government or the Board of Police and Fire Commissioners.  He advised that there are 

certain statutory restrictions that Council has to be sensitive to and if they weren’t in place there would 

not be a role of law in this country.  He stated that if there are avenues to pursue Council will continue to 

pursue them as the Mayor has said.  He expressed his appreciation for the public’s input and he thanked 

Mr. Franklin who disclosed that he is part of the Anonymous Group 

 

M. Larson thanked everyone that attended the meeting and noted that it has been a rough period of time 

for the City Staff and Council.  She appreciates the public’s time and effort to come forward.  She stated 

that she is sickened by the actions that were taken and noted that on behalf of the victim and in general as 

a mom it is very difficult to reconcile that somebody would take that action in the first place and she 

won’t defend it.  She stated that even though Council is in a different position it doesn’t mean they don’t 

feel any different than the public.   She stated that she is just as angry, outraged and sickened.  

 

M. Larson stated that see was pained by the process and failure of the State’s Attorney to press charges 

and noted that it has had repercussions on their end that they don’t have control over; that part of the 

process has been unfortunate.  She stated that she is gravely concerned by the damage being done to our 

reputation and to the trust that is held in our police force.   She stated that she hopes Council can do more 

as she is not happy with the outcome.   

 



Woodstock City Council 

12/17/13 

Page 8 of 17 

 

J. Dillon stated that Council’s job is to listen to the public and act on want is important to the public.   She 

stated that the situation is upsetting and noted that Council is going to do what they can within their 

rights.  She stated that Council feels the same way the public does and noted that they are very upset. 

 

RB Thompson stated that he echoes everything the other Council members said and noted that he is 

always struck by how well articulated our community can be.  He stated that it was very impressive. He 

advised that Council is frustrated because there is protocol that they have to work within and noted that he 

is looking forward to see how Council can act within the protocol. 

 

Mayor Sager stated that one of the things raised was why the City of Woodstock can’t be home rule.  He 

advised that under IL State statutes, home rule designation is a matter of population or referendum by the 

population. He stated in the City of Woodstock we have a population according to the most recent census 

of 24,700 people and advised that in the State of IL when you receive 25,000 certified individuals in a 

census you automatically become a home rule community with a whole different set of rules and options.  

He stated that right now Woodstock falls short of that and advised that City Council is routinely trying to 

evaluate to determine when it is the best time to go out for a special census to confirm home rule status.   

He advised that communities can go to referendum on a ballot and ask for the population to approve home 

rule, but he stated that many individuals are reticent to support such a referendum with one of the primary 

reasons being that home rule communities have a greater amount of flexibility relative to revenue 

generation.   

 

Mayor Sager stated that the police officer that has served on the Police and Fire Commissioners is not a 

police officer in the City of Woodstock and is an officer of another community.  He stated that he isn’t 

putting any implication on it but just wanted to make sure that everyone is aware of that fact. 

 

T. Jenkins asked if Council as a board can recommend to the State’s Attorney office to reconsider their 

decision.  City Attorney R. Flood stated that one can always have opinions on things but noted that it 

would be highly unusual for a council to make recommendation to a State’s Attorney. He advised that 

normally to keep it out of politics, you turn over the investigatory side to the State police and let them 

turn over their independent investigation and make their recommendation to the State’s Attorney.  He 

reiterated that a council or individuals are entitled to their opinion but it would be highly unusual for a 

council to take a formal action because there is a process that is normally followed and provides due 

process to a defendant in those instances.   

 

M. Turner stated that they could ask but the State’s Attorney office wouldn’t have to follow it; we have 

no authority over them.  R. Flood stated that Council has no authority to hire, fire or discipline a police 

officer.  He advised that for eighty years in the State of IL that has been vested by State legislature in the 

Board of Police and Fire Commission.   

 

T. Jenkins questioned if a recommendation can be made to the Board of Fire and Police Commissioners 

and R. Flood advised that they cannot and noted that the recommendations and the prosecution before the 

Police Commission is made by the Chief of Police.  T. Jenkins questioned if the Board of Fire and Police 

Commissioners are elected by the public and R. Flood advised that they are appointed by City Council, 

but their terms are staggered so they are not within any individual administration.  He noted that all Police 

Commissioners must be residents of the City of Woodstock.  He stated that they are appointed for 

staggered terms, there are three of them according to State statute and they serve their four year terms.  

He advised that there is now a vacancy on the Commission which will come up for appointment.  T. 

Jenkins questioned if the appointment will be a public meeting.  R. Flood stated that the appointment 

would be done at a City Council meeting; the Mayor would present a nominee and the Council members 

would advise and consent to the nomination. 

 



Woodstock City Council 

12/17/13 

Page 9 of 17 

 

T. Jenkins wanted confirmation that the Woodstock Police Department cannot fire Amati and R. Flood 

affirmed.  He stated that State statute provides that the police chief can suspend an officer for up to five 

days which is appealable by the Police and Fire Commission.  He stated that if a chief would like any 

further discipline, he can ask for longer than five days up to a maximum of thirty days of suspension, but 

it is only a recommendation that he makes to the Police and Fire Commission.  T. Jenkins questioned if 

the Board of Fire and Police Commissioners have the ability to fire Amati and R. Flood stated that they 

have the ability to fire an officer if charges are brought against him; a proceeding takes place.  T. Jenkins 

stated that it seems like a pretty hard job to get fired from.   

 

R. Flood stated that looking back at the history of it, legislature felt that they wanted to take it out of any 

political process and take the authority away from the elected officials.  He stated that when it was 

initiated years ago, the police officers felt they would get a fairer hearing from an independent police 

commission and that if they were to be disciplined they would be entitled to a full hearing with due 

process and lawyers on both sides. 

 

T. Jenkins questioned if the way the Board of Fire and Police Commissioners is run and the guidelines of 

what they do in their meetings and the fact that they are closed door meetings are aspects that are up to 

Council and whether they make decisions as to the Board Commissioners abilities.  R. Flood stated that 

the sole authority that Council has is that the Mayor can nominate and the Council can advise and consent 

to who the persons are.  He stated that the Board like the City Council is bound to State statutes with 

regards to Open Meetings.   He stated that the Open Meetings Act provides that all meetings have to be 

open but there are specific exceptions allowed for with respect to having closed sessions and one of those 

is with regard to personnel issues where allegations are made with regards to misconduct or performance 

of someone. He advised that Legislature decided that because there are times when allegations turn out to 

be false that if the Commission wishes they can take testimony of complaints against an officer in closed 

session but the decision of whether or not to do that is up to the Commission not Council.   

 

T. Jenkins stated that Council is telling her that they have just as much power in this situation as she does. 

She stated that she can start a petition and weekly protests at Dick Tracy Park which has already been 

discussed.  She questioned if she has more power than her elected City officials and Mayor Sager stated 

that she is correct that this body is limited to certain types of power, authority and opportunity; and is 

equally limited in terms of process and procedure.  He advised that private citizens have a right to petition 

the Legislature to change the laws in the State of IL.  He stated that there would be additional 

opportunities should we be a home rule community.  

 

T. Jenkins stated that she understands that it is out of Council’s hands and thanked them for their time and 

expressed her appreciation for them addressing her issues in a respective manner.  She noted that they 

have made it clear that they are disgusted but that power is just as out of their hands as it is hers and 

everybody else that is upset.  She asked what a good next step would be since they are citizens of this 

community and they feel powerless to their police force.   

 

Mayor Sager stated that on behalf the residents and hearing their voices, City Council has to have 

additional discussions within the parameters of their process, procedures and authority to see if there are 

additional things that can be done.   He stated that they are in the midst of process and they will go into 

closed session to see if there are additional opportunities.  He noted that as private citizens we have the 

chance to contact local legislators and to see if individuals are willing to sponsor bills to provide change.  

He stated that if home rule status was reduced to 24,500 it would make a change for us.  He advised that 

local residents and local elected officials would feel that they would have a greater amount of authority 

and voice relative to the decisions made at the local level. He stated that the State statutes that limit the 

disciplinary penalty that can be imposed are something that could be addressed by legislators.   

 



Woodstock City Council 

12/17/13 

Page 10 of 17 

 

T. Jenkins questioned if there is a date that herself and other concerned citizens of Woodstock would have 

a chance to speak with Chief Lowen.  Mayor Sager stated that Chief Lowen has opportunities to meet 

with the public on a monthly basis.  Chief Lowen stated that he meets with the public the second Monday 

of every month at 7:00 at the station but noted that he is willing to meet with anybody at anytime.   

 

M. Turner addressed T. Jenkins and stated that all the Council members generally try to be very 

responsive to phone calls and emails from any residents.  He advised that if you seek out City Staff, 

Council’s admonishment to them is that they are responsive to residents.  He stated that in response to the 

question of “what next?” that one of the reasons Council put it in Executive Session is to explore other 

opportunities Council may have.  He said it is appropriate to talk about it now as well as in a HR setting.  

He advised that they won’t make any decision as they cannot do so.  He stated that it has gone in a 

direction that he is not happy with.  He advised that Council will continue the process.  He stated that 

behind closed doors the discussions will be significantly more intense and active because they will be able 

to nail down things that they may or may not be able to do. 

 

D. Sarkis expressed his thanks for the way that Council addressed it and stated that the manner in which 

they articulated their concerns and appreciation of the citizenry coming before them is exceptional and 

commendable. 

 

Council Comments 

Mayor Sager stated that the Lighting of the Square was successful and he expressed his gratefulness to J. 

Dillon for representing the Council as well as for the businesses, sponsorships and City Staff that made 

the holiday celebration a reality. 

 

R. Stelford stated that the City Administration attended the opening of the new dog park which is a 

combined effort between the Village of Bull Valley and the City of Woodstock.  He advised that 

information on memberships is on the Village of Bull Valley’s web site. Mayor Sager stated that the more 

that Woodstock can outreach, cooperate and partner the more effective we are on behalf of the residents 

and the resources; these types of collaborative efforts are very important. 

 

CONSENT AGENDA: 

Motion by J. Dillon, second by M. Turner to concur with Consent Agenda Items B-E2, E4-E5 

 

 RB Thompson removed Item E3. 

 

 In reference to Item E4, M. Turner referenced the two estimates and stated that the first one 

includes the bridge levy which is expected to be smaller.  R. Stelford stated that by default under 

State law, the McHenry County Clerk must lower what the City requests for the Street and Bridge 

Levy by the amount collected by the townships within the corporate boundaries of the City of 

Woodstock.  M. Turner stated that the expectations would be more along the lines of the amount 

on page 63 of the packet and R. Stelford affirmed and stated that they anticipate that it would be 

lower on the residents because that schedule does not take into account the property tax 

maximum rate caps. He stated that based on their current estimates, it will put the City over on 

several of the funds. 

 

M. Turner stated that is conceivable that the $250,000 house paying $14.43 that is now estimated 

to be worth $230,000 next year will be paying roughly the same.  R. Stelford stated that they 

expect it to be a little less and will be similar to the past two years when in actuality even though 

the City is extended and asked for more money, we know in essence where it is going to be 

reduced and it will probably be below was actually received last year.  He anticipates the total tax 

property tax levy to be less and they have confirmed with the County Clerk that if for some 

reason the City’s perceptions are incorrect and it does result in an increase, the City can still have 



Woodstock City Council 

12/17/13 

Page 11 of 17 

 

the opportunity to come back to the Council via special meeting and Council can reduce it at their 

discretion.   

 

 In reference to Item E5, J. Starzynski stated that when he was looking at the requirements he read 

that the recommendations are to keep some of the items like the jail cells.  He questioned if the 

City is trying to sell a museum and if it is saying that a private investor can have the building but 

they can’t change specific items like a jail cell.   

 

Mayor Sager agreed that he thinks there are limitations and noted that the Old Courthouse is on 

the National Historic Register and there are certain restrictions as to what can be done. He 

advised that Council engaged the advice of the Historic Preservation Commission to provide 

oversight. He thinks J. Starzynski’s comments and intuition is correct that it is going to provide 

limitations.  He stated that the purpose of the State Historic Preservation Guidelines, the Historic 

Preservation District and the Historic Register is to protect buildings and historic elements of 

those buildings for posterity. J. Starzynski stated that it is one element of the building that he 

thinks might be a problem.   

 

M. Saladin stated that he appreciates the fact that HPC went through the debate internally about 

allowing flexibility.  He agrees that the City needs to set the standards based on HPC’s expertise 

with the hope that there are developers out there who acknowledge it.  He stated that he wants the 

Council to have the flexibility to be able to look at something if is brought forward and make a 

decision based on the best interest of the city.  He stated that if that flexibility is there then he is 

okay with the document and Council conceded.   

 

RB Thompson stated that reading through the minutes, HPC really worked hard to get the correct 

words all the way through the document and he thinks they have done a marvelous job.  He stated 

that he thinks the tenor of their work is going to be conveyed to anybody who reads it and he 

believes it does have some flexibility.  M. Larson stated that the minutes reflect that HPC 

wrestled with the same thing and she believes there are some conditional words in the document 

that give a little bit of room to work within.  Mayor Sager commended the Commission and 

expressed his appreciation for the work they put into it. 

 

B.        MINUTES OF PREVIOUS MEETINGS:              
            December 3, 2013 Regular Meeting 

  

C.       WARRANTS:   3595      3596    MFT #528    

 

D. MINUTES AND REPORTS:   

 Transportation Commission Minutes – November 20, 2013 

 

E. MANAGER'S REPORT NO. 15 
 

1. Appointment of City Treasurer – Recommendation to appoint Paul Christensen as the City 

Treasurer for the City of Woodstock. 

 

2. Authorized Agent – IMRF – Adoption of Resolution 13-R-23 appointing Finance Director 

Paul Christensen as the authorized agent for the Illinois Municipal Retirement Fund. 

 

4. Property Tax Levy- Adoption of the following: 

                     a.)   Ordinance 13-O-60 levying property taxes for calendar year 2013. 

   b.)  Ordinance 13-O-61 setting the Street and Bridge Fund Rate for the 2013       

Property Tax Levy Extended in 2014. 



Woodstock City Council 

12/17/13 

Page 12 of 17 

 

 

5. Old Courthouse and Sheriff’s House – Recommendation to replace the Design Guidelines 

appendix in the Request for Proposals with the Old McHenry County Courthouse and Sheriff’s 

House Design Guidelines and Recommendation Report.  

 

A roll call vote was taken. Ayes: RB Thompson, M. Larson, J. Dillon, M. Saladin, Mayor Sager, M. 

Turner, J. Starzynski. Nays: None. Absentees: None. Abstentions: None. Motion carried. 

 

Item E3 Professional Services – Lobbyist – Adoption of a Resolution approving an agreement with 

Joyce Nardulli, LLC for Intergovernmental and Legislative Advocacy Professional Services. 

 

RB Thompson stated that in the past the City hired a lobbyist at a rate of $25,000 per year.  Mayor Sager 

stated that the former lobbyist was Milton Sees.  RB Thompson stated that he didn’t get a sense of how 

much work he accomplished and now the City has budgeted $30,000 for the entire year which will be 

bumped up to $60,000.  He is wondering how much more the City is getting going from $25,000 to 

$60,000. 

 

Mayor Sager stated that the initial efforts that were taken by the previous Secretary of Transportation in 

the State of IL who later became a registered lobbyist on behalf of the City were oriented specifically to 

an introduction of the needs with state and federal legislators.  He stated that it was not as aggressive or 

productive as he would have like to have seen although the City was able to make some outreach.  He 

assured everyone that the our elected officials at the state and federal level as well as primary 

transportation commission members at those two levels are aware of the City of Woodstock and the needs 

relative to Rt. 47 and the railroad overpass as well as improvements to Rt. 14 and Rt. 176.   

 

Mayor Sager stated that the City has been successful in terms of lobbying the State legislature to get them 

to invest money into the Phase 1 efforts relative to Rt. 47 improvements and have lobbied to ensure that 

improvements to Rt. 14 between Crystal Lake and the City of Woodstock Rt. 47 include bicycle paths and 

the inclusion of a stoplight of Rt. 14 and Lake Shore Drive.  He advised that they have now been 

successful in those efforts and he believes it is expected at almost any time in terms of the Phase 1 report.   

 

Mayor Sager stated that the City was a little dismayed when it came to the next five year capital projects 

plan of the State of IL which did not include Phase 2 which includes the engineering and property 

acquisition elements.  He stated that they were concerned as it just holds it in the next five year plan, 

however, the City can now say that the State is willing to put it in the next five year plan and they did 

include a million dollars to initiate Phase 2 improvements on Rt. 47 from Reed Rd. north of Huntley to 

Rt. 14 in Woodstock and a second million dollars dedicated to initiating Phase 2 from Rt. 14 along Rt. 47 

north to Charles-Alden Rd.   

 

Mayor Sager stated that the City is pleased that they put it into the five year plan and dedicated two 

million dollars but there is a long way to go.  He stated that because of that the City believe it is essential 

to become much more aggressive to move forward with those efforts especially at the State level as they 

look at new capital funds.  He stated that the City wants to increase and continue that momentum.  He 

advised that we need to make sure it is passed through by the IL State Legislature and supported by the 

Federal Congressional Delegation.    

 

RB Thompson stated that the most effective groups working on behalf of the City are Mayor Sager and 

McCOG who have moved things along better than the hired professional.  He referenced the report and 

stated that according to Ms. Nardulli’s proposal she will partner with James A. DeLeo & Associates for 

assistance with lobbying.  He advised that she has banking and medical background as a lobbyist but she 

lacks the political whammy of doing roadways so she is hiring someone else.   

 



Woodstock City Council 

12/17/13 

Page 13 of 17 

 

Mayor Sager stated that her primary focus has been in the banking area and medical pharmaceutical area 

but because of her background she has huge connections with the entirety of the State Legislature.  He 

advised that she is working with another individual to extend the opportunity to the federal government 

that would be associated specifically with the concern of the railroad overpass.   He stated that it is the 

lobbying effort, experience and relationships that are the most significant aspect of it.  RB Thompson 

stated that Milton Sees had incredible contacts too. Mayor Sager stated that he didn’t have the hunger and 

this person has the definitive hunger.   

 

M. Turner stated what really makes them hungry is making it incentive based.  He stated that he supports 

the lobbying effort because it is the way it works unfortunately.  He stated that is how Huntley got their 

stuff done and Lakewood and Algonquin are using it too and Woodstock needs to play in the same 

sandbox.  He suggested putting something out there that is a bone saying that if you do the following 

things we will pay you a nice big number; it has to be meaty and worthwhile to us.  He said is not up for 

discussion tonight but he would like to see a proposal that says that the next time they renew a contract. 

 

J. Starzynski stated that one year from now after the City has spent $60,000, do we have a firm idea of 

what will make us happy. Mayor Sager stated that the City has to be able to expect from the individual 

that we have specific plan for moving this project through Phase 2 and into Phase 3 within a reasonable 

time frame; within this five year plan Phase 2 is near completion or has dedicated completion.  He wants 

to have within the next five years letting and construction on Rt. 47.  He stated that we need to know that 

his project is coming to fruition and we aren’t willing to sit back and be in the queue.  He stated that we 

emphasize the fact that we have been passionate as a community, played the noble partner and supported 

other communities in the County relative to projects and priorities.  It must continue especially given the 

fact that the improvement was north of Huntley which will send the traffic north and Rt. 47 north is where 

the emphasis and focus has to be.  He stated that we recognize that this is unfortunately the game; the 

squeaky wheel gets the grease.   

 

M. Turner stated that Mayor Sager articulated the goal of Phase 2 within five years and letting in five 

years after that.  M. Turner stated that if we get Phase 2 in three years, then he suggested cutting her a 

check for an extra $30,000.  Mayor Sager stated that it is a conversation they can have but noted that it 

wouldn’t be a part of this contract which is a one year contract.  

 

J. Starzynski stated that he agrees with M. Turner regarding rewarding her for getting it done faster and 

Mayor Sager stated that it is on the table.  M. Saladin stated that as tough as it is to approve a $60,000 

expenditure when the City doesn’t have a real way of calculating the benefit at the end of the year, these 

are the ground rules that unfortunately the State plays with and if that sum of money assists the City not 

only on the Rt. 47 project, which would be a multi-million dollar project, but on other projects.  M. 

Saladin stated that we can’t say she’s just lobbying on that particular issue.   

 

Mayor Sager stated that the City identified the fact that it wants to make sure that Rt. 14 gets let and 

constructed; we are tired of the postponements.  He stated that they also indicated to J. Nardulli that the 

City wants to make sure that she is aware of the community’s interest in the Old Courthouse and the types 

of things that will be supported.  M. Turner stated that he is good with the contract and the fact that it is 

one year and if she wants it renewed, it is an incentive to do a good job and show some progress.  He 

stated that he want Staff to put something on the table with her in the first quarter saying that Council is 

talking about long-term incentives for you.  

 

Mayor Sager stated that it is an investment and Council has a responsibility on behalf of the residents to 

shepherd these projects through in a timely manner.  He stated that they have a responsibility to stand up 

for the municipal resident’s needs relative to infrastructure improvements.  He noted the need to balance 

it with the costs associated with it and $60,000 is in the big picture a small amount of money but it is a 

huge amount of money in terms of investment the City is making.  We want to make sure we are mindful 



Woodstock City Council 

12/17/13 

Page 14 of 17 

 

of the efficient and appropriate use of the people’s dollars.  RB Thompson asked if they included the 

building out of the rail yard.  Mayor Sager affirmed and stated that they talked about the Metra expansion 

in both the rail yard parking function and a second depot. R. Stelford stated that is why there is also the 

need for federal assistance. 

 

Motion by M. Turner, second by RB Thompson to adopt Resolution 13-R-24 approving an agreement 

with Joyce Nardulli, LLC for Intergovernmental and Legislative Advocacy Professional Services. 

 

Andrew Celentano, 2116 Greenview Dr., Woodstock questioned if Council will get interim reports from 

Joyce Nardulli on what she is doing and Mayor Sager affirmed. 

 

A roll call vote was taken. Ayes: RB Thompson, M. Larson, J. Dillon, M. Saladin, Mayor Sager, M. 

Turner, J. Starzynski. Nays: None. Absentees: None. Abstentions: None. Motion carried. 

 

DISCUSSION ITEMS: 

6. Presentation by Hitchcock Design of the following: 

Tim King with Hitchcock Design Group introduced himself as well as Mark Underwood who 

is one of their Lead Designers.  T. King stated that they are planners and landscape architects 

that have worked on two items for the City.  He advised that they have been working with 

Staff and the Opera House Commission. 

 

a.) Gateway/Directional Signage 

T. King advised that they were asked to look at gateways into the city and directional 

signage potentially looking at ways to improve how people get to the City of 

Woodstock and into the Square.  He stated that the main routes/gateways that they 

looked at are on Rt. 120 and Rt. 47.  He reviewed the different signage types that 

currently exist and questioned if a consistent message could be portrayed throughout 

the different areas.  He advised that they looked at Calhoun Street, Lake Ave. and the 

Dean St. /Rt. 14 intersection.   He stated that the look, image and style of the Square is 

well done and they would like to take those elements out to the perimeter corridors and 

giving people especially those that the idea that the Square is not far and get them to it. 

 

M. Underwood stated that they came up with a kit of parts approach to it so the signs 

can be picked based on the application and how it gets applied. He stated that the city 

has a good start with the logo and image but there is the need to apply it in a more 

consistent way.  He talked about other opportunities besides the signs themselves such 

as applying banners in other areas that are more visible to gain the attention of vehicles.  

He discussed the idea of applying a logo pattern on the actual street taking people to the 

downtown area.  He suggested landscape improvements with the signs as well.  He 

advised that they are suggesting a phased approach and then reviewed the system for 

Calhoun and Rt. 47.  He then reviewed the budgeted costs associated with the signs. 

 

RB Thompson stated that we live in multi-seasonal area and he feels that painted logos 

on the street aren’t always going to visible in all situations.  M. Underwood stated that 

there are a lot of different things that can be done to indicate it is a special route. 

 

Mayor Sager stated that he likes the conceptual ideas that have been presented and he 

appreciates the foundation that has already been established and the efforts that have 

been made in the downtown area.  He believes some of the breadcrumb signs leading to 

the Square still have a purpose and a use and he thinks there is a need to take the next 

level in terms of the 2020 Vision Plan.  He stated that one of those things in keeping 

with the pavement marking was the idea of putting center lines done in brick leading 



Woodstock City Council 

12/17/13 

Page 15 of 17 

 

people to the downtown area.  He stated that he likes the richness of it, but noted that of 

course it can be translated to richness of cost and Council needs to be cognizant of 

using the dollars and measuring the impact of the dollars being expended. M. 

Underwood stated that is why they came up with a kit of parts so you can choose what 

you want to apply. 

 

M. Saladin questioned if there would be coordination with the Harley Davidson new 

location and gateway sign.  R. Stelford affirmed.  J. Starzynski questioned if it was 

thought to have the signage informative as well in regards to all the events going on in 

the Square.  He questioned if the sign on the corner at Calhoun could also tell people 

what is going on in the Square as well. 

 

Mayor Sager stated that was the purpose of the community sign by Burger King.  He 

stated that they had discussed with Panera Bread the possibility that as a community 

service they could provide some of that information on their electronic sign.  He 

pointed out that it is a state highway and there is only so much information that a driver 

can or should absorb.  Mayor Sager stated that he agrees that there is a need for that 

type of promotional effort. 

 

M. Larson questioned their experience with the treatment applied to the pavement and 

M. Underwood stated that it would be similar to thermoplastic paint that is typically 

applied to roadways and noted that with snow plows and everything else it will come 

off over time. Mayor Sager stated that he doesn’t know if it is practical in our 

environment.  M. Larson stated that the bricks can’t be done because of cost and that if 

this is an inexpensive option that created the same type of visual appearance can’t don 

the bricks she would be interested in hearing about it.  RB Thompson stated that they 

are nice ideas for improvement. 

 

b.) Woodstock Opera House Marquee 

T. King stated that they were also asked to look at how to potentially add a 

marquee/moving message type of sign associated with the Opera House.  He stated that 

the challenge is since it is a historic building doing something that is complementary 

and doesn’t disrupt the way it looks.  M. Underwood reviewed the two location options 

for the sign.  He reviewed the corner marquee concept and the Stage Left Café marquee 

concept.  He reviewed examples of LED signs and then presented the budget costs for 

both concepts. 

 

RB Thompson stated that it must show off the upcoming activity and be visible.  He 

asked John Scharres if the marquee placement on the corner would be a problem for 

people interested in filming by the Opera House.  J. Scharres stated that yes and no and 

noted that the company that came in recently had to deal with signage that is not period 

which they either mask in some way or shoot at a different angle.  He stated that he is 

pretty confident that people will be able to work around it.  He stated that with the 

street option, which he thinks is the best way, they will need to be really careful with 

the placement to minimize the visual obstruction to the building especially from the 

angle that is most often photographed from. 

 

Mayor Sager questioned if J. Scharres thinks the sign on the corner is the better option. 

J. Scharres stated that he kind of likes the sign on the café, but the problem is that it 

isn’t going to be as visible as they would like and it will have to be up high and people 

are going to have to look up.  He stated that it would really be for the pedestrian traffic 

and it will not catch the people driving through and around the corner.  Mayor Sager 



Woodstock City Council 

12/17/13 

Page 16 of 17 

 

stated that he likes the attached because it is in keeping with what the Woodstock 

Movie Theater did on Main Street.  He stated that he is concerned with visibility with 

the turn.  J. Scharres stated that will be the tricky part but noted that after looking at it 

they are confident that it can be located in a spot that isn’t going to obstruct visibility 

for people turning the corner.  

 

J. Dillon stated that she appreciates both options, but asked if there was any 

consideration given to signage on the Calhoun side.  M. Larson questioned putting the 

sign concept on Stage Left on the back side.  J. Dillon stated that she doesn’t like LED 

on the front of the building and feels that it diminishes the historic character.   

 

J. Scharres stated that even the back is considered part of the historic building. M. 

Larson questioned the back of Stage Left and J. Scharres stated that it is fair game from 

what he understands.  J. Dillon stated that she is disappointed that there wasn’t an 

option for the back.  J. Scharres stated that there have been more and more requests for 

people to put things up on the sidewalk and the users are convinced that out on 

sidewalk in front of the building is best visibility and sales tool. Mayor Sager and 

pedestrian traffic has the ability to see it right there, turn in and go to the ticket office.  

 

M. Turner questioned if a period piece sandwich sign work out there and J. Scharres 

stated that they have already done some of that but it constantly has to be repainted.  He 

stated that they used to do painted signs anchored to the columns on the entrances to 

the park but it became labor intensive.   

 

J. Starzynski stated that looking at the photos of Michigan Ave from the presentation 

show the signs as vertical not wide.  He thinks the sign for the Opera House is 

attractive but it looks like just another sign on the street. He believes something tall and 

lit would get people’s attention.  RB Thompson suggested more portrait than landscape.  

J. Starzynski referenced the visual impact of the new Woodstock Movie Theater sign. 

 

Mayor Sager stated that they are hearing a degree of enthusiasm and support from City 

Council for a sign but the element of design and approach still needs a bit of review to 

go through.  He stated that there is a need for some type of marquee associated with the 

Opera House but Council wants it properly placed and styled.  He advised that Council 

wants to keep going but need to look at and evaluate some other options.  M. Turner 

stated that he doesn’t like the corner one because it ruins the picture and angle is goofy; 

he likes the building sign.  Mayor Sager stated that they are supportive of a marquee 

sign but need to look at additional options and Council conceded.  

 

7. Discussion of Distressed Property 

Mayor Sager recommended postponing the item to a future agenda and Council conceded.   

 

Motion by M. Turner, second by M. Larson to postpone the item to time indefinite.  A roll call 

vote was taken. Ayes: RB Thompson, M. Larson, J. Dillon, M. Saladin, Mayor Sager, M. 

Turner, J. Starzynski. Nays: None. Absentees: None. Abstentions: None. Motion carried. 

 

EXECUTIVE SESSION 

Motion by M. Saladin, second by M. Turner to adjourn to Executive Session for the purpose of 

discussing: 

 

Personnel (Open Meeting Act: 5ILCS 120/2)(c)(1) 



Woodstock City Council 

12/17/13 

Page 17 of 17 

 

The appointment, employment, compensation, discipline, performance or dismissal of specific 

employees of the public body or legal counsel for the public body including hearing testimony on a 

complaint lodged against an employee of the public body or against legal counsel for the public body 

to determine its validity. 

 

A roll call vote was taken. Ayes: RB Thompson, M. Larson, J. Dillon, M. Saladin, Mayor Sager, M. 

Turner, J. Starzynski. Nays: None. Absentees: None. Abstentions: None. Motion carried. 

 

The Woodstock City Council adjourned to Executive Session at 9:53 PM. 

 

RETURN TO OPEN SESSION 

The City Council returned to Open Session at 11:32 PM.  A roll call was taken. 

 

COUNCIL MEMBERS PRESENT: RB Thompson, Maureen Larson, Julie Dillon, Mark Saladin, 

Michael Turner, Mayor Brian Sager, Joseph Starzynski 

 

COUNCIL MEMBERS ABSENT: None 

 

STAFF PRESENT: City Manager Roscoe Stelford, Chief of Police Robert Lowen, Deputy Chief John 

Lieb, HR Director Deb Schober, Finance Director Paul Christensen, City Attorney Richard Flood 

 

OTHERS PRESENT:  City Clerk Dianne Mitchell 

 

FUTURE AGENDA ITEMS 

No items were discussed. 

 

ADJOURNMENT: 

Motion by J. Starzynski, second by RB Thompson, to adjourn the regular meeting of the City Council to 

the next Regular Meeting on January 21, 2014. A roll call vote was taken. Ayes: RB Thompson, M. 

Larson, J. Dillon, M. Saladin, Mayor Sager, M. Turner, J. Starzynski. Nays: None. Absentees: None. 

Abstentions: None. Motion carried. 

 

Meeting adjourned at 11:33 PM. 

 

Respectfully submitted, 

 

___________________________ 

Dianne Mitchell - City Clerk 



MINUTES 

WOODSTOCK CITY COUNCIL 

EXECUTIVE SESSION 

December 17, 2013 

City Council Chambers 

 

The Executive Session of the Woodstock City Council was called to order at                  

by Mayor Brian Sager at 10:03 PM on Tuesday, December 17, 2013 in Council 

Chambers at Woodstock City Hall. 

 

A roll call was taken. 

 

COUNCIL MEMBERS PRESENT: RB Thompson, Maureen Larson, Julie Dillon, 

Mark Saladin, Michael Turner, Mayor Brian Sager, Joseph Starzynski 

 

COUNCIL MEMBERS ABSENT: None 

 

STAFF PRESENT: City Manager Roscoe Stelford, Chief of Police Robert Lowen, 

Deputy Chief John Lieb, HR Director Deb Schober, City Attorney Richard Flood 

 

OTHERS PRESENT:  City Clerk Dianne Mitchell 

 

DISCUSSION: 

 

Personnel (Open Meeting Act: 5ILCS 120/2)(c)(1) 

The appointment, employment, compensation, discipline, performance or dismissal 

of specific employees of the public body or legal counsel for the public body 

including hearing testimony on a complaint lodged against an employee of the 

public body or against legal counsel for the public body to determine its validity. 

 

The City Council discussed a personnel issue.  

 

RETURN TO OPEN SESSION: 

Motion by J. Dillon, second by M. Saladin, to adjourn from Executive Session and 

return to Open Session. Ayes: RB Thompson, M. Larson, J. Dillon, M. Saladin, Mayor 

Sager, M. Turner, J. Starzynski. Nays: None. Absentees: None. Abstentions: None. 

Motion carried.  Council adjourned to Open Session at 11:32 PM. 

 

Respectfully submitted, 

 

___________________________ 

Dianne Mitchell 

City Clerk 

















































































































































































MINUTES OF THE WOODSTOCK PUBLIC LIBRARY BOARD OF TRUSTEES 

 

President Pro Tem Lori Nerland called the November 7, 2013 meeting to order at 7:30 p.m. in 

the Board Room of the library.  

 

TRUSTEES PRESENT: Lori Nerland, Leslie Schubert, Robert Laurie, Gayle Hoch and Tara 

Muilkens (Mary Ann Lenzen arrived at 7:31 p.m.) 

 

ALSO PRESENT:  Nick Weber, Library Director 

   Stephanie Palmer, Administrative Assistant 

   Roscoe Stelford, City Manager 

(Mary Ryan, Children’s Librarian arrived at 7:45 p.m.) 

      

ABSENT: Dan Lemanski, Paul Lockwood, and Betty Hopp 

 

MINUTES: 

Tara Muilkens moved that the minutes of the regular October 3, 2013 meeting be approved as 

presented. Leslie Schubert seconded and the motion passed unanimously. 

 

PUBLIC COMMENT ON NON AGENDA ITEMS:   

 

APPROVAL OF EXPENDITURES:  

 Building Fund expenditures: Lori Nerland motioned to approve the building fund 

expenditures of $17,871.82. Leslie Schubert seconded and the motion passed 

unanimously.  

 

 Operating expenditures:  Mary Ann Lenzen motioned to approve the operating fund 

expenditures in the amount of $47,735.14. Lori Nerland seconded and the motion passed 

unanimously. 

 

LIBRARIAN’S REPORT:  

 

October has been a busy month with Halloween and Day of the Dead theme programs.  

Numerous holes in the flat-roof have been fixed by Waukegan Roofing this past month that were 

discovered during the roof inspection by BTC the full roof report detailing other existing 

problems is still pending.  The city council recognized several of our long term staff members in 

October.  Coming up in November Mary Ryan, Children’s Librarian will be going to NASA to 

witness the shuttle launch to Mars and learn space/science themed programs. The local history 

section is currently working on spending some grant money after finishing the encapsulation and 

digital upload of the 80
th

 year anniversary Woodstock Sentinel to LookatIllinois.info. 

 

 

 

 

 

 



UNFINISHED BUISNESS: 

 

Building Projects:  
The membrane on the roof has been repaired by Waukegan Roofing. A plumber will be out to 

take a look at the drain issue. West Side Mechanical was out to look at the aging roof units and at 

least one will need to be replaced soon. Other major issues still exist and the board is still 

awaiting the arrival of the full roof report from BTC to find out what the cause is. 

 

Strategic Planning:  

The board reviewed the top ten selected values and proposed mission and vision statement.   The 

discussion is set to continue next meeting when more board members are present.  

 

Building Repurposing:  

Magazines and Newspapers have already moved. Local History will be next to move down stairs 

pending that a few the computer stations will have to be moved. The fiction section will get some 

much needed shelf room by expanding the shelves one more unit. In the next few months the YA 

section will be going upstairs and further ahead will be the reconfiguration of the office space 

upstairs.    

 

NEW BUISNESS: 

 

Mary Ryan, Children’s Update:  

Mary Ryan came to formally introduce herself to the board as well as highlight some of the 

updates that have been happening in the children’s and young adult sections of the library: The 

physical collection has been rearranged in the children’s area. Tape cassettes have been weeded 

and the entire children’s Audio Visual collection can now be found in one area. The holiday 

materials have been pulled out from the collection and given a separate location. A seating area 

has been created using the pre existing furniture. The new young adult apartment will have its 

own nonfiction collection. Farmers Market Story Time was very successful this past summer in 

conjunction with the Summer Reading Program.  Mary has already found substitutes for her 

programs nest week while she at NASA. 

 (Mary Ryan left the meeting at 8:00 p.m. following her presentation) 

 

Concealed Carry:  

Discussion to continue pending feedback from the Police Chief and the City’s Human Resources 

Manager. 

 

Rural Contract:  

Lori Nerland made a motion to accept the Rural Library District Contract Ordinance 2013/2014-

4 setting the user fee at $ 36.00 starting May 1 2014. Gayle Hoch seconded and the motion 

passed unanimously 

 

Closed Minutes: 

 Lori Nerland made a motion that the closed minutes remained closed for another 6 months until 

they can be brought up for review again.  Mary Anne Lenzen seconded and the motion passed 

unanimously.  

 



Art Policy: 

 Discussion to continue next time. 

 

Meeting Room Policy: 

Mary Ann Lenzen made a motion to accept the Meeting Room Policy as corrected.  Lori Nerland 

seconded and the motion passed unanimously. 

 

Disaster Plan:  

Lori Nerland made a motion to accept the updated Disaster Plan. Mary Ann Lenzen seconded 

and the motion passed unanimously.   

 

Internet Usage Policy:  

Lori Nerland made a motion to accept the Internet usage Policy as corrected.  Leslie Schubert 

seconded and the motion passed unanimously.  

 

AT&T Bill Dispute Part II:  

Discussion to continue after receiving another bill from a different agency stating that the 

amount paid was only for the dispute credit not the entire disputed balance. 

 

( Roscoe Stelford, City Manager and Stephanie Palmer, Administrative Assistant left the meeting 

at 8:44 p.m.) 

 

EXECUTIVE SESSION:  

 

Personnel (Open Meetings Act 5ILCS 120/2(c)(1) 

Mary Ann Lenzen made the motion to go into closed session 8:50 p.m. for the purposes of 

discussing: The appointment, employment, compensation, discipline, performance, or dismissal 

of specific employees of the public body or legal counsel for the public body. Lori Nerland 

seconded and the motion passed. 

 

Yes: 

Mary Ann Lenzen, Lori Nerland, Leslie Schubert, Robert Laurie, Gayle Hoch and Tara Muilkens  

 

No: None 

 

President Mary Ann Lenzen called the executive session of the November 7, 2013 meeting of the 

Woodstock Public Library Board to order at 8: 55 p.m. in the Board Room of the library. 

 

TRUSTEES PRESENT: Mary Ann Lenzen, Lori Nerland, Leslie Schubert, Robert Laurie,  

Gayle Hoch and Tara Muilkens  

 

ALSO PRESENT: Nick Weber, Library Director 

      

ABSENT: Dan Lemanski, Paul Lockwood, and Betty Hopp 

 

Director Mid Year Evaluation 

 



RETURN TO OPEN SESSION:   Tara Muilkens made the motion to come out of closed 

session at 9:04 p.m. Leslie Schubert seconded, and the motion passed unanimously 

 

ADJOURNMENT:  
Lori Nerland moved to adjourn the meeting. Gayle Hoch seconded and the motion passed 

unanimously. The meeting adjourned at 9:04 p.m.  

 

NEXT MEETING:  December 5, 2013 

 



 

CITY OF WOODSTOCK 

TRANSPORTATION COMMISSION 

Special Meeting 

December 18, 2013 

City Council Chambers 

 

The special meeting of the Woodstock Transportation Commission was called to order at                                    

7:11 PM by Chairman Andrew Celentano on Wednesday, December 18, 2013 in Council 

Chambers at City Hall.  

 

A roll call was taken. 

 

COMMISSION MEMBERS PRESENT:  Chairman Andrew Celentano, Mark Indyke, Caron 

Wenzel 

 

COMMISSION MEMBERS ABSENT: Susan Hudson 

 

STAFF PRESENT:  Assistant Director of Public Works Jeff Van Landuyt, Economic 

Development Director Cort Carlson 

 

OTHERS PRESENT: City Clerk Dianne Mitchell, McDOT Transportation Planner Jason Osborn 

 

APPROVAL OF MINUTES:   
Approval of the August 21, 2013 Special Meeting minutes was tabled to the January meeting 

due to lack of quorum for voting. 

 

Approval of the September 18, 2013 Regular Meeting minutes was tabled to the January 

meeting due to lack of quorum for voting. 

 

Motion by C. Wenzel, second by M. Indyke to accept the October 16, 2013 Special Meeting 

minutes as presented.  Ayes: Chairman A. Celentano, C. Wenzel, M. Indyke. Nays: None. 

Absentees: S. Hudson. Abstentions: None.  Motion carried. 

 

Approval of the November 20, 2013 Regular Meeting minutes was tabled to the January 

meeting due to lack of quorum for voting. 

 

FLOOR DISCUSSION: 

 

Public Comments: 

Eberhard Veit, 3502 Kilkenny Dr, Crystal Lake, stated that he is the President of the McHenry 

County Bicycle Advocates.  He thanked the Commission and Woodstock High School for 

contacting him for input in regards to bicycling.  He stated that he enjoyed sharing his knowledge 

about bicycling in McHenry County and Woodstock with the students to help with their project.  

He encouraged them to contact him with any future questions and to use him as a resource for any 

future projects.  He encouraged them to move forward with the Woodstock Bicycle Plan and 

stated that a bike able and walk able city is what people value.   He encouraged working with 

neighboring communities and the County to connect Woodstock’s system with theirs. He 

encouraged going with low cost, high visibility projects such as signs for bike routes. He 

encouraged treating all changes to roads with the Complete Streets approach and noted that he has 

collected about 1,300 signatures from the County for their Complete Streets petition.  He stated 

that usually bike path improvements are a small fraction of the total road cost but has huge 



Transportation Commission 

12/18/13 
Page 2 of 6 

 

benefits.  He stated that bike paths for transportation and recreation are good for physical and 

mental health, are good for businesses and attracts tourists. 

 

Presentations to the Commission from Woodstock High School ‘Project Lead the Way’ 

Students 

Steven Thompson, Engineering and Design Development Teacher at Woodstock High School, 

stated that the program has taken quite an upturn with the improvements that were made.  He 

feels that these students got a really good look at engineering; they not only looked at 

engineering but actually did engineering.  He stated that because of the Commission’s efforts to 

bring in an expert of some sort, the students were able to do a deep dive into the problem to 

come to a solution of the problem.  He advised that he was quite impressed with their 

presentations and the work that they put in.  He stated that this was the best year in the three 

years of the program.  He thanked J. Van Landuyt, the Commission and all the experts that 

came in and worked with the kids. 

 

1. Creation of bus system for Woodstock since fuel prices are rising and people may need 

to depend more upon Public transportation 

Jonathan Loacker, Augie Scott, Joseph Primus, Alex Ferguson presented information on 

their project regarding a bus route crossing Woodstock.  They noticed that PACE 

ridership is low which is why they decided to do the project.  They reviewed the benefits 

of the system for Woodstock and discussed funding options.  The students presented 

information on the surveys that they used for their project focusing on the questions they 

used as well as the results.  They found that the top three reasons people would use a bus 

would be to go to Wal-Mart, the Square and Emricson Park.   

 

The students provided information on a bus route in Germany which they modeled their 

project after.  The students discussed the option of getting grants.  They reviewed the 

different route plans, destinations, bus options, ADA and features of the bus stop kiosks.  

The students reviewed safety issues associated with the bus and noted that they would 

use cameras on the buses and stops, lighting and a security guard riding at random times. 

 

The students reviewed their business plan for the project stating that they would use a 

call system or a phone app so people could call in or sign up for a bus route to go to their 

house that day and return them home later.  They advised that they wouldn’t want the 

route to be fixed as the traffic isn’t constant enough.  They reviewed the modified vans 

and features of the vans.  The students discussed their starting plan which includes 

starting with using one bus and then increasing as needed.  They reviewed the staff that 

would be needed for the bus program and the payment plans that would be associated 

with the bus program including a free or low cost plan. They reviewed their 

advertisement plan for the program which would include a billboard by the train station.   

 

The students stated that they altered their initial route and took out the loop over to 

Emricson Park so it is in more towards the shopping districts. They advised that the 

route would go from Farm and Fleet up Lake Ave. past Wal-Mart and then to the train 

station and then come back onto Rt. 47. They stated that if the system is improved they 

would need to hire employees, buy buses, set up an office and get advertisers. 

 

A. Celentano congratulated them on a job well done.  M. Indyke questioned how it is 

different from PACE and the students stated that it is specifically for Woodstock.  M. 



Transportation Commission 

12/18/13 
Page 3 of 6 

 

Indyke stated that PACE operates under the same scenario, you call them up and tell 

them where you want to go and they pick you up; it’s not a fixed route. 

 

J. Osborn questioned if there was a particular reason they focused on safety so much.  

The students a Woodstock police officer came and talked to them about safety.  J. 

Osborn stated that there are some business models that PACE uses but they are not 

tailored to communities.  He congratulated the students on their efforts and stated that 

they gave him a lot of food for thought. 

 

C. Wenzel questioned if one of the buses could be a touristy bus that comes out to the 

Square and asked the students if the idea crossed their minds.  The students noted that 

Alex Ferguson had thought of that possibility. She stated that they did a good job. 

 

J. Van Landuyt stated that the students did a very good job and noted that the students 

learned a lot during the process but noted that Staff has learned a great deal as well.  He 

stated that the interaction has been great. 

 

2. Implementation of Bicycle Rental Program here in Woodstock to get people out of 

petroleum fueled vehicles 

Kyle Hansen, Christian Ortiz and Sam Woodson presented information on their bike 

sharing program project.  The students reviewed the reasons why they chose the bike 

program project which would promote a healthy lifestyle and offer an affordable means 

of transportation.  They reported that they reviewed other programs and found that they 

all used similar bike racks.   

 

The students reviewed information on the hub which would be the main storage area, the 

maintenance area for the bikes and would serve as a store as well.  They reviewed the 

results from the survey they conducted which showed that 66.7% said that there are not 

enough bike paths in Woodstock.  Their results also showed that most people would not 

rent a bike which the students believed was due to the fact that there aren’t any bike 

paths.  They reviewed locations in the U.S. and other countries that do this type of 

program and explained how the program works.   

 

They stated that they researched Divvy Bikes of Chicago and found that the biggest 

complaint that people had was the requirement to return the bike every half hour.  The 

students advised that it is due to the fact that Chicago is so large and the bikes need to be 

tracked.  They noted that Woodstock is smaller and people could rent the bikes for 

longer amounts of time.   

 

The students reported that a police officer talked to them about safety and they reviewed 

the safety and security processes they would put in place.  They discussed the different 

options for the GPS units that could be used for the bikes.   

 

The students reviewed the costs involved with the project for the cameras, bikes, GPS 

and bike racks.  They reported that bikes can range from $500 - $1000 each and one 

station would be about $25,000.  The students reviewed the City Costs which would 

include the completion of bike paths.  They discussed connectivity of the program with 

surrounding communities.  They reviewed the need for bike routes and noted that if there 

is a desire to expand to other cities then there would be a lot of construction needed.  The 



Transportation Commission 

12/18/13 
Page 4 of 6 

 

students stated that there plan includes having fifteen bike racks placed around 

Woodstock.  They thanked everyone that helped them and hoped that the rental bike 

program would become a reality. 

 

C. Wenzel asked if they had any potential bike routes.  The students advised that they 

drew up a few bike route plans but weren’t able to include them in the presentation.  

 

J. Osborn questioned why they focused on bike trails and stated that for every road in 

McHenry County except for I90 bicyclists are legal users.  He questioned if they found 

from their surveys that students feel more comfortable with trails separate from the road.  

The student presenters advised that people don’t feel safe riding on some of the roads 

now and bike lanes would be important.  They noted that most people don’t know that 

most bikes can be ridden on the road with card and they don’t know the rules, which is 

why they prefer bike trails because they are in less danger than riding with the cars. 

 

M. Indyke questioned if they figured out a fee for the program and the students stated 

that the fee would be based on renting the bike at a rate of $7-$10 per day. 

 

J. Osborn stated that when Divvy was started in Chicago, the city was behind many of 

the other cities but now within a year they have them almost every quarter mile 

throughout most of the city.  He stated that it has really taken off and noted that there has 

been such a change in behavior and more bicycling is going on now.  He stated that it is 

really amazing what bike rental programs might do to shift the paradigm in terms of 

what can be done to circulate people.   He stated that these systems have greatly 

transformed how we think about how to get around cities.  He stated that it is a really 

cool project that the students did. 

 

C. Wenzel questioned if the Divvy program could put one of their kiosks out by the train 

station.  The students reported that they did look into it and noted that it is one big 

company that owns Divvy and other biking rental services.  They advised that you can 

go onto their web site to contact them and they might actually be able to bring out one of 

their racks.  C. Wenzel questioned if the Divvy bikes have GPS in them and the students 

were not exactly sure but assumed they did and noted that Divvy has people going 

around maintaining their racks and keeping track of the number of bikes on the rack. 

 

A. Celentano stated that he liked that the students looked at other countries as well as 

other US cities.  He stated that the students’ presentation is commendable and noted that 

it will go into the queue and someday they might see it.  J. Van Landuyt emphasized the 

effort and thought that they students put into something that they knew nothing about not 

too long ago and commended them for doing a great job. 

 

A. Celentano acknowledged Cort Carlson, Officer Mortimer, Eberhard Veit, and 

Elizabeth Gonzalez from PACE for coming out and talking to the students.   

 

TRANSMITTALS:  (No discussion or action requested) 

1. Bicycle Driving – Sidepaths (http://bicycledriving.org/bikeways/sidepaths) 

2. Ongoing cuts to education problematic—NWH 11/4/13 

3. Streetcars return to U.S. cities—NWH 11/13/13 

4. LITH fears changes will hurt businesses—11/13/13 



Transportation Commission 

12/18/13 
Page 5 of 6 

 

A. Celentano wants to use this report to resurrect the discussion regarding frontage roads. 

5. Public Transportation Reduces Greenhouse Gases and Conserves Energy (APTA) 

6. Fixed Route Service Rider’s Guide - PACE 

 

OLD BUSINESS: 

1. Consideration of revisions and acceptance of Chapter 3 – 2005 Transportation Plan 

A. Celentano referenced page 13 and suggested adding “critical to growth” to the first 

paragraph.   J. Osborn referenced the 5
th

 bullet and stated that “residential” should be 

crossed off and instead should be “new development.” 

 

 The group started discussing issue with bicyclists and E. Veit stated that with regards to 

bike planning it has been shown that multi-use trails especially if they are only on one side 

of the road are good when there aren’t any interferences.  He stated that if you have the 

trail and there is a driveway every few hundred yards, then the people on the trail think 

they are safe and have priority and they keep going without consideration for a potential 

conflict with a car exiting or entering the driveway.  He stated that traffic on the trail is not 

safe because cars don’t expect you to be there.  He advised having on-road bicycle 

accommodations like a bike lane. He stated that there are tools on the bicyclist web sites.  

He advised that it is a lot different if you have a county road to in-city roads and noted that 

trails are not the solution to all things.  A. Celentano asked for clarification; if you have 

long distance to go and there isn’t a lot of traffic then trails are the way to go but otherwise 

they should be on the street?  E. Veit advised making the outside lane wider and putting a 

bike lane to go along with traffic. 

 

 A. Celentano referenced page 14 and stated that “ADA” should be added to the last 

paragraph.  J. Osborn stated that the regulations are changing and advised that the 

Department of Justice came out with new guidelines called Public Right of Way 

Accessible Guidelines (PROWAG) that replace a lot of the ADA. He stated that they 

should use language that mirrors the national standards instead of acronyms because the 

acronyms keep changing.  The group felt it should say “according to federal standards or 

regulations.”   

 

 C. Wenzel referenced Page 15 and stated that access to schools should be the absolute 

priority and money should go there first. A. Celentano questioned if it would an 

overarching thing.  J. Osborn stated that the document says the City needs to work with 

District 200, but noted that if District 200 isn’t interested in working with the City on these 

issues then he questioned how much of a priority it should be.   

 

 C. Wenzel referenced the Apple Creek issue and stated that connectivity to schools should 

be the emphasis. A. Celentano questioned if the City of Woodstock is working with 

District 200 and J. Van Landuyt said that if they are using the Apple Creek Development, 

as an example, more effort needs to be made on both sides to assure that students can get 

to school safely no matter which option they use for transportation.  M. Indyke noted that 

the City is currently working with D200 in some areas like the grant project for sidewalks 

around the schools. The group discussed if connectivity is emphasized enough in the 

document. 

 

 J. Osborn asked if they have given any thought on how to quantify the list of goals and 

objectives at the end of the Chapter? When you look at these goals and objectives, you 



Transportation Commission 

12/18/13 
Page 6 of 6 

 

need to determine whether they are still a priority.  A. Celentano stated that it is a moving 

target and J. Osborn advised that is why you have to measure it because it helps you 

evaluate the effectiveness of your plan over time. He advised that he can provide a list of 

ideas that can be used to measure the effectiveness of the plan.   

 

 C. Wenzel stated that she visualizes kids walking to school nowhere near District 200 

property which then becomes a City issue.  M. Indyke stated that they have to deal with 

what they can control which are the streets within Woodstock. The group discussed the 

locations of schools and C. Wenzel stated that she is concerned with the schools within the 

city limits and connectivity within the defined parameter or polygon. A. Celentano stated 

that the Commission should only be concerned with connectivity within Woodstock.   

 

 J. Osborn questioned if the Safe Routes to School program has made much progress. J. 

Van Landuyt advised it has completed as much as the City can afford and has time to 

complete.  C. Wenzel suggesting asking District 200 if they have had an increase in 

walkers and bicycle riders.  A. Celentano questioned if the importance of connectivity and 

the school pedestrian access should be rewritten in the document and J. Van Landuyt 

advised that Staff will look at it. 

 

 A. Celentano suggested pushing the continued review of the transportation plan Chapter 3 

in January and the Commission conceded. 

 

NEW BUSINESS: 
1. None 

 

FUTURE AGENDA ITEMS 

1. Continued Review of Transportation Plan – January 2014 Meeting   

2. Pedestrian Crossings – IL Rt. 47 - January 2014 Meeting 

3. Discussion on Frontage Roads along Rt. 47 Corridor– February 2014 Meeting 

4. Prioritizing Sidewalks – February 2014 Meeting  

5. Bike Rental Plan – Discussion and Recommendation - March 2014 Meeting 

 

ADJOURNMENT: 

Motion by C. Wenzel, second by M. Indyke to adjourn the regular meeting of the Woodstock 

Transportation Commission to the regular meeting January 15, 2014 @ 7:00 PM.  Ayes: 

Chairman A. Celentano, C. Wenzel, M. Indyke. Nays: None. Absentees: S. Hudson. 

Abstentions: None.  Motion carried. 

 

Meeting adjourned at 8:33PM. 
 

Respectfully submitted, 

 

___________________________ 

Dianne Mitchell - City Clerk 



 

Memo 
To: Mr. Roscoe Stelford, City Manager 

 Honorable Mayor and City Council Members 

From: Paul Christensen, Finance Director 

Date: January 6, 2014 

Re: Abatement of Property Taxes for Alternate Revenue Bonds. 

Over the years the City has initiated several bond issuances to finance a wide variety of major 

capital improvement projects that included the construction of two new facilities (i.e., Aquatic 

Center and Police Facility), the expansion/renovation of several existing facilities (i.e., 

Southside Wastewater Treatment Plant, Library, Seminary Avenue Treatment Plant, Opera 

House Annex and, most recently, the First Street Water Treatment Plant), the purchase, 

conversion and expansion of an existing building (i.e., Community Recreation Center), the 

development of two new parks (i.e., Davis Road Soccer Complex and Merryman Fields Park) 

and the construction of infrastructure improvements (i.e., expansion of Lake Avenue, 

improvements to McConnell Road and infrastructure for the Woodstock Station site).   

 

In 2004 and 2005 the City was able to partially refund several outstanding bond issues, 

generating future interest savings and reducing future bond payments by more than $600,000, 

which will have a direct financial benefit for Woodstock taxpayers.  In addition, the City also 

completed an advanced refunding in 2010 for various Alternate Revenue Bond issuances, 

resulting in generating another $220,000 in net present value savings; and most recently in 

2013, the City refunded two more bond issues resulting in another $137,000 of net present 

value savings.  

 

Due to the successful passage of two referendums, the City was able to issue General 

Obligation Bonds for the construction of the Aquatic Center and expansion of the Library.  

General Obligation Bonds are paid directly by the residents through the form of a property tax.  

For the remaining projects, the City has issued Alternate Revenue Bonds to provide the 

necessary financing.  Alternate Revenue Bonds provide for the use of a property tax levy as a 

potential payment source; however, this form of financing’s primary pledge for repayment is 

an “alternate” revenue source.  The inclusion of a property tax levy to serve as a possible 

repayment source provides bondholders with additional security and is, therefore, 

compensated through lower interest rates resulting in long-term savings for the City.  As a 

result of using Alternate Revenue Bonds, every year the City Administration reviews financial 

information for the funds which are required to provide revenue resources for bond 

Finance Department  
       City of   

                

 

121 W. Calhoun Street  
Woodstock, I l l inois   60098  
815/338-4300 
Fax 815/334-2269 

mamraen
Typewritten Text
January 21, 2014 City CouncilManager's Report 16a



repayments in the upcoming fiscal year and verifies that those payments can be made based on 

the revenues and available cash balances generated in the current fiscal year.  The City 

Administration then drafts the appropriate Ordinances that instruct the County to abate the 

property tax for each of the City’s Alternate Revenue Bond issues. 

 

The use of debt financing has allowed the City to improve its existing infrastructure and 

construct new facilities to meet the community’s growing needs without placing an additional 

burden on the City’s taxpayers.  Moreover, debt financing allocates the costs of these new 

improvements to be spread over the same period as the benefits are derived by the public.  

Details regarding each of the City’s outstanding bonds have been provided below. 

 

In 2000, the City Council adopted Ordinance Number 00-O-29 authorizing the issuance of 

$4,000,000 in General Obligation Bonds (Alternate Revenue Source) to be used to construct a 

new police facility.  At the same meeting, the City Council adopted Ordinance Number 00-O-

30 to issue $500,000 in General Obligation Bonds (Alternate Revenue Source) for the purpose 

of augmenting the General Obligation Bonds for construction of a new aquatic center.  In 

addition, the City Council adopted Ordinance Number 00-O-31 authorizing the issuance of 

$500,000 in General Obligation Bonds (Alternate Revenue Source) again to augment the 

General Obligation Bonds for the purpose of an addition to the City’s public library.  In 2001, 

the City Council adopted Ordinance Number 01-O-28 to issue $1,635,000 in General 

Obligation Bonds (Alternate Revenue Source) for the purpose of constructing the Opera 

House Annex. 

 

The City Council authorized three bond issuances in 2002.  Ordinance 02-O-108 approved the 

sale of $4,100,000 in bonds for the construction of the Seminary Avenue Water Treatment 

Plant Expansion.  This Ordinance also provided for the issuance of $2,110,000 to refinance an 

existing Tax Increment Financing (TIF) loan and construct the necessary infrastructure 

improvements on the Die Cast site.  The Bond Ordinance also included the issuance of 

$465,000 to purchase the remaining parcel to consolidate the Die Cast site.  In 2003 the City 

Council adopted Ordinance 03-O-14 for the issuance of $1,500,000 in Debt Certificates 

through Harris Bank to purchase the Woodstock Athletic Club and convert the existing 

structure to a Community Recreation Center.  

 

The City Council authorized three bond issues in 2004 to complete partial refunding 

transactions for several of the City’s outstanding bonds.  The Series 2004A General 

Obligation Bonds (issued for $3,085,000) were used to refund a portion of the Series 2000A 

General Obligation Bonds, which were originally issued to construct the Aquatic Center.  The 

Series 2004B General Obligation Bonds (Alternate Revenue Source, issued for $3,155,000) 

were used to refund a portion of the Series 2000B Alternate Revenue Source Bonds, which 

were originally issued to finance the construction of the Police Facility.  The Series 2004F 

General Obligation Bonds (Alternate Revenue Source, issued for $3,650,000) were used to 

refund a portion of the City’s 1996 Water & Sewer Bonds, which were originally issued to 

renovate and expand the southside wastewater treatment plant.  Overall, the three partial 

refundings completed in 2004 generated over $500,000 in savings on a net present value basis 

for the City.  The 2004A General Obligation Bonds will not require an Abatement Ordinance, 



since these bonds refunded existing bonds currently being paid through a property tax levy 

that was previously approved by referendum. 

 

The City Council decided to continue to take advantage of a favorable debt market by 

authorizing two additional bond issuances in 2005.  The Series 2005A General Obligation 

Bonds ($2,270,000) were issued to refinance a portion of the 1999 General Obligation Bonds.  

The 1999 General Obligation Bonds were originally issued to finance the construction of the 

Library expansion.  The refunding resulted in the City generating a net present value savings 

of $114,900, which will directly benefit Woodstock taxpayers through future property tax 

relief.  The City also issued $6,545,000 as Series 2005B General Obligation (Alternate 

Revenue Source) Bonds to provide funding for the development of two new park sites (Davis 

Road Soccer Complex and the Merryman Fields Park) and the construction of roadway 

improvements for Lake Avenue and McConnell Road.   

 

The 2013A and 2005A General Obligation Bonds are to be repaid through a property tax, as 

authorized by the enabling referendum, and have already been properly abated in 2005 and 

more recently in 2013 to adjust the remaining payments to accurately reflect the reduction in 

the property tax levy realized by the refunding transactions that have taken place.  Therefore, a 

Bond Abatement Ordinance will not be required to be reviewed by the City Council for these 

issuances.   

 

The Series 2005B General Obligation (Alternate Revenue) Bonds will be repaid through a 

variety of revenue streams.  The Lake Avenue improvements, which included the expansion 

of this roadway to service the Wal-Mart store and enhance economic development within the 

community, will be repaid through sales taxes reported in the General Corporate Fund.  These 

debt service payments are being offset by the collection of sales taxes from the 

aforementioned Wal-Mart store.  Telecommunication Tax revenues and Restricted Developer 

Contributions reported in the General Corporate – CIP Fund will be utilized to repay the 

bonds issued for the McConnell Road improvements.  The Alternate Revenue Bonds issued to 

fund the Davis Road Soccer Complex were to be repaid in part from the Environmental 

Management Fund (80%) to compensate for the additional costs resulting from the adaptive 

reuse of the landfill and the remainder funded through the Park Development Fund (20%).  

Moreover, the Park Development Fund was responsible for the entire bond payment related to 

the costs for the development of the new Merryman Fields Park.  

 

In FY08/09, the City Council adopted Ordinance 08-O-41, which authorized the issuance of 

$3.4 million in General Obligation (Waterworks and Sewerage Alternate Revenue) Bonds for 

the purpose of constructing several improvements to the First Street Water Treatment Plant.  

As an additional benefit, the modernization and renovation of this treatment plant will also 

result in a limited increase in the future capacity of this plant.  The City has pledged the Water 

and Sewer revenues for the repayment of these bonds. 

 

In response to a poor economic climate and a favorable interest rate market, the City 

Administration reviewed the outstanding debt obligations to determine if any additional 

savings could be derived through the completion of an advanced refunding.  As a result, the 

City Council adopted Ordinance 10-O-34 at its June 15, 2010 meeting that authorized the 



issuance of $6,515,000 in Alternate Revenue Refunding Bonds to refinance a portion of six 

various Alternate Revenue Bonds to achieve lower interest rates and generate a net present 

value savings in excess of $220,000.   

 

Specifically, the Series 2010A Alternate Revenue Refunding Bonds (issued for $1,425,000) 

were used to refund a portion of the Series 2000C Alternate Revenue Bonds, which were 

originally issued to construct the Aquatic Center, and the Series 2001B Alternate Revenue 

Bonds, which were originally issued to finance the construction of the Opera House Annex.  

The Series 2010B Alternate Revenue Refunding Bonds (issued for $350,000) were used to 

refund a portion of the Series 2000D Alternate Revenue Source Bonds, which were originally 

issued to finance the construction of improvements to the Woodstock Public Library.  The 

Series 2010C Alternate Revenue Refunding Bonds (issued for $1,475,000) were used to 

refund a portion of the City’s 2002E Alternate Revenue Bonds, which were originally issued 

to construct infrastructure improvements in the TIF District.  The Series 2010D Alternate 

Revenue Refunding Bonds (issued for $2,940,000) were used to refund a portion of the City’s 

2002F Alternate Revenue Bonds, which were originally issued to construct an expansion to 

the City’s Seminary Avenue Treatment Plant.  The Series 2010E Alternate Revenue 

Refunding Bonds (issued for $325,000) were used to refund a portion of the City’s 2002G 

Alternate Revenue Bonds, which were originally issued to refinance a bank loan for the TIF 

District. 

 

In August of 2013, the City Council again took advantage of low interest rates and refinanced 

the 2004A General Obligation Bonds, which were used for the Aquatic Center and 2004B 

Alternate Revenue Bonds which built the Police Facility with 2013A General Obligation 

Refunding Bonds and 2013B Alternate Revenue Refunding Bonds, respectively.  The net 

present value savings from this refinancing was $137,000 

 

A chart of the City’s current outstanding debt has been provided below: 

 

 

Bond Issue GO Orginal

Balance as of 

4-30-14 FYE 2015 PMT Call Date Materity Date Purpose

2003 N 1,500,000                     813,000 112,738              1/1/2023 Rec Center

2004F N 3,650,000        1,155,000        410,848              11/1/2014 11/1/2016 Water&Sewer

2005A Y 2,270,000        1,450,000        328,000              1/1/2015 1/1/2019 Library

2005B N 6,545,000        4,365,000        499,675              1/1/2015 1/1/2025 4 Projects

2008A N 3,400,000        2,710,000        261,493              7/1/2018 1/1/2028 1st Treatment Plnt

2010A N 1,425,000        1,015,000        169,365              6/1/2020 12/1/2020 Pool & Opera

2010B N 350,000            240,000            41,780                None 12/1/2019 Library

2010C N 1,475,000        1,110,000        158,899              6/1/2020 12/1/2021 TIF

2010D N 2,940,000        2,210,000        322,478              6/1/2020 12/1/2021 Water&Sewer

2010E N 325,000            240,000            37,358                6/1/2020 12/1/2021 TIF

2013A Y 1,825,000        1,805,000        334,150              None 1/1/2020 Pool

2013B N 1,860,000        1,840,000        340,200              None 1/1/2020 Police Station

2005B Projects

Walmart 850,000            570,000            63,463                

McConnell Road 935,000            625,000            70,725                

David Rd Fields 2,835,000        1,890,000        217,800              

Merryman Park 1,925,000        1,280,000        147,687              

Total 2005B 6,545,000        4,365,000        499,675              



As previously mentioned, all of the above-referenced Ordinances provide for the levy of an 

additional property tax to pay for the annual debt service of each bond issue should they be 

required.  These provisions were included within each Ordinance to provide, if need be, a 

back-up revenue source and thereby allow the City to achieve the best possible interest rate for 

the sale of the bonds.  However, due to sound financial management, the City does not need to 

use a property tax levy to repay these debt service requirements.  Attached to this 

memorandum is a Revenue Analysis that provides detailed information for anticipated 

revenues collected in FY13/14 and, therefore, pledged for the bond payments in FY14/15.   

The City Administration will include as part of the FY14/15 Budget preparation the 

aforementioned bond payments.  Based on this analysis, sufficient revenues and fund balances 

are anticipated in the Water & Sewer, Water & Sewer Capacity, General Corporate, General 

Corporate – CIP, Debt Service, TIF, Environmental Management, and Library Building Funds 

to pay the FY14/15 principal/interest payments.   

However, due to a limited economic recovery, especially in the area of new construction, 

which has resulted in a significant, long-term decline to all impact fees for the sixth 

consecutive year, the Park Development Fund is not projected to generate adequate 

revenues in FY14/15 to meet its outstanding debt service obligations and will have 

insufficient fund reserves to provide for the difference.  Therefore, the City 

Administration will be proposing within the FY14/15 Budget submittal to the City 

Council to continue to redirect the repayment of these obligations to the City’s General 

Corporate – CIP and Environmental Management Funds.  This will reduce the already 

limited balances that will be available in FY14/15 to meet the City’s comprehensive capital 

improvement needs.  

Even in light of the current economic climate, Ordinances directing the McHenry County 

Clerk to abate the property taxes for this year as provided for within the original Bond 

Ordinances are recommended for adoption.  Since the City utilized Debt Certificates for the 

purchase, expansion and conversion of the Community Recreation Center, a Bond Abatement 

Ordinance will not be required for this debt instrument.  However, the other Alternate 

Revenue Bonds issued by the City will require the adoption of Abatement Ordinances.  This 

abatement will be for the 2013 property tax levy, to be collected in calendar year 2014.  Under 

the provisions of the original bond ordinances, each abatement is to be reviewed and 

considered by the City Council on an annual basis. 

 

It is recommended that the attached Ordinance, identified as Document Number 

_____1_____ abating the additional tax imposed by Ordinance Number 02-O-108, 

supplemented by Ordinance Number 04-O-26, and further supplemented by Ordinance 

Number 13-O-42, General Obligation Bonds (Alternate Revenue Source) Series 2013B, 

issued for the purpose of refunding a portion of the Series 2004B Alternate Revenue 

Source Bonds, be adopted. 

 

It is recommended that the attached Ordinance, identified as Document Number 

_____2_____ abating the additional tax imposed by Ordinance Number 02-O-108 and 

supplemented by Ordinance Number 04-O-15, General Obligation Bonds (Alternate 



Revenue Source) Series 2004F, issued for the purpose of refunding a portion of the 

Series 1996 Water & Sewer Alternate Revenue Source Bonds, be adopted. 

 

It is recommended that the attached Ordinance, identified as Document Number 

____3_____ abating the additional tax imposed by Ordinance Number 05-O-70, General 

Obligation Bonds (Alternate Revenue Source) Series 2005B, issued for the purpose of 

constructing improvements to roadways and parks, and modified by Ordinance #05-O-

99, which abated a portion of the related debt service payments, be adopted. 

 

It is recommended that the attached Ordinance, identified as Document Number 

____4____ abating the additional tax imposed by Ordinance Number 08-O-41, General 

Obligation Bonds (Alternate Revenue Source) Series 2008A, issued for the purpose of 

constructing improvements to the First Street Water Treatment Plant be adopted. 

 

It is recommended that the attached Ordinance, identified as Document Number 

_____5_____ abating the additional tax imposed by Ordinance Number 10-O-34, 

General Obligation Bonds (Alternate Revenue Source) Series 2010A, issued for the 

purpose of refunding a portion of the Series 2000C Alternate Revenue Source Bonds 

(Aquatic Center) and the Series 2001B Alternate Revenue Source Bonds (Opera House 

Annex), be adopted. 

 

It is recommended that the attached Ordinance, identified as Document Number 

_____6_____ abating the additional tax imposed by Ordinance Number 10-O-34, 

General Obligation Bonds (Alternate Revenue Source) Series 2010B, issued for the 

purpose of refunding a portion of the Series 2000D Alternate Revenue Source Bonds 

(Library Improvements), be adopted. 

 

It is recommended that the attached Ordinance, identified as Document Number 

_____7____ abating the additional tax imposed by Ordinance Number 10-O-34, General 

Obligation Bonds (Alternate Revenue Source) Series 2010C, issued for the purpose of 

refunding a portion of the Series 2002E Alternate Revenue Source Bonds (TIF 

Infrastructure Improvements), be adopted. 

 

It is recommended that the attached Ordinance, identified as Document Number 

_____8____ abating the additional tax imposed by Ordinance Number 10-O-34, General 

Obligation Bonds (Alternate Revenue Source) Series 2010D, issued for the purpose of 

refunding a portion of the Series 2002F Alternate Revenue Source Bonds (Seminary 

Avenue Water Treatment Plant Expansion), be adopted. 

 

It is recommended that the attached Ordinance, identified as Document Number 

_____9____ abating the additional tax imposed by Ordinance Number 10-O-34, General 

Obligation Bonds (Alternate Revenue Source) Series 2010E, issued for the purpose of 

refunding a portion of the Series 2002G Alternate Revenue Source Bonds (TIF Loan 

Refunding), be adopted. 

 

Should you have any questions, please do not hesitate to contact me. 

rstelford
Approved



City of Woodstock
Debt Service Payments

Revenue Analysis

Related Anticipated

Original Debt Revenues Revenues Total

Document Ordinance Bond Pledged Service Through Remaining Anticipated

Number Number Series Project Fund Revenues Payment 12/31/2013 for FY13/14 Revenues

2 04-O-15 2004F

Water & Sewer 

Refunding Water & Sewer Water & Sewer Revenues 410,848$        2,875,000$        1,437,500$     

4 08-O-41 2008A

First Street Water 

Treatment Plant Water & Sewer Water & Sewer Revenues 261,493          

Subtotal 672,341          2,875,000          1,437,500       4,312,500        

1 13-O-42 2013B

Police Facility 

Refunding General Corporate - CIP

Telecommunications Tax 

and Capital Expansion 

Fees - Police 340,200          496,143             245,000          

3 05-O-69 2005B

McConnell Road 

Improvements General Corporate - CIP

Telecommunications Tax 

and Developer 

Contributions 70,725            

Subtotal 410,925          496,143             245,000          741,143           

5 10-O-34 2010A

Aquatic Center - 

2000C Refunding General Corporate Sales Tax 41,833            2,346,612          1,134,000       

3 05-O-69 2005B Lake Ave. Expansion General Corporate Sales Tax 63,463            

5 10-O-34 2010A

Opera House Annex - 

2001B - Refunding

General Corporate/Debt 

Service

Sales Tax, Ticket 

Surcharges & Fund Raising 127,532          

Subtotal 232,828          2,346,612          1,134,000       3,480,612        

6 10-O-34 2010B

Library Building - 

2000D - Refunding Library Building

Property Tax & Developer 

Fees 41,780            122,639             10,000            132,639           

Subtotal 41,780            122,639             10,000            132,639           

7 10-O-34 2010C

Die Cast Infrastructure 

& Refinancing - 2002E 

- Refunding

Tax Increment Financing 

Fund

Tax Increment Property 

Taxes 158,899          627,236             -                  

9 10-O-34 2010E

Die Cast Property 

Purchase - 2002G -

Refunding

Tax Increment Financing 

Fund

Tax Increment Property 

Taxes 37,358            

Subtotal 196,257          627,236             -                  627,236           

8 10-O-34 2010D

Seminary Avenue 

Treatment Plant 

Expansion - 2002F -

Refunding Bonds Water & Sewer Capacity

Water & Sewer Capital 

Expansion Fees 322,478          360,718             40,000            400,718           

N/A 03-O-14 2003A

Community Recreation 

Center

Recreation Center & Park 

Development Funds

Membership Dues & Park 

Development Impact Fees 112,738          295,539             142,000          437,539           

3 05-O-69 2005B

Daivs Road Soccer 

Complex

Environmental 

Management (80%) & 

Park Development (20%)

Env. Mgmt. Property Tax, & 

Park Development Impact 

Fees 217,800          442,392             2,000              444,392           

3 05-O-69 2005B

Merryman Fields 

Park

Park Development 

Funds

Park Development Impact 

Fees 147,687          49,374               4,000              53,374             

Totals 2,354,834$     7,615,653$        3,014,500$     1,468,662$      



ORDINANCE NO. 14-O-________ 

 

AN ORDINANCE ABATING THE LEVY OF THE ADDITIONAL TAX 

IMPOSED FOR THE PURPOSE OF BORROWING MONEY AND ISSUING 

$1,860,000 PRINCIPAL AMOUNT GENERAL OBLIGATION REFUNDING 

BONDS (ALTERNATE REVENUE SOURCE), SERIES 2013B, OF THE CITY OF 

WOODSTOCK, MCHENRY COUNTY, ILLINOIS, FOR THE PURPOSE OF 

REFUNDING A PORTION OF THE CITY OF WOODSTOCK’S SERIES 2004B 

GENERAL OBLIGATION BONDS (ALTERNATE REVENUE SOURCE) 

 

 

 

 WHEREAS, the CITY OF WOODSTOCK, McHenry County, Illinois did on 

August 20, 2013, authorize the issuance of $1,860,000 General Obligation Bonds 

(Alternate Revenue Sources), Series 2013B, for the purpose of refunding a portion of the 

City of Woodstock’s Series 2004B General Obligation Bonds (Alternate Revenue 

Source); and 

 

 WHEREAS, there is provided by the terms of said Ordinance, the imposition of 

an additional tax to pay the annual principal and interest payments as required in said 

Ordinance; and 

 

 WHEREAS, the revenues of the General Corporate - CIP Fund of the CITY OF 

WOODSTOCK are sufficient to meet the obligations of said Ordinance without the 

imposition of such additional tax; 

 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED by the Mayor and City Council of the CITY 

OF WOODSTOCK, McHenry County, Illinois as follows: 

 

Section One:  The tax imposed by Ordinance Number 13-O-42 entitled “AN 

ORDINANCE AUTHORIZING THE ISSUANCE OF GENERAL OBLIGATION 

REFUNDING BONDS, SERIES 2013A, GENERAL OBLIGATION REFUNDING 

BONDS (ALTERNATE REVENUE SOURCE), SERIES 2013B, GENERAL 

OBLIGATION WATERWORKS AND SEWERAGE REFUNDING BONDS, SERIES 

2013C, GENERAL OBLIGATION REFUNDING BONDS (ALTERNATE REVENUE 

SOURCE), SERIES 2013D, OF THE CITY OF WOODSTOCK, McHENRY COUNTY, 

ILLINOIS, PROVIDING THE DETAILS OF SUCH BONDS AND FOR 

APPLICABLE ALTERNATE REVENUE SOURCES AND THE LEVY OF DIRECT 

ANNUAL TAXES, AS APPLICABLE, SUFFICIENT TO PAY THE PRINCIPAL OF 

AND INTEREST ON SUCH BONDS, AND RELATED MATTERS,” is hereby abated 

for the taxable year 2013 related to the Series 2013B Bonds only (total property tax levy 

for the Series 2013B bonds related to the 2013 tax year amounts to $340,200). 

 

Section Two:  The Clerk of the CITY OF WOODSTOCK, McHenry County, Illinois is 

directed to file a certified copy of this Ordinance with the Clerk of McHenry County, 

Illinois within the time provided by law. 

 

mamraen
Typewritten Text
Doc.1



Section Three:  This Ordinance shall be known as Ordinance No. 14-O-__________ and 

shall be in full force and effect immediately upon its passage and approval as required by 

law. 

 

Section Four:  If any section, paragraph, subdivision, clause, sentence or provision of the 

Ordinance shall be adjudged by any Court of competent jurisdiction to be invalid, such 

judgement shall not affect, impair, invalidate or nullify the remainder thereof, which 

remainder shall remain and continue in full force and effect. 

 

Section Five:  PASSED by the City Council of the CITY OF WOODSTOCK, McHenry 

County, Illinois and approved by me this 21
st
 day of January, 2014. 

 

 

AYES:__________________________________________________________ 

 

NAYS:__________________________________________________________ 

 

ABSTENTIONS:__________________________________________________ 

 

ABSENTEES:____________________________________________________ 

 

 

 

      ____________________________________ 

       Brian Sager, Ph.D. 

      Mayor 

 

 

ATTEST:     APPROVED AS TO FORM: 

 

____________________________  ____________________________________ 

City Clerk     City Attorney 

 



 

 

 

CERTIFICATION 

 
I, Dianne Mitchell, do hereby certify that I am the duly appointed, qualified and 

acting City Clerk of the CITY OF WOODSTOCK, McHenry County, Illinois, and that 

as such Clerk, I am the keeper of the ordinances, records, corporate seal and proceedings 

of the Mayor and City Council of the said CITY OF WOODSTOCK. 

 

 I do hereby further certify that at a regular meeting of the Mayor and City Council 

of the City of Woodstock, held on the 21
st
 day of January, 2014, the foregoing Ordinance 

No. 14-O-_____ entitled “An Ordinance Abating the Levy of the Additional Tax 

Imposed for the Purpose of Borrowing Money and Issuing $1,860,000 Principal Amount 

General Obligation Refunding Bonds (Alternate Revenue Source), Series 2013B, of the 

City of Woodstock, McHenry County, Illinois, For the Purpose of Refunding a Portion of 

the City of Woodstock’s Series 2004B General Obligation Bonds (Alternate Revenue 

Source)” was duly passed and approved by the Mayor and City Council of the City of 

Woodstock. 

 

 I do further certify that the original, of which the attached is a true and correct 

copy, is entrusted to me as the Clerk of said City for safekeeping, and that I am the lawful 

custodian and keeper of the same. 

 

 IN WITNESS WHEREOF, I have hereunto set my hand and affixed the 

Corporate Seal of the CITY OF WOODSTOCK, this 21
st
 day of January, 2014. 

 

 

 

 

       ______________________________ 

       Dianne Mitchell, City Clerk 

 

  (SEAL) 

 



ORDINANCE NO. 14-O-________ 

 

AN ORDINANCE ABATING THE LEVY OF THE ADDITIONAL 

TAX IMPOSED FOR THE PURPOSE OF BORROWING MONEY AND ISSUING 

$3,650,000 PRINCIPAL AMOUNT GENERAL OBLIGATION BONDS  

(ALTERNATE REVENUE SOURCES), SERIES 2004F, OF THE CITY OF 

WOODSTOCK, MCHENRY COUNTY, ILLINOIS, FOR THE PURPOSE OF 

EXPANDING THE EXISTING WATERWORKS AND SEWERAGE SYSTEM OF 

THE CITY OF WOODSTOCK 

 

 

 WHEREAS, the CITY OF WOODSTOCK, McHenry County, Illinois did on 

January 3, 2004, authorize the issuance of $3,650,000 General Obligation Bonds 

(Alternate Revenue Sources), Series 2004F, for the purpose of expanding the existing 

waterworks and sewerage system of the City of Woodstock; and 

 

 WHEREAS, there is provided by the terms of said Ordinance, the imposition of 

an additional tax to pay the annual principal and interest payments as required in said 

Ordinance; and 

 

 WHEREAS, the revenues of the Water and Sewer Fund of the CITY OF 

WOODSTOCK are sufficient to meet the obligations of said Ordinance without the 

imposition of such additional tax; 

 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED by the Mayor and City Council of the CITY 

OF WOODSTOCK, McHenry County, Illinois as follows: 

 

Section One:  The tax to pay the General Obligation Bonds (Alternate Revenue Source) 

Series 2004F imposed by Ordinance Number 02-O-108 entitled “AN ORDINANCE 

AUTHORIZING THE ISSUANCE OF GENERAL OBLIGATION REFUNDING 

BONDS (ALTERNATE REVENUE SOURCE), SERIES 2002B, SERIES 2002C AND 

SERIES 2002D, GENERAL OBLIGATION BONDS (ALTERNATE REVENUE 

SOURCE), SERIES 2002E, GENERAL OBLIGATION REFUNDING BONDS 

(WATERWORK AND SEWERAGE ALTERNATE REVENUE SOURCE), SERIES 

2002F, AND GENERAL OBLIGATION BONDS (ALTERNATE REVENUE 

SOURCE), SERIES 2002G, OF THE CITY OF WOODSTOCK, MCHENRY COUNTY, 

ILLINOIS, PROVIDING THE DETAILS OF SUCH BONDS AND FOR ALTERNATE 

REVENUE SOURCES AND THE LEVY OF DIRECT ANNUAL TAXES, AS 

APPLICABLE, SUFFICIENT TO PAY THE PRINCIPAL OF AND INTEREST ON 

SUCH BONDS, AND RELATED MATTERS” and supplemented by Ordinance Number 

04-O-15 entitled “AN ORDINANCE SUPPLEMENTING AND AMENDING 

ORDINANCE NO 02-O-108, AN ORDINANCE AUTHORIZING THE ISSUANCE OF 

GENERAL OBLIGATION REFUNDING BONDS (ALTERNATE REVENUE 

SOURCE), SERIES 2002B, SERIES 2002C AND SERIES 2002D, GENERAL 

OBLIGATION BONDS (ALTERNATE REVENUE SOURCE), SERIES 2002E, 

GENERAL OBLIGATION REFUNDING BONDS (WATERWORKS AND 

mamraen
Typewritten Text
Doc.2



SEWERAGE ALTERNATE REVENUE SOURCE), SERIES 2002F, AND GENERAL 

OBLIGATION BONDS (ALTERNATE REVENUE SOURCE), SERIES 2002G, OF 

THE CITY OF WOODSTOCK, MCHENRY COUNTY, ILLINOIS PROVIDING THE 

DETAILS OF SUCH BONDS AND FOR THE ALTERNATE REVENUE SOURCES 

AND THE LEVY OF DIRECT ANNUAL TAXES AS APPLICABLE TO PAY THE 

PRINCIPAL OF AND INTEREST ON SUCH BONDS, AND RELATED MATTERS” 

is hereby abated for taxable year 2013 (total property tax levy for the Series 2004F bonds 

related to the 2013 tax year amounts to $404,558). 

 

Section Two:  The Clerk of the CITY OF WOODSTOCK, McHenry County, Illinois is 

directed to file a certified copy of this Ordinance with the Clerk of McHenry County, 

Illinois within the time provided by law. 

 

Section Three:  This Ordinance shall be known as Ordinance No. 14-O-_______ and 

shall be in full force and effect immediately upon its passage and approval as required by 

law. 

 

Section Four:  If any section, paragraph, subdivision, clause, sentence or provision of the 

Ordinance shall be adjudged by any Court of competent jurisdiction to be invalid, such 

judgement shall not affect, impair, invalidate or nullify the remainder thereof, which 

remainder shall remain and continue in full force and effect. 

 

Section Five:  PASSED by the City Council of the CITY OF WOODSTOCK, McHenry 

County, Illinois and approved by me this 21
st
 day of January, 2014. 

 

 

AYES:__________________________________________________________ 

 

NAYS:__________________________________________________________ 

 

ABSTENTIONS:__________________________________________________ 

 

ABSENTEES:____________________________________________________ 

 

 

 

      ____________________________________ 

       Brian Sager, Ph.D. 

      Mayor 

 

ATTEST:    

 

____________________________ 

City Clerk    

 



 

 

 

CERTIFICATION 

 
I, Dianne Mitchell, do hereby certify that I am the duly appointed, qualified and 

acting City Clerk of the CITY OF WOODSTOCK, McHenry County, Illinois, and that 

as such Clerk, I am the keeper of the ordinances, records, corporate seal and proceedings 

of the Mayor and City Council of the said CITY OF WOODSTOCK. 

 

 I do hereby further certify that at a regular meeting of the Mayor and City Council 

of the City of Woodstock, held on the 21
st
 day of January, 2014, the foregoing Ordinance 

No. 14-O-_____ entitled “An Ordinance Abating the Levy of the Additional Tax 

Imposed for the Purpose of Borrowing Money and Issuing $3,650,000 Principal Amount 

General Obligation Bonds (Alternate Revenue Sources), Series 2004F, of the City of 

Woodstock, McHenry County, Illinois, for the Purpose of Expanding the Existing 

Waterworks and Sewerage System of the City of Woodstock” was duly passed and 

approved by the Mayor and City Council of the City of Woodstock. 

 

 I do further certify that the original, of which the attached is a true and correct 

copy, is entrusted to me as the Clerk of said City for safekeeping, and that I am the lawful 

custodian and keeper of the same. 

 

 IN WITNESS WHEREOF, I have hereunto set my hand and affixed the 

Corporate Seal of the CITY OF WOODSTOCK, this 21
st
 day of January, 2014. 

 

 

 

 

       ______________________________ 

       Dianne Mitchell, City Clerk 

 

  (SEAL) 



 

ORDINANCE NO. 14-O-________ 

 

AN ORDINANCE ABATING THE LEVY OF THE ADDITIONAL 

TAX IMPOSED FOR THE PURPOSE OF BORROWING MONEY AND ISSUING 

$6,545,000 PRINCIPAL AMOUNT GENERAL OBLIGATION BONDS  

(ALTERNATE REVENUE SOURCES), SERIES 2005B, OF THE CITY OF 

WOODSTOCK, MCHENRY COUNTY, ILLINOIS, FOR THE PURPOSE OF 

CONSTRUCTING ROADWAY IMPROVEMENTS AND THE DEVELOPMENT 

OF NEW PARK SITES FOR THE CITY OF WOODSTOCK 

 

 

 WHEREAS, the CITY OF WOODSTOCK, McHenry County, Illinois did on 

July 19, 2005, authorize the issuance of $6,545,000 General Obligation Bonds (Alternate 

Revenue Sources), Series 2005B, for the purpose of constructing roadway improvements 

and the development of new park sites for the City of Woodstock; and 

 

 WHEREAS, there is provided by the terms of said Ordinance, the imposition of 

an additional tax to pay the annual principal and interest payments as required in said 

Ordinance; and 

 

 WHEREAS, the CITY OF WOODSTOCK, McHenry County, Illinois did on 

October 18, 2005, adopt Ordinance 05-O-99, to partially abate the debt service payments 

provided for by the original Ordinance 05-O-70 which authorized the issuance of 

$6,545,000 General Obligation Bonds (Alternate Revenue Sources); and 

 

 WHEREAS, the revenues of the General Corporate - CIP, Park Development, 

General Corporate, and Environmental Management Funds of the CITY OF 

WOODSTOCK are sufficient to meet the obligations of said Ordinance without the 

imposition of such additional tax; 

 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED by the Mayor and City Council of the CITY 

OF WOODSTOCK, McHenry County, Illinois as follows: 

 

Section One:  The tax to pay the General Obligation Bonds (Alternate Revenue Source) 

Series 2005B imposed by Ordinance Number 05-O-70 entitled “AN ORDINANCE 

AUTHORIZING THE ISSUANCE OF GENERAL OBLIGATION BONDS 

(ALTERNATE REVENUE SOURCE), SERIES 2005B, OF THE CITY OF 

WOODSTOCK, MCHENRY COUNTY, ILLINOIS, PROVIDING THE DETAILS OF 

SUCH BONDS AND ALTERNATE REVENUE SOURCES AND THE LEVY OF 

DIRECT ANNUAL TAXES SUFFICIENT TO PAY THE PRINCIPAL OF AND 

INTEREST ON SUCH BONDS AND RELATED MATTERS” and amended by 

Ordinance Number 05-O-99 entitled “AN ORDINANCE ABATING A PORTION OF 

THE ADDITIONAL TAXES IMPOSED FOR THE PURPOSE OF BORROWING 

MONEY AND ISSUING $2,270,000 PRINCIPAL AMOUNT GENERAL 

OBLIGATION REFUNDING BONDS, SERIES 2005A, AND $6,545,000 GENERAL 

mamraen
Typewritten Text
Doc.3



OBLIGATION (ALTERNATE REVENUE SOURCE), SERIES 2005B, OF THE CITY 

OF WOODSTOCK, MCHENRY COUNTY, ILLINOIS, FOR THE PURPOSE OF 

PARTIALLY REFUNDING SERIES 1999 GENERAL OBLIGATION BONDS, 

CONSTRUCTING IMPROVEMENTS TO ROADWAYS AND CONSTRUCTING 

PARKS WITHIN THE CITY OF WOODSTOCK” is hereby abated for the taxable year 

2013 (total property tax levy for the Series 2005B bonds related to the 2013 tax year 

amounts to $499,675). 

 

Section Two:  The Clerk of the CITY OF WOODSTOCK, McHenry County, Illinois is 

directed to file a certified copy of this Ordinance with the Clerk of McHenry County, 

Illinois within the time provided by law. 

 

Section Three:  This Ordinance shall be known as Ordinance No. 14-O-__________ and 

shall be in full force and effect immediately upon its passage and approval as required by 

law. 

 

Section Four:  If any section, paragraph, subdivision, clause, sentence or provision of the 

Ordinance shall be adjudged by any Court of competent jurisdiction to be invalid, such 

judgement shall not affect, impair, invalidate or nullify the remainder thereof, which 

remainder shall remain and continue in full force and effect. 

 

Section Five:  PASSED by the City Council of the CITY OF WOODSTOCK, McHenry 

County, Illinois and approved by me this 21
st
 day of January, 2014. 

 

 

AYES:__________________________________________________________ 

 

NAYS:__________________________________________________________ 

 

ABSTENTIONS:__________________________________________________ 

 

ABSENTEES:____________________________________________________ 

 

 

 

      ____________________________________ 

       Brian Sager, Ph.D. 

      Mayor 

 

ATTEST:     

 

____________________________  

City Clerk     

 



 

 

 

CERTIFICATION 

 
I, Dianne Mitchell, do hereby certify that I am the duly appointed, qualified and 

acting City Clerk of the CITY OF WOODSTOCK, McHenry County, Illinois, and that 

as such Clerk, I am the keeper of the ordinances, records, corporate seal and proceedings 

of the Mayor and City Council of the said CITY OF WOODSTOCK. 

 

 I do hereby further certify that at a regular meeting of the Mayor and City Council 

of the City of Woodstock, held on the 21
st
 day of January, 2014, the foregoing Ordinance 

No. 14-O-_____ entitled “An Ordinance Abating the Levy of the Additional Tax 

Imposed for the Purpose of Borrowing Money and Issuing $6,545,000 Principal Amount 

General Obligation Bonds (Alternate Revenue Sources), Series 2005B, of the City of 

Woodstock, McHenry County, Illinois, for the Purpose of Constructing Roadway 

Improvements and the Development of New Park Sites for the City of Woodstock” was 

duly passed and approved by the Mayor and City Council of the City of Woodstock. 

 

 I do further certify that the original, of which the attached is a true and correct 

copy, is entrusted to me as the Clerk of said City for safekeeping, and that I am the lawful 

custodian and keeper of the same. 

 

 IN WITNESS WHEREOF, I have hereunto set my hand and affixed the 

Corporate Seal of the CITY OF WOODSTOCK, this 21
st
 day of January, 2014. 

 

 

 

 

       ______________________________ 

       Dianne Mitchell, City Clerk 

 

  (SEAL) 

 



ORDINANCE NO. 14-O-________ 

 

AN ORDINANCE ABATING THE LEVY OF THE ADDITIONAL 

TAX IMPOSED FOR THE PURPOSE OF BORROWING MONEY AND ISSUING 

$3,400,000 PRINCIPAL AMOUNT GENERAL OBLIGATION WATERWORKS 

AND SEWERAGE BONDS (ALTERNATE REVENUE SOURCES), SERIES 

2008A, OF THE CITY OF WOODSTOCK, MCHENRY COUNTY, ILLINOIS, 

FOR THE PURPOSE OF CONSTRUCTING IMPROVEMENTS TO THE FIRST 

STREET WATER TREAMENT PLANT IN THE CITY OF WOODSTOCK 

 

 

 

 WHEREAS, the CITY OF WOODSTOCK, McHenry County, Illinois did on 

June 17, 2008, authorize the issuance of $3,400,000 General Obligation Bonds (Alternate 

Revenue Sources), Series 2008A, for the purpose of constructing improvements to the 

First Street Water Treatment Plant in the City of Woodstock; and 

 

 WHEREAS, there is provided by the terms of said Ordinance, the imposition of 

an additional tax to pay the annual principal and interest payments as required in said 

Ordinance; and 

 

 WHEREAS, the revenues of the General Corporate - CIP Fund of the CITY OF 

WOODSTOCK are sufficient to meet the obligations of said Ordinance without the 

imposition of such additional tax; and 

 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED by the Mayor and City Council of the CITY 

OF WOODSTOCK, McHenry County, Illinois as follows: 

 

Section One:  The tax imposed by Ordinance Number 08-O-41 entitled “AN 

ORDINANCE AUTHORIZING THE ISSUANCE OF GENERAL OBLIGATION 

WATERWORKS AND SEWERAGE BONDS (ALTERNATE REVENUE SOURCE), 

SERIES 2008A, OF THE CITY OF WOODSTOCK, MCHENRY COUNTY, ILLINOIS, 

PROVIDING THE DETAILS OF SUCH BONDS AND FOR ALTERNAT REVENUE 

SOURCES AND THE LEVY OF DIRECT ANNUAL TAXES SUFFICIENT TO PAY 

THE PRINCIPAL OF AND INTEREST ON SUCH BONDS, AND RELATED 

MATTERS” is hereby abated for the taxable year 2013 (total property tax levy for the 

Series 2008A bonds related to the 2013 tax year amounts to $261,493). 

 

Section Two:  The Clerk of the CITY OF WOODSTOCK, McHenry County, Illinois is 

directed to file a certified copy of this Ordinance with the Clerk of McHenry County, 

Illinois within the time provided by law. 

 

Section Three:  This Ordinance shall be known as Ordinance No. 14-O-__________ and 

shall be in full force and effect immediately upon its passage and approval as required by 

law. 

 

mamraen
Typewritten Text
Doc.4



Section Four:  If any section, paragraph, subdivision, clause, sentence or provision of the 

Ordinance shall be adjudged by any Court of competent jurisdiction to be invalid, such 

judgement shall not affect, impair, invalidate or nullify the remainder thereof, which 

remainder shall remain and continue in full force and effect. 

 

Section Five:  PASSED by the City Council of the CITY OF WOODSTOCK, McHenry 

County, Illinois and approved by me this 21
st
 day of January, 2014. 

 

 

AYES:__________________________________________________________ 

 

NAYS:__________________________________________________________ 

 

ABSTENTIONS:__________________________________________________ 

 

ABSENTEES:____________________________________________________ 

 

 

 

      ____________________________________ 

       Brian Sager, Ph.D. 

      Mayor 

 

 

ATTEST: 

 

____________________________ 

City Clerk 

 



 

 

 

CERTIFICATION 

 
I, Dianne Mitchell, do hereby certify that I am the duly appointed, qualified and 

acting City Clerk of the CITY OF WOODSTOCK, McHenry County, Illinois, and that 

as such Clerk, I am the keeper of the ordinances, records, corporate seal and proceedings 

of the Mayor and City Council of the said CITY OF WOODSTOCK. 

 

 I do hereby further certify that at a regular meeting of the Mayor and City Council 

of the City of Woodstock, held on the 21
st
 day of January, 2014, the foregoing Ordinance 

No. 14-O-_____ entitled “An Ordinance Abating the Levy of the Additional Tax 

Imposed for the Purpose of Borrowing Money and Issuing $3,400,000 Principal Amount 

General Obligation Waterworks and Sewerage Bonds (Alternate Revenue Sources), 

Series 2008A, of the City of Woodstock, McHenry County, Illinois, for the Purpose of 

Constructing Improvements to the First Street Water Treatment Plant in the City of 

Woodstock” was duly passed and approved by the Mayor and City Council of the City of 

Woodstock. 

 

 I do further certify that the original, of which the attached is a true and correct 

copy, is entrusted to me as the Clerk of said City for safekeeping, and that I am the lawful 

custodian and keeper of the same. 

 

 IN WITNESS WHEREOF, I have hereunto set my hand and affixed the 

Corporate Seal of the CITY OF WOODSTOCK, this 21
st
 day of January, 2014. 

 

 

 

 

       ______________________________ 

       Dianne Mitchell, City Clerk 

 

  (SEAL) 

 



ORDINANCE NO. 14-O-________ 

 

AN ORDINANCE ABATING THE LEVY OF THE ADDITIONAL 

TAX IMPOSED FOR THE PURPOSE OF BORROWING MONEY AND ISSUING 

$1,425,000 PRINCIPAL AMOUNT GENERAL OBLIGATION BONDS  

(ALTERNATE REVENUE SOURCES), SERIES 2010A, OF THE CITY OF 

WOODSTOCK, MCHENRY COUNTY, ILLINOIS, FOR THE PURPOSE OF 

REFUNDING A PORTION OF THE CITY OF WOODSTOCK’S SERIES 2000C 

AND SERIES 2001B GENERAL OBLIGATION BONDS  

(ALTERNATE REVENUE SOURCE) 

 

 

 WHEREAS, the CITY OF WOODSTOCK, McHenry County, Illinois did on 

June 15, 2010, authorize the issuance of $1,425,000 General Obligation Bonds (Alternate 

Revenue Sources), Series 2010A, for the purpose of refunding a portion of the 2000C 

General Obligation Bonds (Alternate Revenue Source), which were originally issued to 

construct a new Aquatic Center; and the 2001B General Obligation Bonds (Alternate 

Revenue Source), which were originally issued to construct the Opera House Annex in 

the City of Woodstock; and 

 

 WHEREAS, there is provided by the terms of said Ordinance, the imposition of 

additional real estate taxes to pay the annual principal and interest payments as required 

in said Ordinances; and 

 

 WHEREAS, the revenues of the General Corporate and Debt Service Funds of 

the CITY OF WOODSTOCK are sufficient to meet the obligations of said Ordinance 

without the imposition of such additional tax; 

 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED by the Mayor and City Council of the CITY 

OF WOODSTOCK, McHenry County, Illinois as follows: 

 

Section One:  The tax imposed by Ordinance Number 10-O-34 entitled “AN 

ORDINANCE AUTHORIZING THE ISSUANCE OF GENERAL OBLIGATION 

[WATERWORKS AND SEWERAGE] REFUNDING BONDS, SERIES 2010, SERIES 

2010A, ETC., OF THE CITY OF WOODSTOCK, MCHENRY COUNTY, ILLINOIS, 

PROVIDING THE DETAILS OF SUCH BONDS AND FOR ALTERNATE REVENUE 

SOURCES AND THE LEVY OF DIRECT ANNUAL TAXES, AS APPLICABLE, 

SUFFICIENT TO PAY THE PRINCIPAL OF AND INTEREST ON SUCH BONDS, 

AND RELATED MATTERS” is hereby abated for Series 2010A General Obligation 

Bonds (Alternate Revenue Sources) for the taxable year 2013 (total property tax levy for 

the Series 2010A bonds related to the 2013 tax year amounts to $166,515). 

 

Section Two:  The Clerk of the CITY OF WOODSTOCK, McHenry County, Illinois is 

directed to file a certified copy of this Ordinance with the Clerk of McHenry County, 

Illinois within the time provided by law. 

 

mamraen
Typewritten Text
Doc.5



Section Three:  This Ordinance shall be known as Ordinance No. 14-O-_______ and 

shall be in full force and effect immediately upon its passage and approval as required by 

law. 

 

Section Four:  If any section, paragraph, subdivision, clause, sentence or provision of the 

Ordinance shall be adjudged by any Court of competent jurisdiction to be invalid, such 

judgement shall not affect, impair, invalidate or nullify the remainder thereof, which 

remainder shall remain and continue in full force and effect. 

 

Section Five:  PASSED by the City Council of the CITY OF WOODSTOCK, McHenry 

County, Illinois and approved by me this 21
st
 day of January, 2014. 

 

 

AYES:__________________________________________________________ 

 

NAYS:__________________________________________________________ 

 

ABSTENTIONS:__________________________________________________ 

 

ABSENTEES:____________________________________________________ 

 

 

 

      ____________________________________ 

      Brian Sager, Ph.D. 

      Mayor 

 

 

ATTEST: 

 

____________________________ 

City Clerk 

 

 

 



 

 

 

CERTIFICATION 

 
I, Dianne Mitchell, do hereby certify that I am the duly appointed, qualified and 

acting City Clerk of the CITY OF WOODSTOCK, McHenry County, Illinois, and that 

as such Clerk, I am the keeper of the ordinances, records, corporate seal and proceedings 

of the Mayor and City Council of the said CITY OF WOODSTOCK. 

 

 I do hereby further certify that at a regular meeting of the Mayor and City Council 

of the City of Woodstock, held on the 21
st
 day of January, 2014, the foregoing Ordinance 

No. 14-O-_____ entitled “An Ordinance Abating the Levy of the Additional Tax 

Imposed for the Purpose of Borrowing Money and Issuing $1,425,000 Principal Amount 

General Obligation Bonds (Alternate Revenue Sources), Series 2010A, of the City of 

Woodstock, McHenry County, Illinois, for the Purpose of Refunding a Portion of the City 

of Woodstock’s Series 2000C and Series 2001B General Obligation Bonds (Alternate 

Revenue Source)” was duly passed and approved by the Mayor and City Council of the 

City of Woodstock. 

 

 I do further certify that the original, of which the attached is a true and correct 

copy, is entrusted to me as the Clerk of said City for safekeeping, and that I am the lawful 

custodian and keeper of the same. 

 

 IN WITNESS WHEREOF, I have hereunto set my hand and affixed the 

Corporate Seal of the CITY OF WOODSTOCK, this 21
st
 day of January, 2014. 

 

 

 

 

       ______________________________ 

       Dianne Mitchell, City Clerk 

 

  (SEAL) 

 

 



ORDINANCE NO. 14-O-________ 

 

AN ORDINANCE ABATING THE LEVY OF THE ADDITIONAL 

TAX IMPOSED FOR THE PURPOSE OF BORROWING MONEY AND ISSUING 

$350,000 PRINCIPAL AMOUNT GENERAL OBLIGATION BONDS  

(ALTERNATE REVENUE SOURCES), SERIES 2010B, OF THE CITY OF 

WOODSTOCK, MCHENRY COUNTY, ILLINOIS, FOR THE PURPOSE OF 

REFUNDING A PORTION OF THE CITY OF WOODSTOCK’S SERIES 2000D 

GENERAL OBLIGATION BONDS (ALTERNATE REVENUE SOURCE) 

 

 

 WHEREAS, the CITY OF WOODSTOCK, McHenry County, Illinois did on 

June 15, 2010, authorize the issuance of $350,000 General Obligation Bonds (Alternate 

Revenue Sources), Series 2010B, for the purpose of refunding a portion of the 2000D 

General Obligation Bonds (Alternate Revenue Source), which were originally issued to 

construct improvements to the Woodstock Public Library; and 

 

 WHEREAS, there is provided by the terms of said Ordinance, the imposition of 

additional real estate taxes to pay the annual principal and interest payments as required 

in said Ordinances; and 

 

 WHEREAS, the revenues of the Library Building Fund of the CITY OF 

WOODSTOCK are sufficient to meet the obligations of said Ordinance without the 

imposition of such additional tax; 

 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED by the Mayor and City Council of the CITY 

OF WOODSTOCK, McHenry County, Illinois as follows: 

 

Section One:  The tax imposed by Ordinance Number 10-O-34 entitled “AN 

ORDINANCE AUTHORIZING THE ISSUANCE OF GENERAL OBLIGATION 

[WATERWORKS AND SEWERAGE] REFUNDING BONDS, SERIES 2010, SERIES 

2010A, ETC., OF THE CITY OF WOODSTOCK, MCHENRY COUNTY, ILLINOIS, 

PROVIDING THE DETAILS OF SUCH BONDS AND FOR ALTERNATE REVENUE 

SOURCES AND THE LEVY OF DIRECT ANNUAL TAXES, AS APPLICABLE, 

SUFFICIENT TO PAY THE PRINCIPAL OF AND INTEREST ON SUCH BONDS, 

AND RELATED MATTERS” is hereby abated for the Series 2010B General Obligation 

Bonds (Alternate Revenue Sources) for taxable year 2013 (total property tax levy for the 

Series 2010B bonds related to the 2013 tax year amounts to $41,430). 

 

Section Two:  The Clerk of the CITY OF WOODSTOCK, McHenry County, Illinois is 

directed to file a certified copy of this Ordinance with the Clerk of McHenry County, 

Illinois within the time provided by law. 

 

Section Three:  This Ordinance shall be known as Ordinance No. 14-O-_______ and 

shall be in full force and effect immediately upon its passage and approval as required by 

law. 

mamraen
Typewritten Text
Doc.6



 

Section Four:  If any section, paragraph, subdivision, clause, sentence or provision of the 

Ordinance shall be adjudged by any Court of competent jurisdiction to be invalid, such 

judgement shall not affect, impair, invalidate or nullify the remainder thereof, which 

remainder shall remain and continue in full force and effect. 

 

Section Five:  PASSED by the City Council of the CITY OF WOODSTOCK, McHenry 

County, Illinois and approved by me this 21
st
 day of January, 2014. 

 

 

AYES:__________________________________________________________ 

 

NAYS:__________________________________________________________ 

 

ABSTENTIONS:__________________________________________________ 

 

ABSENTEES:____________________________________________________ 

 

 

 

      ____________________________________ 

      Brian Sager, Ph.D. 

      Mayor 

 

 

ATTEST: 

 

____________________________ 

City Clerk 

 

 

 



 

 

 

CERTIFICATION 

 
I, Dianne Mitchell, do hereby certify that I am the duly appointed, qualified and 

acting City Clerk of the CITY OF WOODSTOCK, McHenry County, Illinois, and that 

as such Clerk, I am the keeper of the ordinances, records, corporate seal and proceedings 

of the Mayor and City Council of the said CITY OF WOODSTOCK. 

 

 I do hereby further certify that at a regular meeting of the Mayor and City Council 

of the City of Woodstock, held on the 21
st
 day of January, 2014, the foregoing Ordinance 

No. 14-O-_____ entitled “An Ordinance Abating the Levy of the Additional Tax 

Imposed for the Purpose of Borrowing Money and Issuing $350,000 Principal Amount 

General Obligation Bonds (Alternate Revenue Sources), Series 2010B, of the City of 

Woodstock, McHenry County, Illinois, for the Purpose of Refunding a Portion of the City 

of Woodstock’s Series 2000D General Obligation Bonds (Alternate Revenue Source)” 

was duly passed and approved by the Mayor and City Council of the City of Woodstock. 

 

 I do further certify that the original, of which the attached is a true and correct 

copy, is entrusted to me as the Clerk of said City for safekeeping, and that I am the lawful 

custodian and keeper of the same. 

 

 IN WITNESS WHEREOF, I have hereunto set my hand and affixed the 

Corporate Seal of the CITY OF WOODSTOCK, this 21
st
 day of January, 2014. 

 

 

 

 

       ______________________________ 

       Dianne Mitchell, City Clerk 

 

  (SEAL) 

 

 



ORDINANCE NO. 14-O-________ 

 

AN ORDINANCE ABATING THE LEVY OF THE ADDITIONAL 

TAX IMPOSED FOR THE PURPOSE OF BORROWING MONEY AND ISSUING 

$1,475,000 PRINCIPAL AMOUNT GENERAL OBLIGATION BONDS  

(ALTERNATE REVENUE SOURCES), SERIES 2010C, OF THE CITY OF 

WOODSTOCK, MCHENRY COUNTY, ILLINOIS, FOR THE PURPOSE OF 

REFUNDING A PORTION OF THE CITY OF WOODSTOCK’S SERIES 2002E 

GENERAL OBLIGATION BONDS (ALTERNATE REVENUE SOURCE) 

 

 

 WHEREAS, the CITY OF WOODSTOCK, McHenry County, Illinois did on 

June 15, 2010, authorize the issuance of $1,475,000 General Obligation Bonds (Alternate 

Revenue Sources), Series 2010C, for the purpose of refunding a portion of the 2002E 

General Obligation Bonds (Alternate Revenue Source), which were originally issued to 

construct infrastructure improvements on the Die Cast site; and 

 

 WHEREAS, there is provided by the terms of said Ordinance, the imposition of 

additional real estate taxes to pay the annual principal and interest payments as required 

in said Ordinances; and 

 

 WHEREAS, the revenues of the Tax Increment Financing Fund of the CITY OF 

WOODSTOCK are sufficient to meet the obligations of said Ordinance without the 

imposition of such additional tax; 

 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED by the Mayor and City Council of the CITY 

OF WOODSTOCK, McHenry County, Illinois as follows: 

 

Section One:  The tax imposed by Ordinance Number 10-O-34 entitled “AN 

ORDINANCE AUTHORIZING THE ISSUANCE OF GENERAL OBLIGATION 

[WATERWORKS AND SEWERAGE] REFUNDING BONDS, SERIES 2010, SERIES 

2010A, ETC., OF THE CITY OF WOODSTOCK, MCHENRY COUNTY, ILLINOIS, 

PROVIDING THE DETAILS OF SUCH BONDS AND FOR ALTERNATE REVENUE 

SOURCES AND THE LEVY OF DIRECT ANNUAL TAXES, AS APPLICABLE, 

SUFFICIENT TO PAY THE PRINCIPAL OF AND INTEREST ON SUCH BONDS, 

AND RELATED MATTERS” is hereby abated for the Series 2010C General Obligation 

Bonds (Alternate Revenue Sources) for the taxable year 2013 (total property tax levy for 

the Series 2010C bonds related to the 2013 tax year amounts to $157,649). 

 

Section Two:  The Clerk of the CITY OF WOODSTOCK, McHenry County, Illinois is 

directed to file a certified copy of this Ordinance with the Clerk of McHenry County, 

Illinois within the time provided by law. 

 

Section Three:  This Ordinance shall be known as Ordinance No. 14-O-_______ and 

shall be in full force and effect immediately upon its passage and approval as required by 

law. 

mamraen
Typewritten Text
Doc.7



 

Section Four:  If any section, paragraph, subdivision, clause, sentence or provision of the 

Ordinance shall be adjudged by any Court of competent jurisdiction to be invalid, such 

judgement shall not affect, impair, invalidate or nullify the remainder thereof, which 

remainder shall remain and continue in full force and effect. 

 

Section Five:  PASSED by the City Council of the CITY OF WOODSTOCK, McHenry 

County, Illinois and approved by me this 21
st
 day of January, 2014. 

 

 

AYES:__________________________________________________________ 

 

NAYS:__________________________________________________________ 

 

ABSTENTIONS:__________________________________________________ 

 

ABSENTEES:____________________________________________________ 

 

 

 

      ____________________________________ 

      Brian Sager, Ph.D. 

      Mayor 

 

 

ATTEST: 

 

____________________________ 

City Clerk 

 

 

 



 

 

 

CERTIFICATION 

 
I, Dianne Mitchell, do hereby certify that I am the duly appointed, qualified and 

acting City Clerk of the CITY OF WOODSTOCK, McHenry County, Illinois, and that 

as such Clerk, I am the keeper of the ordinances, records, corporate seal and proceedings 

of the Mayor and City Council of the said CITY OF WOODSTOCK. 

 

 I do hereby further certify that at a regular meeting of the Mayor and City Council 

of the City of Woodstock, held on the 21
st
 day of January, 2014, the foregoing Ordinance 

No. 14-O-_____ entitled “An Ordinance Abating the Levy of the Additional Tax 

Imposed for the Purpose of Borrowing Money and Issuing $1,475,000 Principal Amount 

General Obligation Bonds (Alternate Revenue Sources), Series 2010C, of the City of 

Woodstock, McHenry County, Illinois, for the Purpose of Refunding a Portion of the City 

of Woodstock’s Series 2002E General Obligation Bonds (Alternate Revenue Source)” 

was duly passed and approved by the Mayor and City Council of the City of Woodstock. 

 

 I do further certify that the original, of which the attached is a true and correct 

copy, is entrusted to me as the Clerk of said City for safekeeping, and that I am the lawful 

custodian and keeper of the same. 

 

 IN WITNESS WHEREOF, I have hereunto set my hand and affixed the 

Corporate Seal of the CITY OF WOODSTOCK, this 21
st
 day of January, 2014. 

 

 

 

 

       ______________________________ 

       Dianne Mitchell, City Clerk 

 

  (SEAL) 

 

 



ORDINANCE NO. 14-O-________ 

 

AN ORDINANCE ABATING THE LEVY OF THE ADDITIONAL 

TAX IMPOSED FOR THE PURPOSE OF BORROWING MONEY AND ISSUING 

$2,940,000 PRINCIPAL AMOUNT GENERAL OBLIGATION BONDS  

(ALTERNATE REVENUE SOURCES), SERIES 2010D, OF THE CITY OF 

WOODSTOCK, MCHENRY COUNTY, ILLINOIS, FOR THE PURPOSE OF 

REFUNDING A PORTION OF THE CITY OF WOODSTOCK’S SERIES 2002F 

GENERAL OBLIGATION BONDS (ALTERNATE REVENUE SOURCE) 

 

 

 WHEREAS, the CITY OF WOODSTOCK, McHenry County, Illinois did on 

June 15, 2010, authorize the issuance of $2,940,000 General Obligation Bonds (Alternate 

Revenue Sources), Series 2010D, for the purpose of refunding a portion of the 2002F 

General Obligation Bonds (Alternate Revenue Source), which were originally issued to 

construct an expansion to the Seminary Avenue Water Treatment Plant in the City of 

Woodstock; and 

 

 WHEREAS, there is provided by the terms of said Ordinance, the imposition of 

additional real estate taxes to pay the annual principal and interest payments as required 

in said Ordinances; and 

 

 WHEREAS, the revenues of the Water & Sewer Fund of the CITY OF 

WOODSTOCK are sufficient to meet the obligations of said Ordinance without the 

imposition of such additional tax; 

 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED by the Mayor and City Council of the CITY 

OF WOODSTOCK, McHenry County, Illinois as follows: 

 

Section One:  The tax imposed by Ordinance Number 10-O-34 entitled “AN 

ORDINANCE AUTHORIZING THE ISSUANCE OF GENERAL OBLIGATION 

[WATERWORKS AND SEWERAGE] REFUNDING BONDS, SERIES 2010, SERIES 

2010A, ETC., OF THE CITY OF WOODSTOCK, MCHENRY COUNTY, ILLINOIS, 

PROVIDING THE DETAILS OF SUCH BONDS AND FOR ALTERNATE REVENUE 

SOURCES AND THE LEVY OF DIRECT ANNUAL TAXES, AS APPLICABLE, 

SUFFICIENT TO PAY THE PRINCIPAL OF AND INTEREST ON SUCH BONDS, 

AND RELATED MATTERS” is hereby abated for the Series 2010D General Obligation 

Bonds (Alternate Revenue Sources) for the taxable year 2013 (total property tax levy for 

the Series 2010D bonds related to the 2013 tax year amounts to $319,928). 

 

Section Two:  The Clerk of the CITY OF WOODSTOCK, McHenry County, Illinois is 

directed to file a certified copy of this Ordinance with the Clerk of McHenry County, 

Illinois within the time provided by law. 

 

mamraen
Typewritten Text
Doc.8



Section Three:  This Ordinance shall be known as Ordinance No. 14-O-_______ and 

shall be in full force and effect immediately upon its passage and approval as required by 

law. 

 

Section Four:  If any section, paragraph, subdivision, clause, sentence or provision of the 

Ordinance shall be adjudged by any Court of competent jurisdiction to be invalid, such 

judgement shall not affect, impair, invalidate or nullify the remainder thereof, which 

remainder shall remain and continue in full force and effect. 

 

Section Five:  PASSED by the City Council of the CITY OF WOODSTOCK, McHenry 

County, Illinois and approved by me this 21
st
 day of January, 2014. 

 

 

AYES:__________________________________________________________ 

 

NAYS:__________________________________________________________ 

 

ABSTENTIONS:__________________________________________________ 

 

ABSENTEES:____________________________________________________ 

 

 

 

      ____________________________________ 

      Brian Sager, Ph.D. 

      Mayor 

 

 

ATTEST: 

 

____________________________ 

City Clerk 

 

 

 



 

 

 

CERTIFICATION 

 
I, Dianne Mitchell, do hereby certify that I am the duly appointed, qualified and 

acting City Clerk of the CITY OF WOODSTOCK, McHenry County, Illinois, and that 

as such Clerk, I am the keeper of the ordinances, records, corporate seal and proceedings 

of the Mayor and City Council of the said CITY OF WOODSTOCK. 

 

 I do hereby further certify that at a regular meeting of the Mayor and City Council 

of the City of Woodstock, held on the 21
st
 day of January, 2014, the foregoing Ordinance 

No. 14-O-_____ entitled “An Ordinance Abating the Levy of the Additional Tax 

Imposed for the Purpose of Borrowing Money and Issuing $2,940,000 Principal Amount 

General Obligation Bonds (Alternate Revenue Sources), Series 2010D, of the City of 

Woodstock, McHenry County, Illinois, for the Purpose of Refunding a Portion of the City 

of Woodstock’s Series 2002F General Obligation Bonds (Alternate Revenue Source)” 

was duly passed and approved by the Mayor and City Council of the City of Woodstock. 

 

 I do further certify that the original, of which the attached is a true and correct 

copy, is entrusted to me as the Clerk of said City for safekeeping, and that I am the lawful 

custodian and keeper of the same. 

 

 IN WITNESS WHEREOF, I have hereunto set my hand and affixed the 

Corporate Seal of the CITY OF WOODSTOCK, this 21
st
 day of January, 2014. 

 

 

 

 

       ______________________________ 

       Dianne Mitchell, City Clerk 

 

  (SEAL) 

 

 



ORDINANCE NO. 14-O-________ 

 

AN ORDINANCE ABATING THE LEVY OF THE ADDITIONAL 

TAX IMPOSED FOR THE PURPOSE OF BORROWING MONEY AND ISSUING 

$325,000 PRINCIPAL AMOUNT GENERAL OBLIGATION BONDS  

(ALTERNATE REVENUE SOURCES), SERIES 2010E, OF THE CITY OF 

WOODSTOCK, MCHENRY COUNTY, ILLINOIS, FOR THE PURPOSE OF 

REFUNDING A PORTION OF THE CITY OF WOODSTOCK’S SERIES 2002G 

GENERAL OBLIGATION BONDS (ALTERNATE REVENUE SOURCE) 

 

 

 WHEREAS, the CITY OF WOODSTOCK, McHenry County, Illinois did on 

June 15, 2010, authorize the issuance of $325,000 General Obligation Bonds (Alternate 

Revenue Sources), Series 2010E, for the purpose of refunding a portion of the 2002G 

General Obligation Bonds (Alternate Revenue Source), which were originally issued to 

refinance a TIF bank loan; and 

 

 WHEREAS, there is provided by the terms of said Ordinance, the imposition of 

additional real estate taxes to pay the annual principal and interest payments as required 

in said Ordinances; and 

 

 WHEREAS, the revenues of the Tax Increment Financing Fund of the CITY OF 

WOODSTOCK are sufficient to meet the obligations of said Ordinance without the 

imposition of such additional tax; 

 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED by the Mayor and City Council of the CITY 

OF WOODSTOCK, McHenry County, Illinois as follows: 

 

Section One:  The tax imposed by Ordinance Number 10-O-34 entitled “AN 

ORDINANCE AUTHORIZING THE ISSUANCE OF GENERAL OBLIGATION 

[WATERWORKS AND SEWERAGE] REFUNDING BONDS, SERIES 2010, SERIES 

2010A, ETC., OF THE CITY OF WOODSTOCK, MCHENRY COUNTY, ILLINOIS, 

PROVIDING THE DETAILS OF SUCH BONDS AND FOR ALTERNATE REVENUE 

SOURCES AND THE LEVY OF DIRECT ANNUAL TAXES, AS APPLICABLE, 

SUFFICIENT TO PAY THE PRINCIPAL OF AND INTEREST ON SUCH BONDS, 

AND RELATED MATTERS” is hereby abated for the Series 2010E General Obligation 

Bonds (Alternate Revenue Sources) for the taxable year 2013 (total property tax levy for 

the Series 2010E bonds related to the 2013 tax year amounts to $37,058). 

 

Section Two:  The Clerk of the CITY OF WOODSTOCK, McHenry County, Illinois is 

directed to file a certified copy of this Ordinance with the Clerk of McHenry County, 

Illinois within the time provided by law. 

 

Section Three:  This Ordinance shall be known as Ordinance No. 14-O-_______ and 

shall be in full force and effect immediately upon its passage and approval as required by 

law. 

mamraen
Typewritten Text
Doc.9



 

Section Four:  If any section, paragraph, subdivision, clause, sentence or provision of the 

Ordinance shall be adjudged by any Court of competent jurisdiction to be invalid, such 

judgement shall not affect, impair, invalidate or nullify the remainder thereof, which 

remainder shall remain and continue in full force and effect. 

 

Section Five:  PASSED by the City Council of the CITY OF WOODSTOCK, McHenry 

County, Illinois and approved by me this 21
st
 day of January, 2014. 

 

 

AYES:__________________________________________________________ 

 

NAYS:__________________________________________________________ 

 

ABSTENTIONS:__________________________________________________ 

 

ABSENTEES:____________________________________________________ 

 

 

 

      ____________________________________ 

      Brian Sager, Ph.D. 

      Mayor 

 

 

ATTEST: 

 

____________________________ 

City Clerk 

 

 

 



 

 

 

CERTIFICATION 

 
I, Dianne Mitchell, do hereby certify that I am the duly appointed, qualified and 

acting City Clerk of the CITY OF WOODSTOCK, McHenry County, Illinois, and that 

as such Clerk, I am the keeper of the ordinances, records, corporate seal and proceedings 

of the Mayor and City Council of the said CITY OF WOODSTOCK. 

 

 I do hereby further certify that at a regular meeting of the Mayor and City Council 

of the City of Woodstock, held on the 21
st
 day of January, 2014, the foregoing Ordinance 

No. 14-O-_____ entitled “An Ordinance Abating the Levy of the Additional Tax 

Imposed for the Purpose of Borrowing Money and Issuing $325,000 Principal Amount 

General Obligation Bonds (Alternate Revenue Sources), Series 2010E, of the City of 

Woodstock, McHenry County, Illinois, for the Purpose of Refunding a Portion of the City 

of Woodstock’s Series 2002G General Obligation Bonds (Alternate Revenue Source)” 

was duly passed and approved by the Mayor and City Council of the City of Woodstock. 

 

 I do further certify that the original, of which the attached is a true and correct 

copy, is entrusted to me as the Clerk of said City for safekeeping, and that I am the lawful 

custodian and keeper of the same. 

 

 IN WITNESS WHEREOF, I have hereunto set my hand and affixed the 

Corporate Seal of the CITY OF WOODSTOCK, this 21
st
 day of January, 2014. 

 

 

 

 

       ______________________________ 

       Dianne Mitchell, City Clerk 

 

  (SEAL) 

 

 



 

       City of    

               
Department of  Communi ty  and Economic Devel opment                                   phone  815 .338 .4305  
121  W. Calhoun St r ee t                                                        f ax  815 .334 .2267  
Woods tock ,  I l l ino i s  60098                                                                          nbake r@wood stock i l .gov  
                                                        www.woodstock i l .gov  

 

 

 

MEMORANDUM 
  
December 19, 2013 

TO:  Roscoe Stelford, City Manager 

FROM:  Nancy Baker, City Planner 

 

ZONING VARATION AT 1701 SEBASTIAN DRIVE 

Laurie and Gene Mortimer, owners of the property at 1701 Sebastian Drive, will be appearing 

before the City Council seeking approval of a variation of Section 7A.3. Bulk and Area 

Requirements, of the Woodstock Unified Development Ordinance, to allow a screened porch to 

extend two feet into the rear yard setback as established by the Sweetwater Planned Unit 

Development, Final Plat of Subdivision, Phase 3. 

The subject property is a corner lot improved with an owner-occupied single family residence. 

The property is zoned R PUD (single family residential) and is part of the Sweetwater 

Subdivision.   

 

The Unified Development Ordinance specifies that if the setbacks shown on the final plat of 

subdivision are different than those specified in the Ordinance, the approved plat of subdivision 

controls the setback.  In this case, the approved plat establishes a 20-foot rear yard setback.  

Decks are allowed to encroach in a rear yard setback up to 5 feet from the rear lot line.  Screened 

rooms, gazebos, etc. are allowed in a rear yard setback; however, enclosed and covered 

structures which are attached to a residence must meet the same setback as the principal 

structure. 

     

The Zoning Board of Appeals conducted a public hearing on the proposed variations on 

December 9, 2013.  There were no objectors present.  After the conclusion of the hearing and the 

completion of a findings of fact, a motion to recommend approval of the zoning variations 

passed (vote of 4 yes; 0 no; 2 absent). 

 

mamraen
Typewritten Text
January 21, 2014 City CouncilManager's Report 16b



 

A copy of the applicant’s petition and exhibits, along with a copy of the Community 

Development Report prepared for this request are attached.  A copy of the minutes from the 

Zoning Board of Appeals meeting is also attached. 

 

Based on the action of the Zoning Board of Appeals, as well as the evidence furnished at 

the hearing, it is recommended that the City Council adopt Document Number 

__________, consisting of an Ordinance varying Section 7A.3 Bulk and Area Standards, of 

the Unified Development Ordinance to allow the construction of a 23’ by 6’10” screened 

porch addition to extend 2 feet into the required rear yard setback.   

rstelford
Approved

mamraen
Typewritten Text
10

















MINUTES 
CITY OF WOODSTOCK 

ZONING BOARD OF APPEALS 
December 9, 2013 

City Council Chambers 
 
The regular meeting of the City of Woodstock Zoning Board of Appeals was called to order at 
7:00 PM by Chairman John Schuh on Monday, December 9, 2013 in the Council Chambers of 
Woodstock City Hall, 121 West Calhoun Street, Woodstock.  A roll call was taken. 
 
COMMISSION MEMBERS PRESENT: Chairman John Schuh, Lawrence Winters, Patrick 
Shea, Timothy Huffar 
 
COMMISSION MEMBERS ABSENT:  Howard Rigsby, Thomas Tierney 
 
STAFF PRESENT:  City Planner Nancy Baker  
 
OTHERS PRESENT:  City Clerk Dianne Mitchell, Petitioners Laurie and Gene Mortimer 
 
APPROVAL OF MINUTES:   
Motion by P. Shea, second by T. Huffar to approve the Minutes of the January 14, 2013 
Woodstock Zoning Board of Appeals meeting as presented. Ayes: P. Shea, Chairman Schuh, L. 
Winters, T. Huffar. Nays: None. Absentees: H. Rigsby, T. Tierney. Abstentions: None. Motion 
carried. 
 
NEW BUSINESS 
Chairman Schuh opened the Public Hearing at 7:02 PM. 
 
A. 1701 Sebastian Drive—Variation to construct a screened porch that extends two feet into a 
rear yard building setback. 
 
Laurie Mortimer, Homeowner, 1701 Sebastian Dr., Woodstock was sworn in by Chairman 
Schuh.  L. Mortimer stated that they are currently approved for a 23’ x 5’ screened in porch but 
they would like to extend it out an additional two feet.   She reported that they purchased the 
largest lot available at an additional cost and were told that they could put a porch on but they 
didn’t realize the limitation of the size until after they started building. She stated that the request 
is not based on a monetary gain as they just moved in this year and plan on making it their 
permanent home.  She advised that the porch will be attached and stretched across the back of 
the house.  She stated that the porch will not be detrimental to the public or impair their 
neighbors.  She advised that they have put in mature trees to help the porch blend in and to 
provide privacy.  She stated that their HOA has already approved the structure.   
 
Chairman Schuh asked if proper notification was given and N. Baker affirmed and stated that the 
City did not hear anything back. 
 
Chairman Schuh closed the Public Hearing at 7:05 PM. 
 
The Findings of Fact were completed by the Zoning Board of Appeals and are attached to these 
minutes. 
 



Woodstock Zoning Board of Appeals 
12/9/13 

 Page 2 of 2 

Motion by T. Huffar, second by L. Winters  to approve the variations of Section 7A.3, Bulk and 
Area Requirements of the Unified Ordinance to allow construction of a 23’ by 6’ 10” screened 
room that extends two feet into the rear yard setback as established on the Sweetwater Planned 
Development, Final Plat of Subdivision, Unit 3. Ayes: P. Shea, Chairman Schuh, L. Winters, T. 
Huffar. Nays: None. Absentees: H. Rigsby, T. Tierney. Abstentions: None. Motion carried. 
 
ADJOURNMENT  
Motion by P. Shea, second by L. Winters to adjourn the December 9, 2013 Zoning Board of 
Appeals meeting at 7:10 PM. Ayes: P. Shea, Chairman Schuh, L. Winters, T. Huffar. Nays: 
None. Absentees: H. Rigsby, T. Tierney. Abstentions: None. Motion carried. 
 
Respectfully Submitted, 
 
_____________________________ 
Dianne Mitchell 
City Clerk 



   WOODSTOCK ZONING BOARD OF APPEALS 
 COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT REPORT: ZBA-12-01-13 

December 9, 2013 
 
 
PROJECT NAME: 1701 Sebastian Drive 
  
 

GENERAL BACKGROUND INFORMATION 
  
 
Owner and Applicant: Laurie and Gene Mortimer 
    1701 Sebastian Dr. 
    Woodstock, IL 60098 
        
REQUEST:  This appeal is requested from provisions of the Woodstock Unified Development   
Ordinance, Section 7A.3., Bulk and Area Requirements to allow a screened porch to extend 2 feet 
into a rear yard setback. 
  
EXISTING ZONING AND LAND USE OF SUBJECT PARCEL:  The property in question is 
zoned R-PUD, Single Family Residential, Planned Unit Development.  The approved PUD allows 
smaller lot sizes than the 7200 SF minimum in the R district and allows both single family detached 
and single family attached residences. Setbacks and other lot details are shown on the final plat of 
subdivision. 
 
ADJACENT  ZONING AND LAND USE:  The property is surrounded by R-PUD zoning.      
Single family detached residential uses are adjacent on the north and west sides of the subject 
property, single family attached residential uses are adjacent on  the east side, and  a detention basis 
is located to the south of the subject property.    
 
ANALYSIS:   The property in question is a corner lot, 7840 square  feet in area, and is improved 
with a single family residence.   The UDO specifies that the approved plat of subdivision controls the 
rear yard setback which for this lot is 20 feet.  Decks are allowed to encroach into the rear yard 
setback up to 5 feet from the rear lot line.  Screened rooms, gazebos, etc. are allowed in a rear 
setback, however enclosed and covered structures attached to a residence must meet the same 
setback as the principal structure. 
 
If, granted, the variation will allow the petitioner construct a 23’  by  6’10” screened porch.  Plans for 
the proposed porch addition are included with the application.  
  
UNIFIED DEVELOPMENT ORDINANCE GUIDANCE:  Section 4.5.7 states that zoning 
variations may be approved after a finding that the following approval criteria have been addressed.   
 
A. The extent to which particular physical surroundings, shape, or topography of the subject 

property results in practical difficulty or hardship upon the owner, as distinguished from a 
mere inconvenience if the strict letter of the zoning regulations are carried out. 

 



 
B. The extent that the alleged difficulty or hardship is caused by the application of these zoning 

regulations and has not been created by any person having an interest in the property. 
 
C. The extent to which conditions upon which the zoning variation request is based are unique 

to the subject property and would not be applicable to other property within the same zoning 
classification. 

 
D. Whether the variation is based exclusively on a desire to increase the value of the property, 

the monetary gain to be realized from the property, or the ability to alleviate financial 
difficulty experienced by the petitioner when attempting to comply with the City’s zoning 
regulations.  

 
E. The detrimental impact, if any, to the public welfare, to other property, or to improvements in 

the immediate neighborhood which may result if the zoning variation is granted. 
 
F. Whether or not the proposed zoning variation will impair the adequate supply of light and air 

to adjacent property, or substantially increase congestion in public streets, or endanger the 
public safety, or substantially diminish or impair property values in the neighborhood; and  

 
G. That the zoning variation will not confer on the applicant any special privilege that is denied 

by these regulations to other lands, structures or buildings of the same zoning classification. 
 
 

RECOMMENDATION: If the Zoning Board of Appeals agrees that the criteria are met, a 
motion should be made recommending variations of Section 7A.3,  Bulk and Area Requirements,      
of  the  Woodstock  Unified Development Ordinance to allow construction of a 23’ by 6’10” 
screened room that extends two feet into the rear yard setback as established on the Sweetwater 
Planned Development, Final Plat of  Subdivision, Unit 3. 



 
 
 

1701 SEBASTIAN DRIVE 
 

  ZONING AND LOCATION MAP 
 

  
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 

Subject site 
 



2012 AERIAL MAP   
 

 

Subject site 
 



Zoning Board of Appeals:  1701 Sebastian Drive 
 

The Zoning Board of Appeals shall complete the enclosed form, which will be included with the Findings 
of Fact Report submitted to the City Council. 
 
Request: Variation from the provisions of the Woodstock Unified Development Ordinance Section 7A.3, 
Bulk and Area Requirements to allow construction of a 23’ by 6’ 10” screened room that extends 
two feet into the rear yard setback as established on the Sweetwater Planned Development, Final 
Plat of Subdivision, Unit 3. 
  
Section 7.3.5 states that the Board may determine and 
recommend to the City Council a variation of the 
regulations of Ordinance when it finds: 

 
Yes 
or  
No 

 
 

Comments 

 
1.  The particular surroundings, shape or topographical condition 
of the specific property involved would result in a particular 
hardship upon the owner, as distinguished from a mere 
inconvenience, if the strict letter of the regulations was carried 
out; 

 
 

Yes - all 

 
 

 
2.  The conditions upon which the petition for a variation are 
based are unique to the property for which the variation is sought 
and are not applicable, generally to the other property with the 
same zoning classification;  

 

No – J. Schuh, 
L. Winters 

Yes – T. 
Huffar, P. Shea 

 
 

 
3.  The purpose of the variation is not based exclusively upon a 
desire to increase the monetary gain realized from the property or 
to alleviate financial difficulty experienced by the petitioner in the 
attempt to comply with the provisions of this Ordinance;  

 

 

Yes - all 

 

 
 

 
4.  The alleged difficulty or hardship is caused by the application 
of this Ordinance and has not been created by any person 
presently having an interest in the property;  

 
Yes - all 

 
 

 
5. That the granting of the variation will not be detrimental to the 
public welfare or injurious to other property or improvements in 
the neighborhoods in which the property is located;  

 

Yes - all 

 
 

 
6.  That the proposed variation will not impair an adequate supply 
of light and air to adjacent property, or substantially increase the 
congestion in the public streets or increase the danger of fire, or 
endanger the public safety or substantially diminish or  impair 
property values with the adjacent neighborhood;  

 

 

Yes - all 

 
 

 
7.  That the granting of the variation requested will not confer on 
the applicant any special privilege that is denied by the Ordinance 
to other lands, structures or buildings of the same district. 

 
Yes - all 

 
 

 



 

 

 

  

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

ORDINANCE NUMBER 14-O-_____________ 

 

AN ORDINANCE VARYING PROVISIONS OF 

 THE WOODSTOCK UNIFIED DEVELOPMENT ORDINANCE  

FOR PROPERTY AT 1701 SEBASTIAN DRIVE 

  

Be it ordained by the Mayor and City Council of the City of Woodstock, McHenry County, 

Illinois, as follows: 

 

Section One.   That, Section 7A.3, Bulk and Area Standards, of the Woodstock Unified 

Development Ordinance is varied to allow the construction of a 23’ by 6’10” screened room to 

extend two feet into the rear yard setback as established on the Sweetwater Planned 

Development, Final Plat of Subdivision, Unit 3, (18 feet from the rear lot line) on property 

legally described as: 

  

Lot 236 in Sweetwater Planned Development Final Plat of Subdivision Phase 3, being a 

Subdivision of that part of the Northwest Quarter of Section 33 in Township 45 North 

Range 7 East of the Third Principal Meridian, according to the Plat thereof recorded 

September 29, 2005 per Document Number 2005R0082495, and amended according to 

the Certificate of Correction thereof recorded January 27, 2006 per Document Number 

2006R0006254, in McHenry County, Illinois. 

 

Section Two.  That the Zoning Board of Appeals on December 9, 2013 conducted a required 

public hearing on said variation and recommended to the City Council that it be approved. 

 

Section Three.  That this ordinance shall be known as Ordinance Number 14-O-_________ and 

shall be in full force and effect upon its passage and approval as provided by law. 

 

Section Four.  Any ordinances or parts thereof or any regulations in conflict with this ordinance 

are hereby repealed. 

 

mamraen
Typewritten Text
Doc.10



APPROVED AND PASSED by the City Council of the City of Woodstock, McHenry County, 

Illinois, this __________ day of ____________________, 2014. 

 

                                             

 

              

       ______________________________ 

                                          Mayor Brian Sager, Ph.D. 

Ayes: 

Nays: 

Abstentions: 

Absentees: 

 

Attest: 

 

 

________________________________  

City Clerk Dianne Mitchell 

 



…………………………………………………………………………………………………………………………..  

 

Ad mini s tra t io n    ♦    Pa r ks    ♦    S tree t  Ma inte na nce    ♦    Eng ineer ing  

Sew er  & Wa ter  Co n vey a nce    ♦    Wa ter  Trea t me nt    ♦    Wa stew a ter  Trea t men t  

       City of    

               
Depart ment  of  Publ ic  Wo rks  

3 2 6  Wash in gton  S t r ee t  

Wo od s tock ,  I l l i n o i s  6 0 0 9 8  
   8 1 5 /33 8 -6 11 8  ♦  Fax  8 1 5 /3 3 4 -2 2 6 3  

p ru sck o@ wo od s tock i l . g o v  

www. wo od s t ock i l . go v  

To:  Roscoe Stelford 

 

From:  Paul R. Ruscko 

 

Re: Approval of an Ordinance Amending the Woodstock City Code Pertaining to 

Parking Revisions on Alleys 1 through 4 

 

Date: January 15, 2014 

 

The four (4) alleys in and adjacent to the downtown area provide access to business 

loading/delivery areas, business parking lots, residential parking lots, residential driveways, and 

residential garages.  The functionality of these alleys is an important part of the daily operations 

of local businesses and is necessary for residents to access their property.  This functionality is 

negatively impacted when a vehicle is parked within the alleyway.  In this instance, the alley 

may be passable for most passenger vehicles, but the alley becomes impassable for larger 

vehicles.  This includes, but is not limited to, large passenger vehicles, delivery trucks, 

ambulances, fire trucks, snowplow trucks, etc.  

 

The alleys were not constructed to account for vehicular parking; they were constructed for 

property access and short duration loading/unloading.  When a vehicle is parked in the alley, it 

lowers the level of service that the alley provides, and negatively impacts the daily operations 

and lives of our businesses and residents.  Therefore, staff is recommending that the City not 

allow parking in four (4) specific alleys.  Designating Alleys 1, 2, 3 & 4 as “No Parking” will 

prevent vehicles from being parked in the alleys, while still allowing the alleys to be used for its 

intended purpose.  Businesses will be able to use the alleys for short durations as 

loading/unloading zones, and both residents and businesses will be able to readily access their 

properties.  The alleys in question are located as follows: 

 

Alley 1 runs between Clay Street and Madison Street; it is located north of Church St. 

and south of Hutchins St. 

 

Alley 2 runs between Clay Street and Madison Street; it is located north of Hutchins 

St. and south of Newell St. 

 

Alley 3 runs between Clay Street and Madison Street; it is located north of Newell St. 

and south of North St. 

 

Alley 4 runs between Dean Street and Jefferson Street; it is located north of South St. 

and south of Calhoun St. 

 

Attached is a location map of the aforementioned alleys. 

mamraen
Typewritten Text
January 21, 2014 City CouncilManager's Report 16c



…………………………………………………………………………………………………………………………..  

 

Ad mini s tra t io n    ♦    Pa r ks    ♦    S tree t  Ma inte na nce    ♦    Eng ineer ing  

Sew er  & Wa ter  Co n vey a nce    ♦    Wa ter  Trea t me nt    ♦    Wa stew a ter  Trea t men t  

 

 

In order to enact the “No Parking” restrictions for the aforementioned alleys, it is recommended 

that the attached Ordinance, identified as Document # ______ be approved amending the 

Woodstock City Code creating revisions to parking restrictions along Alleys 1, 2, 3 & 4 as 

previously identified. 

mamraen
Typewritten Text
11





 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

ORDINANCE NO. ___________ 

 

AN ORDINANCE PROVIDING FOR AN AMENDMENT TO THE CITY CODE 

OF THE CITY OF WOODSTOCK, McHENRY COUNTY, ILLINOIS 

PROVIDING FOR THE REVISION OF CERTAIN TRAFFIC REGULATIONS 

 

WHEREAS, it is an appropriate exercise of the police power of the City of Woodstock, 

McHenry County, Illinois to regulate and restrict parking and the movement of traffic on City 

streets and alleys; and 

 

WHEREAS, the City of Woodstock has determined that it is reasonable and appropriate to 

revise the regulations limiting and controlling on street parking along various streets and alleys 

within the City of Woodstock. 

 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED by the City Council of the City of Woodstock, 

McHenry County, Illinois as follows: 

 

Section One.  That Schedule VII of Section 5.3.7, No Parking Places, of the Woodstock City 

Code is hereby amended by adding the following: 

 

Street   Side   From    To 

Alley 1   North   Clay    Madison 

Alley 1   South   Clay    Madison 

Alley 2   North   Clay    Madison 

Alley 2   South   Clay    Madison 

Alley 3   North   Clay    Madison 

Alley 3   South   Clay    Madison 

Alley 4   North   Dean    Jefferson 

Alley 4   South   Dean    Jefferson 

 

Section Two. That the Public Works Department is hereby authorized and directed to place 

appropriate signs authorized by this Ordinance. 

 

Section Three.  That all Ordinances or parts of Ordinances in conflict herewith are hereby 

repealed to the extent of such conflict. 

mamraen
Typewritten Text
Doc.11



 

Section Four.  That this Ordinance shall be known as Ordinance No. _________ and shall be in 

full force and effect after its passage, approval, and publication as is required by law. 

 

PASSED by the City Council of the City of Woodstock, McHenry County, Illinois and approved 

this 21st day of January, 2014. 

 

Ayes:  

Nays: 

Abstentions: 

Absentees: 

                                                                                  _____________________________________ 

Brian Sager Ph.D., Mayor 

 

 

Attest: __________________________________________ 

  City Clerk 

 



       City of    

               
Department of  Community & Economic Development             phone 815.338.4305  
121 W. Calhoun Street                                       fax  815.334.2267 
Woodstock, I l l ino is 60098                                         commdevdept@woodstocki l .gov  

                                                                                                                  www.woodstockil.gov 

 

January 15, 2014 

 

 

To:   Roscoe Stelford, City Manager 

 

From:   Cort Carlson, Community & Economic Development Director 

  Donovan Day, Assistant to the Director 

 

OLD COURTHOUSE ART CENTER SPACE USAGE AND DONATION AGREEMENT 

 

When the City of Woodstock acquired the Old McHenry County Courthouse building in late 

2011, several businesses held lease agreements with the previous owner.  Upon taking ownership 

of the building and establishing a 501(c) 3 corporation for the property, the City transitioned the 

leases into space usage and donation agreements.  The Old Courthouse Arts Center which was 

founded in 1990 is one such tenant that the City has maintained since taking ownership.  The art 

center is a tremendous asset to the Woodstock Square and represents the type of use the City 

would like to see continue in the building. Since its founding, the Old Courthouse Arts Center 

has operated as a consignment and exhibit gallery managed by a private party.   

 

This summer the owner of the Old Courthouse Arts Center and a representative of the Northwest 

Area Arts Council (NAAC) met with City representatives to discuss their desire to transition 

management and daily operations of the Arts Center from a private party to that of NAAC as of 

January 1, 2014.  NAAC has committed to continuing the existing art center while expanding 

hours of operation and special events, as well as adding new art classes to increase business to 

the arts center and the Woodstock Square.  What is now the Northwest Area Arts Council was 

formed in 1983 as a local arts commission and in 1991 became its own independent nonprofit 

organization acting as a clearinghouse for publicizing area arts-related events.  In 1994 the 

organization adopted its current name to better reflect the regional nature of its programming, 

promotions and evolving goals of the organization.  NAAC is a 501(c) 3 nonprofit organization 

with programming outreach to the greater McHenry County region.  According to their web site, 

NAAC’s mission statement is as follows: 

 

The Northwest Area Arts Council is a volunteer agency dedicated to connecting 

artists of all ages with the community at large and to fostering creativity in all 

areas of life.  NAAC accomplishes this by educating, informing, and inspiring the 

community through programs and events that encourage appreciation, 

participation, and support of the arts. 

 

http://www.woodstockil.gov/
mamraen
Typewritten Text
January 21, 2014 City CouncilManager's Report 16d



The accompanying space use and donation agreement is similar to that of the vacating occupant.  

NAAC will occupy the majority of the first floor of the Old McHenry County Courthouse 

building with the exception of the common area and one additional occupant.  NAAC is aware of 

the City’s building-related RFP process and desire to transition the building back into private 

hands, as well as ongoing renovation and restoration work.  Terms of the space usage and 

donation agreement is for $600 per month, to be negotiated annually as long as the City retains 

ownership of the building.   

 

Subject to City Attorney’s final review and approval, it is recommended that the City 

Council approve the attached Ordinance identified as Document Number ______, “An 

Ordinance Authorizing a Space Usage and Donation Agreement Between the City of 

Woodstock and Northwest Area Arts Council for the Old Courthouse Art Center at the Old 

Courthouse building.”  The term of the new agreement would begin on January 1, 2014 and 

extend through December 31, 2014.  This agreement is subject to negotiations on an annual 

basis. 

rstelford
Approved

mamraen
Typewritten Text
12



  

 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

ORDINANCE NUMBER 14-O-_____ 

 

 
AN ORDINANCE AUTHORIZING A SPACE USAGE AND DONATION 

AGREEMENT BETWEEN THE CITY OF WOODSTOCK AND NORTHWEST 

AREA ARTS COUNCIL FOR THE OLD COURTHOUSE ART CENTER AT THE 

OLD COURTHOUSE BUILDING 
 

 

WHEREAS, the City of Woodstock is the record owner of property known as the Old 

Courthouse and located at 101 North Johnson Street, Woodstock, Illinois; and  

 

WHEREAS, the City Council has determined that it is in the interests of the City of 

Woodstock to allow the Northwest Area Arts Council to use specific space within said Old 

Courthouse, subject to mutually acceptable terms and conditions; and  

 

WHEREAS, Exhibit A, attached hereto and made a part hereof, consisting of a Space 

Usage and Donation Agreement between the City of Woodstock and the Northwest Area 

Arts Council sets forth the aforementioned terms and conditions; and 

 

WHEREAS, the ability to use space within the Old Courthouse will assist the Northwest 

Area Arts Council in fulfilling its mission of connecting artists of all ages with the 

community at large and to fostering creativity in all areas of life. 

 

NOW THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED by the City Council of the City of 

Woodstock, McHenry County, Illinois, as follows: 

 

SECTION 1: That the attached agreement, identified as Exhibit A and incorporated 

herein by reference, consisting of a Space Usage and Donation Agreement between the 

City of Woodstock and the Northwest Arts Council is hereby approved and that City 

Manager is hereby authorized to execute said agreement on behalf of the City of 

Woodstock. 

 

 

mamraen
Typewritten Text
Doc.12



  

 

SECTION 2: If any section, paragraph, subdivision, clause, sentence or provision of this 

Ordinance shall be adjudged by any Court of competent jurisdiction to be invalid, such 

judgment shall not affect, impair, invalidate or nullify the remainder thereof, which 

remainder shall remain and continue in full force and effect. 
 
SECTION 3: All ordinances or parts of ordinances in conflict herewith are hereby 
repealed to the extent of such conflict. 

 
SECTION 4: This Ordinance shall be known as Ordinance Number 14-O-_________and 
shall be in full force and effect upon its passage and approval by a three-fourths vote of the 
City Council, and its publication in pamphlet form (which publication is hereby 
authorized) as provided by law. 
 
PASSED and APPROVED this _______day of January, 2014. 
 

Ayes: 

Nays: 

Abstentions: 

Absentees: 

APPROVED: 

 

     

Mayor Brian Sager, Ph.D. 

 

(SEAL) 

 

ATTEST: _____     

City Clerk Dianne Mitchell 

 

Passed:  

Approved:  

Published:  

 

 

 



  

 

Exhibit A 
 

SPACE USAGE AND DONATION AGREEMENT 

BETWEEN THE CITY OF WOODSTOCK AND NORTHWEST AREA ARTS COUNCIL 

101 NORTH JOHNSON STREET  

WOODSTOCK, ILLINOIS 

 

This Space Usage and Donation Agreement (“Agreement”) is made and effective 

this _21_ day of _January_, 2014 by and between the CITY OF WOODSTOCK, an 

Illinois municipal corporation, 121 West Calhoun, Woodstock, Illinois 60098 (“City”) and 

Northwest Area Arts Council, a user of space located within 101 North Johnson Street, 

Woodstock, Illinois (“User”). 

 

City is the owner of land and improvements commonly known as The Old 

Courthouse, 101 North Johnson Street, Woodstock, Illinois (“Building”). 

 

Specifically, City makes available for use a portion of the Building as set forth 

below (the “Premises”): 

 

Space to be made available for use to the User is depicted on the floor plan 

attached to this Agreement.  User shall not access or utilize any additional space 

without the written consent of the City of Woodstock. 

 

City desires to allow for the User to use Premises, and User desires to utilize 

identified space within the Premises from City for the term, at the donation amount and 

upon the covenants, conditions and provisions herein set forth. 

 

NOW THEREFORE, in consideration of the mutual promises herein, contained 

and other good and valuable consideration, it is agreed: 

 

1. Term.  City hereby allows use of the Premises to User upon execution of this 

Agreement, and User hereby acknowledges the same from City through and including 

December 31, 2014.   

 

2. Donation Amount.  During the term of the use, User shall make a monthly 

contribution to the Old Courthouse and Sheriff’s House Building Maintenance and 

Restoration Fund (a separate, not-for-profit account administered by the City of 

Woodstock, established for the purpose of funding building maintenance and restoration 

activities) in the amount identified below to City (at 121 West Calhoun Street, Woodstock, 

IL  60098, Attention:  City Manager): 

 

(a) Monthly Donation Amount: ___$600__ payable upon the first day of each 

month and thereafter until this Space Usage and Donation Agreement has 

terminated. For the first month of this Agreement only, commencing on the 

execution date of this Agreement, the User shall pay only a prorated amount 

based upon the remaining days of the month.  

 



  

 

3. Use.  The occupied Premises may be used and occupied by User only for the 

following purposes:  Arts gallery and arts related activities. User shall not use the 

Premises for the purposes of storing, manufacturing or selling any explosives, flammables 

or other inherently dangerous, noxious, odorous or offensive substances, chemicals, or 

devices other than encompassed by the purpose identified above, and always used and 

stored in a safe and appropriate manner.  User shall keep the Premises free of debris and 

shall not create undue vibration or noise. 

 

4. Assignment.  User shall not assign this Agreement in whole or in part. 

 

5. Care and Maintenance of Premises.  User shall maintain the Premises in good 

and safe condition, and shall surrender the same, at termination hereof, in good condition 

as received, normal wear and tear expected.  User is occupying the Premises from City in 

an “as-is” condition, and City assumes no responsibility for improving or altering the 

Premises in any way during the term of this Agreement. 

 

6. Alterations and Improvements.  User shall make no new alterations or 

improvements to the Premises without City’s consent which may be withheld for any 

reason.  With City’s consent, which may be withheld for any reason, User may install at its 

own expense, trade fixtures and temporary installations provided the same are made in a 

workmanlike manner and utilizing good quality materials. 

  

7. Insurance.   

  

7.1 City shall maintain fire and extended coverage insurance on the Building 

and the Premises in such amounts as City shall deem appropriate.  User shall be 

responsible, at its expense, for fire and extended coverage insurance on all of its personal 

property, including removable trade fixtures, located in the Premises. 

 

7.2 User shall, at its own expense, maintain a policy or policies of 

comprehensive general liability insurance for not less than $1,000,000.00 with respect to 

its activities in the Building with the premiums thereon fully paid on or before due date, 

issued by and binding upon an insurance company approved by City.  City shall be listed 

as an additional insured on User’s policy or policies of comprehensive general liability 

insurance, and User shall provide City with current certificates of insurance evidencing 

User’s compliance with this Paragraph.  User shall obtain the agreement of User’s insurers 

to notify City that a policy is due to expire at least (10) days prior to such expiration.  City 

shall not be required to maintain insurance against thefts within the Premises or the 

Building. 

 

City Liability.  City and City’s elected and appointed officials, agents, 

attorneys and employees (collectively “City Affiliates”), shall not be liable for, 

and User unconditionally and absolutely waives and fully indemnifies City and 

City Affiliates for any and all causes of action, rights and claims against City or 

City Affiliates, arising from any damage or injury to person or property, 

regardless of cause, sustained by User, parties claiming through User, resulting 



  

 

from any accident or occurrence in or upon the Premises unless such damage or 

injury to person or property shall be more than 50% due to the negligence of 

City or City’s Affiliates.  This provision shall survive the termination or 

expiration of this Lease.  This waiver and indemnity includes but is not limited 

to claims for damage resulting from (1) any equipment or appurtenances 

becoming out of repair; (2) City’s failure to keep said Premise in Repair; (3) 

injury done or occasioned by wind, water, or other natural elements; (4) any 

defect in or failure of plumbing, heating or air conditioning equipment, electric 

wiring or installation thereof, gas water and steam pipes, stairs, porches, 

railings or walks; (5) broken glass; (6) the backing up of any sewer pipe or 

downspout; (7) the bursting, leaking, or running of any tank, tub, washstand, 

water closet, waste pipe, drain, or any other pipe or tank in, on or about the 

Leased Premises; (8) the escape of steam or hot water; (9) water, snow or ice 

being on or coming through the roof, trapdoor, stairs, walks, or any other place 

on or near the Leased Premises or otherwise; (10) the falling of any fixtures, 

plaster or stucco; and (11) any act, omission or negligence of other persons or 

occupants of adjoining or contiguous buildings or space or of owners of 

adjacent or contiguous property. 

 

8. Utilities.  City shall pay all charges for gas, water, and electricity used by User 

on the Premises during the term of this Agreement.  User shall not use any equipment or 

devices that utilize excessive electrical energy or which may, in City’s reasonable opinion, 

overload the wiring, interfere with electrical services, or create a dangerous or potentially 

dangerous environment. 

 

9. Signs.  Following City’s consent, User shall have the right to place on the 

Premises, at locations selected by City, any signs which are permitted by applicable zoning 

ordinances.  City may refuse consent to any proposed signage that is in City’s reasonable 

opinion too large, deceptive, unattractive or otherwise inconsistent with or inappropriate to 

the Premises or use of any other User.  User shall repair all damage to the Leased Premises 

resulting from the removal of signs installed by User. 

 

10. Entry.  City shall have the right to enter upon the Premises at reasonable hours 

to inspect the same.  In addition, with 10-days' notice or immediately in the case of an 

emergency as determined at the sole discretion of the City, City may deny access to areas 

of the Premises to User in order to effectuate repairs, remodeling or renovations of the 

space. 

 

11. Damage and Destruction.  If the Premises or any part thereof or any 

appurtenance thereto is so damaged by fire, casualty or structural defects that the same 

cannot be used for User’s purposes or in the event of any other damage to the Building or 

the Premises that renders the Premises unusable, inoperable or unfit for occupancy in 

whole or in part, then this Agreement shall terminate as of the date of such damage.  City 

shall have no further obligation to User except that the City shall return to the User 

prorated donation for that month. 

 



  

 

12. Default.  If default shall at any time be made by User in the payment of 

donation amount when due to City as herein provided, and if said default shall continue for 

five (5) days after written notice thereof shall have been given to User by City, or if default 

shall be made in any of the other covenants or conditions to be kept, observed and 

performed by User, and such default shall continue for fifteen (15) days after notice thereof 

in writing to User by City without correction thereof then having been commenced and 

thereafter diligently prosecuted, City may declare the term of this Agreement ended and 

terminated by giving User written notice of such intention.  If possession of the Premises is 

not surrendered, City may reenter said Premises and may prohibit access to building by 

User.  City shall have, in addition to the remedy above provided, any other right or remedy 

available to City on account of any User default, either in law or equity. 

 

13. Condemnation and Renovation.  If any legally, constituted authority 

including The City of Woodstock/City condemns the Building or such part thereof which 

shall make the Premises unsuitable for use, this Agreement shall cease.  Similarly, at such 

time as the City of Woodstock/City determines that the Premises should be vacated for any 

safety or operational reasons or for renovations, maintenance, or repairs to the Building, 

the City shall provide thirty (30) days written notice (if possible, and less if safety reasons 

require shorter notice) and this Agreement may thereafter be terminated by City without 

penalty.  These provisions apply notwithstanding any stated term in this Agreement. 

 

14. Rules and Regulations.  City may from time to time make reasonable rules 

and regulations related to the operation, maintenance, safety and use of the Premises and 

the Building and User shall comply with such rules and regulations. 

 

15. Notice.  Any notice required or permitted under this Agreement shall be 

deemed sufficiently given or served if hand delivered to the address herein or if sent by 

United States certified mail, return receipt requested addressed as follows: 

 

 If to City, to:   City Manager 

     City of Woodstock 

     121 West Calhoun Street 

     Woodstock, IL   60098 

 

 If to User, to:              Northwest Area Arts Council 

     101 North Johnson Street 

Woodstock, Illinois  60098 

            

City shall have the right from time to time to change the place notice is to be given under 

this paragraph by written notice thereof to the User. 

 

16. Brokers.  User represents that User was not shown the Premises by any real 

estate broker or agent and that User has not otherwise engaged in any activity which could 

form the basis for a claim for real estate commission, brokerage fee, finder’s fee or other 

similar charge, in connection with this Agreement. 

 



  

 

17. Waiver.  No waiver of any default of City or User hereunder shall be implied 

from any omission to take any action on account of such default if such default persists or 

is repeated, and no express waiver shall affect any default other than the default specified 

in the express waiver and that only for the time and to the extent therein stated.  One or 

more waivers by City or User shall not be construed as a waiver of a subsequent breach of 

the same covenant, term or condition. 

 

18. Headings.  The headings used in this Agreement are for convenience of the 

parties only and shall not be considered in interpreting the meaning of any provision of this 

Agreement. 

 

19. Final Agreement.  This Agreement terminates and supersedes all prior 

understandings or agreements on the subject matter hereof.  This Agreement may be 

modified only by a further writing that is duly executed by both parties. 

 

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties have executed this Agreement as of the day and 

year first above written. 

 

CITY:      USER: 

City of Woodstock, an Illinois                       Northwest Area Arts Council  

Municipal Corporation     

 

 

By: _____________________________ By: _______________________________ 

      Roscoe C. Stelford III     

      City Manager    Name: _____________________________ 

                       

      Title: ______________________________ 

 



 
 

 

 

 

 
F

lo
o
r P

lan
 –

 U
ser S

p
ace 



  

 

 

 

C E R T I F I C A T I O N 
 

 I, DIANNE MITCHELL, do hereby certify that I am the duly appointed, acting 

and qualified Clerk of the City of Woodstock, McHenry County, Illinois, and that as such 

Clerk, I am the keeper of the records and minutes and proceedings of the Mayor and 

Council members of said City. 

 

 I do hereby further certify that at a regular meeting of the Woodstock City Council, 

held on the _________ day of January 2014, the foregoing Ordinance entitled AN 

ORDINANCE AUTHORIZING A SPACE USAGE AND DONATION 

AGREEMENT BETWEEN THE CITY OF WOODSTOCK AND NORTHWEST 

AREA ARTS COUNCIL FOR THE OLD COURTHOUSE ART CENTER AT THE 

OLD COURTHOUSE BUILDING, was duly passed by said City Council. 

 

 The pamphlet form of Ordinance No. 14-O-_____including the Ordinance and a 

cover sheet thereof, was prepared, and a copy of such Ordinance was posted in the City 

Hall, commencing on the _______day of _________________, 2014, and will continue for 

at least 10 days thereafter. Copies of such Ordinance are also available for public 

inspection upon request in the office of the City Clerk. 

 

 I do further certify that the original, of which the attached is a true and correct 

copy, is entrusted to me as the Clerk of said City for safekeeping, and that I am the lawful 

custodian and keeper of the same. 

 

 Given under my hand and corporate seal of the City of Woodstock this    

day of     , 2014. 

 

 

 

      

Dianne Mitchell, Clerk 

City of Woodstock, 

McHenry County, Illinois 

(SEAL) 
 
 

 



       City of 

               
 
Pol i ce  Department  phone 815 .338 .6787  

Rober t  W.  Lo wen,  Chie f o f  Po l ice  fax 815 .334 .2275  

656  Lake Avenue  po l iced ept@wood stocki l .gov  

Woodsto ck,  I l l ino is  60 098  www.woodsto cki l . go v  

  

  

 

 
Woodstock is proud to have been recognized as a 2007 Distinctive Destination  

by the National Trust for Historic Preservation 

 

 

To:  Mr. Roscoe C. Stelford, City Manager 

From: Robert W. Lowen, Chief of Police  

Re: Vehicular Control Contract - Woodstock Walmart Store #3434 

Date:  January 13, 2014 

 

 

This correspondence seeks approval for the attached ordinance adopting a Vehicular Control 

Contract between Woodstock Walmart Store #3434 and the City of Woodstock. 

 

Our City of Woodstock Vision 2020 calls for us to “Maintain a vigilant police department 

committed to and accountable for providing public safety and security” as well as to “Have City 

Ordinances that preserve our historic character, protect our neighborhoods and natural resources, 

and promote single family lifestyles.” The City of Woodstock partners with our Business 

Community to “Offer a safe environment secured through community policing and determined 

public-private partnerships.”  

 

The Police Department regularly enforces parking restrictions as well as traffic regulations on 

private properties that have a Vehicular Control Contract with the City of Woodstock.  

 

Therefore, it is recommended the City Council approve the attached Ordinance, subject to 

City Attorney final review and approval, identified as Document No. _____,  authorizing 

the adoption of the Vehicular Control Contract between Woodstock Walmart Store #3434 

and the City of Woodstock. 

 

 

Respectfully submitted, 

 

Robert W. Lowen 

Chief of Police   

rstelford
Approved

mamraen
Typewritten Text
January 21, 2014 City CouncilManager's Report 16e

mamraen
Typewritten Text

mamraen
Typewritten Text
13



  

 

Vehicular Control Contract, Page 1 

 
 
 
 
 
 

ORDINANCE NO. 14-O-____ 
 

An Ordinance Approving a Vehicular Control Contract By and Between 

Woodstock Walmart Store 3434 and the City of Woodstock 

 

 WHEREAS, Woodstock Walmart Store 3434 (“Walmart”) has requested the assistance of 

the City of Woodstock (the “City”) in the patrol of the parking and certain common areas owned 

by Walmart and legally and commonly described as follows (“Walmart Property”): 

 

BEING A SUBDIVISION OF PART OF THE SOUTHEAST QUARTER OF 

SECTION 9, AND PART OF THE NORTHEAST QUARTER OF THE 

NORTHWEST QUARTER AND PART OF THE NORTHWEST QUARTER OF 

THE NORTHEAST QUARTER OF SECTION 16, ALL IN TOWNSHIP 44 

NORTH, RANGE 7 EAST OF THE THIRD PRINCIPAL MERIDIAN, IN 

MCHENRY COUNTY, ILLINOIS. 

 

The Walmart Property is located at 1275 Lake Avenue; and 

 

 WHEREAS, Walmart has requested that the City furnish police services and traffic patrol 

for the Walmart Property and the City has the power to enforce the provisions of the Illinois 

Vehicle Code on the Walmart Property in accordance with the provisions of 625 ILCS 5/11-209. 

 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED by the Mayor and City Council of the City of 

Woodstock, McHenry County, Illinois, as follows: 

 

SECTION 1: The Vehicular Control Contract, attached hereto as Exhibit A, between 

Walmart and the City, is hereby approved and the Mayor and Clerk of the City are hereby 

authorized to affix their signatures thereto in their respective official capacities as the Mayor and 

Clerk of the City. 

 

 SECTION 2: If any section, paragraph, subdivision, clause, sentence or provision of this 

Ordinance shall be adjudged by any Court of competent jurisdiction to be invalid, such judgment 

shall not affect, impair, invalidate or nullify the remainder thereof, which remainder shall remain 

and continue in full force and effect. 

 

 SECTION 3: All ordinances or parts of ordinances in conflict herewith are hereby 

repealed to the extent of such conflict. 

 

mamraen
Typewritten Text

mamraen
Typewritten Text

mamraen
Typewritten Text

mamraen
Typewritten Text

mamraen
Typewritten Text

mamraen
Typewritten Text

mamraen
Typewritten Text

mamraen
Typewritten Text

mamraen
Typewritten Text

mamraen
Typewritten Text

mamraen
Typewritten Text

mamraen
Typewritten Text
Doc.13



  

 

Vehicular Control Contract, Page 2 

 SECTION 4: This Ordinance shall be known as Ordinance     and shall be 

in full force and effect upon its passage, approval and publication in pamphlet form (which 

publication is hereby authorized) as provided by law. 

 

Ayes: 

 

Nays: 

 

Abstentions: 

 

Absentees: 

 

APPROVED: 

 

 

     

Mayor Brian Sager, Ph.D. 

(SEAL) 

ATTEST:      

City Clerk Dianne Mitchell 

 

Passed:      

 

Approved:      

 

Published:      
Z:\W\WOODSTOCK\Ordinances\VehControlWalmart.ord.doc 



 

 

C E R T I F I C A T I O N 
 

 I, DIANNE MITCHELL, do hereby certify that I am the duly appointed, acting and 

qualified Clerk of the City of Woodstock, McHenry County, Illinois, and that as such Clerk, I am 

the keeper of the records and minutes and proceedings of the Mayor and Council members of 

said City. 

 

 I do hereby further certify that at a regular meeting of the Woodstock City Council, held 

on the    day of     , 2014, the foregoing Ordinance entitled An 

Ordinance Approving a Vehicular Control Contract By and Between Woodstock Walmart Store 

3434 and the City of Woodstock, was duly passed by said City Council. 

 

 The pamphlet form of Ordinance No. 14-O-____, including the Ordinance and a cover 

sheet thereof, was prepared, and a copy of such Ordinance was posted in the City Hall, com-

mencing on the   day of      , 2014, and will continue for 

at least 10 days thereafter. Copies of such Ordinance are also available for public inspection upon 

request in the office of the City Clerk. 

 

 I do further certify that the original, of which the attached is a true and correct copy, is 

entrusted to me as the Clerk of said City for safekeeping, and that I am the lawful custodian and 

keeper of the same. 

 

 Given under my hand and corporate seal of the City of Woodstock this    day of 

    , 2014. 

 

 

      

Dianne Mitchell, Clerk 

City of Woodstock, 

McHenry County, Illinois 

(SEAL) 

 



VEHICULAR CONTROL CONTRACT 

by and between 

WOODSTOCK WALMART STORE 3434 

and 

THE CITY OF WOODSTOCK 
 

 

 THIS AGREEMENT (the “Agreement”) is entered into   day of     

2014, by and between the City of Woodstock, an Illinois municipal corporation (the “City”) and 

Woodstock Walmart Store 3434, an Illinois corporation (“Walmart”). 
 

WITNESSETH: 
 

 WHEREAS, Walmart has represented and warranted to the City that it is the actual, legal 

owner of record of parking and certain common areas located at 1275 Lake Avenue, Woodstock, 

Illinois (hereinafter referred to as the “Walmart Supercenter”) and within the limits of the City 

legally and commonly described as follows: 

 

BEING A SUBDIVISION OF PART OF THE SOUTHEAST QUARTER OF 

SECTION 9, AND PART OF THE NORTHEAST QUARTER OF THE 

NORTHWEST QUARTER AND PART OF THE NORTHWEST QUARTER OF 

THE NORTHEAST QUARTER OF SECTION 16, ALL IN TOWNSHIP 44 

NORTH, RANGE 7 EAST OF THE THIRD PRINCIPAL MERIDIAN, IN 

MCHENRY COUNTY, ILLINOIS. 

 

 WHEREAS, the City is an Illinois municipal corporation organized and existing under 

the laws of the State of Illinois; and 

 

 WHEREAS, the City has enacted ordinances regulating traffic and parking within its 

municipal boundaries (the “Traffic Code”), which it shall enforce as existing or later amended; 

and 

 

 WHEREAS, the City maintains a full-time police department capable of patrolling the 

parking and other traffic areas of the Walmart Supercenter and is ready and willing to enforce the 

Traffic Code within the Walmart Supercenter; and 

 

 WHEREAS, Walmart, as the owner of record of the areas of access and egress, parking 

and other common areas in the Walmart Supercenter, desires to have the City enforce the Traffic 

Code therein; and 

 

 WHEREAS, Walmart has submitted a written request asking the City to provide police 

services within the Walmart Supercenter. 

 

 NOW, THEREFORE, pursuant to the authority conferred by Section 11-209 of the 

Illinois Vehicle Code, 625 ILCS 5/11-209, and in consideration of the provisions and conditions 

contained herein, it is mutually agreed between the parties as follows: 

 

1. The recitals set forth above are hereby incorporated into this Agreement by this 

reference. 



 

2. The City agrees to enforce the Traffic Code in the Walmart Supercenter as a 

regular part of its routine patrol. 

 

3. All violations of the Traffic Code shall be prosecuted in the same manner as 

violations of any other municipal law or ordinance. 

 

4. All fines levied in court proceedings arising from violations of the Traffic Code in 

the Walmart Supercenter shall be payable to the City by the Clerk of the Circuit Court in the 

same manner as other fines are paid to the City for the violation of municipal laws and 

ordinances. 

 

5. Walmart agrees that it will cause all necessary signs, markings and traffic control 

devices in the Walmart Supercenter to be made, posted, maintained and replaced as needed 

pursuant to the provisions of the Illinois Vehicle Code; the type, size, and location of all traffic 

control devices shall conform with the Illinois Manual of Uniform Traffic Control Devices; and 

the cost of required signs, signals, paint, and striping, shall be borne by Walmart. 

 

6. Walmart acknowledges that the City, in its discretion without the obligation to do 

so and as authorized or required by the Illinois Vehicle Code, will enact from time to time 

amendments to the Traffic Code as are needed to regulate vehicular traffic within its boundaries, 

including the Walmart Supercenter. 

 

7. The City shall have the authority, in its discretion without the obligation to do so, 

to accomplish any or all of the following activities, as applicable, within the Walmart 

Supercenter: 

 

a. The erection of stop signs, flashing signals, persons with disabilities 

parking area signs or yield signs at specified locations in a parking area and the adoption 

of appropriate regulations thereto pertaining, or the designation of any intersection as a 

stop intersection or as a yield intersection and the ordering of like signs or signals at one 

or more entrances to such intersection; 

 

 b. The prohibition or regulation of the turning of vehicles or specified types 

of vehicles at intersections or other designated locations in the parking area; 

 

c. The regulation of a crossing of any roadway in the parking area by 

pedestrians; 

 

d. The designation of any separate roadway in the parking area for one-way 

traffic; 

 

e. The establishment and regulation of loading zones; 

 

f. The prohibition, regulation, restriction or limitation of the stopping, 

standing or parking of vehicles in specified areas of the parking area; 

 

g. The designation of safety zones in the parking area and fire lanes; 



 

h. The removal and storage of vehicles parked or abandoned in in the parking 

area during snowstorms, floods, fires or other public emergencies, or found unattended in 

the parking area, (i) where they constitute an obstruction to traffic, or (ii) where stopping, 

standing or parking is prohibited, and for the payment of reasonable charges for such 

removal and storage by the owner or operator of any such vehicles; and 
 

i. The installation of parking signs in accordance with 625 ILCS 5/11-301 of 

the Illinois Vehicle Code in areas of the parking lots and where desired by Walmart, 

indicating that such parking spaces are reserved for persons with disabilities. 

 

8. This Agreement may be terminated by either party upon thirty (30) days’ prior 

written notice of its intention to do so by the party intending to terminate this Agreement; 

provided, however, that, unless terminated as set forth herein by the City or Walmart, the term of 

this Agreement shall be 20 years. The address to which notices may be sent are as follows: 

 

 City of Woodstock    Woodstock Walmart Store 3434 

121 West Calhoun Street   Attn:  Michaela Woods, Store Manager 

Woodstock, Illinois 60098   1275 Lake Avenue 

      Woodstock, Illinois 60098 
 

 Service of a notice by ordinary mail shall be sufficient. 

 

9. This Agreement shall be recorded in the Office of the Recorder of McHenry 

County, and no regulation made pursuant to the Agreement shall be effective or enforceable until 

three (3) days after it is so recorded. 

 

10. Walmart agrees to reimburse the City for its costs of preparation and recording of 

this Agreement, including reasonable attorney’s fees and any recording fees with the Recorder, if 

any.  The City shall present its reimbursement request with an invoice for such costs. 

 

11. This Agreement shall be binding upon the successors and assigns of each of the 

parties hereto. 

 

THE CITY OF WOODSTOCK,   WOODSTOCK WALMART STORE 3434, 

an Illinois municipal corporation   an Illinois corporation  

 

 

       By:        

Mayor Brian Sager, PhD    Its:       

 

 

ATTEST: 

 

      

City Clerk Dianne Mitchell 

 



 

STATE OF      ) 

      ) 

COUNTY OF      ) 

I, the undersigned, a notary public in and for the State and County aforesaid, do hereby 

certify that MICHAELA WOODS, Store Manager of Woodstock Walmart Store 3434, known to 

me to be the same person whose name is subscribed to the foregoing Vehicular Control 

Agreement, appeared before me this day in person and acknowledged that, pursuant to her 

authority, she signed the said Agreement as her free and voluntary act for the uses and purposes 

therein stated. 

Given under my hand and seal this ____ day of ___________________, 2014. 

 

        

Notary Public 

 

My commission expires     

 

 

 

 

STATE OF ILLINOIS ) 

    ) 

COUNTY OF  McHENRY ) 

I, the undersigned, a notary public in and for the State and County aforesaid, do hereby 

certify that Brian Sager, PhD, Mayor, and Dianne Mitchell, City Clerk, known to me to be the 

same persons whose names are subscribed to the foregoing Vehicular Control Agreement, 

appeared before me this day in person and acknowledged that, pursuant to their authority, they 

signed the said Agreement as their free and voluntary act on behalf of the named municipal 

corporation, for the uses and purposes therein stated. 

Given under my hand and seal this ____ day of ___________________, 2014. 

 

 

Notary Public 

 

My commission expires     
 

 

Prepared by: 

Carlos S. Arévalo 

Zukowski Rogers Flood & McArdle 

50 Virginia Street 

Crystal Lake, IL 60014 

(815) 459-2050 
Z:\W\WOODSTOCK\vehicularcontract Walmart.doc 



 

 

       City of    

               
 

Office  of  the City Manager                                                  phone 815 .338 .4301  

Rosco e C.  S te l ford  I I I ,  Ci ty Manager                                                      fax 815 .334 . 2269  

121  W.  Calhoun  St reet                                    c i t yman ager@woodsto cki l . go v  

Woodsto ck,  I l l ino is  60098                                                www.woodsto cki l . gov  

 

 

TO:  Honorable Mayor and City Council 

  Roscoe Stelford, City Manager 

 

FROM:  Cindy Smiley, Executive Assistant 

 

DATE:  January 6, 2014 

 

RE:  Community Event 

 

Council will recall that at the June 6, 2013 City Council Strategic Planning Session, discussion was held 

regarding the creation of a community event for the City of Woodstock, hopefully partnering with another 

organization or organizations.  To that end, Mayor Sager, City Manager Roscoe Stelford, and I met with 

Steve Gavers, Ralph Webster, and Denise Graff-Ponstein, representing Gavers Cancer Foundation, to 

discuss partnering with that organization to hold a Community Celebration the weekend of Gavers 

Barndance, utilizing the large tent and other amenities already in place for their event.  We are very 

pleased to report that the Gavers’ representatives enthusiastically embraced the idea of partnering for this 

Celebration.  This memo will serve as a brief description of the vision for the event and provide the basis 

for further discussion by the Council. 

 

Gavers Barndance will take place on Saturday evening, July 19, 2014, in its customary location in 

Emricson Park.  This significant event will follow its usual format, with participants over the age of 21 

enjoying food, drink, music, and other entertainment under a large tent and the surrounding area in the 

Park, with all proceeds going to the Gavers Community Cancer Foundation.  It is proposed that the 

weekend be expanded, however, to include community events on Friday evening and during the day on 

Saturday, culminating in a Community Picnic on Sunday.  While the Community Celebration is still in 

the initial planning stages, some of the suggested events are food vendors, a beer garden, music, a Movie 

in the Park under the large tent, and various family and children’s activities.  Again, Saturday evening 

will be reserved strictly for the Barndance. 

 

The Gavers Foundation has graciously agreed to allow the Community Celebration to use the tents, 

dumpster, and portable toilets already in place for the Barndance.  In addition, the individuals identified 

above have agreed to serve on the committee and are helping to secure the various vendors and activities.  

The Gavers Foundation will also provide and staff the beer garden for the Community Event, with those 

proceeds going to the Foundation to possibly benefit pediatric cancer. 

 

As it will soon be time to begin development of the FY14/15 Budget, the Administration and the 

Celebration Committee are seeking direction from Council concerning funding for this event.  As this is a 

Community Celebration rather than a fundraising event, it is hoped that the cost to families and other 

attendees can be kept to a minimum to allow for the greatest participation.  It is suggested that perhaps a 

portion of the revenue realized from the implementation of Video Gaming in the City of Woodstock be 

directed to the Community Celebration.   

 

Council’s confirmation of the City Administration’s current direction for the Community Event 

and suggestions to fund/enhance this event are desired. 

rstelford
Approved

mamraen
Typewritten Text
January 21, 2014 City CouncilManager's Report 16f



 

 

       City of    

               
 

Office  of  the City Manager                                                  phone 815 .338 .4301  

Rosco e C.  S te l ford  I I I ,  Ci ty Manager                                                      fax 815 .334 . 2269  

121  W.  Calhoun  St reet                                    c i t yman ager@woodsto cki l . go v  

Woodsto ck,  I l l ino is  60098                                                www.woodsto cki l . gov  

 
 

 

 

TO:  Honorable Mayor and City Council 

 

FROM: Roscoe C. Stelford III, City Manager 

 

DATE:  January 14, 2014 

 

RE:  Transmittal of CIP 

 
 

The FY14/15-FY18/19 Five-Year CIP document will be transmitted to the Council via Dropbox 

on Tuesday, January 21
st
.  Review and consideration of the CIP document is scheduled for the 

February 4, 2014 City Council Meeting. 

 

Please feel free to contact me with any questions. 

mamraen
Typewritten Text
January 21, 2014 City CouncilManager's report 16g


	January 21, 2014 City Council Agenda
	A. Floor Discussion:
	1. Proclamation Honoring Ray Lanz and Brinx
	2. Proclamation Honoring Joann and Jason Randall
	3. Groundhog Day Proclamation

	B. Minutes of Previous Meetings:
	December 17, 2013 Regular Meeting
	December 17, 2013 Executive Session

	C. Warrants:
	Warrant #3597
	Warrant #3598
	Warrant # 3599
	Warrant #3600
	MFT# 529

	D. Minutes and Reports:
	Police Department Report - November 2013
	Police Pension Board Minutes - October 22, 2013
	Library Board Minutes - November 7, 2013
	Transportation Commission Minutes - December 18, 2013

	E. Manager's Report No.16
	1. Property Tax Abatement Ordinance
	Doc.1
	Doc.2
	Doc.3
	Doc.4
	Doc.5
	Doc.6
	Doc.7
	Doc.8
	Doc.9 

	2. Zoning Variation- 1701 Sebastian Drive 
	Doc.10

	3. Parking Revisions for Alleys
	Doc.11

	4. NAAC Agreement 
	Doc.12

	5. Walmart Vehicular Agreement
	Doc.13

	DISCUSSION ITEMS:
	6. Community Event
	7. Transmittal of CIP



